SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT) Tel 808 586-2594
No. 1 Capitol District Bldg., 250 South Hotel St. 5" FI., Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii 96804

AGENDA
Wednesday, June 24, 2015 % 9:30 a.m.
Dawd v lge No. 1 Capitol District Building
250 South Hotel Street - Conference Room 436

Luis P. Salaveria
DBEDT Director

I Call to Order
Members
Anthony Borge 1. Approval of May 20, 2015 Meeting Minutes
Chairperson
Oah 1. New Business
Harris Nakamoto
Vice g;ri:rperson A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Hawaii Administrative
Rules, Title 3, Chapter 70, Rules of the Stadium Authority, promulgated
Eﬂgrgir:ifieergg;t by Department of Accounting and General Services — attached and
i incorporated as Exhibit 1
_ B. Discussion and Action on Proposed New Chapter 7A, Pertaining to the
Kyoko ¥. Kimura Housing Policy for the County of Kauai, under the Kauai County Code,
Fobert Cundif _promulgated by the _Kz_aluai County Housing Agency — attached and
Oahu incorporated as Exhibit 2
Nancy Atmospera-Walch C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Rules and Regulations
0Oahu of the Liquor Commission of the Department of Liquor Control of the
Phillp Kasper County of Hawr?lii, Part | through VI, promt_JIgated by Hawaii C_on_Jnty
Maui Department of Liquor Control — attached and incorporated as Exhibit 3
Garth Yamanaia IV.  Administrative Matters
awall
Director, DBEDT A. Discussion and Action to Appoint Board Members for “Discussion Leader”
Voting Ex Officio Assignments for the Counties and State Departments” Administrative Rule
Review

V. Next Meetirllqg: Scheduled for Wednesday, July 15, 2015, at 9:30 a.m.,
Conference Room 436, Capitol District Building, Honolulu, Hawaii

VI.  Adjournment

If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to
participate in the public hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter,
wheelchair accessibility, or parking designated for the disabled), please
call (808) 586-2594 at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting so
arrangements can be made.



| Dok g b A" Discuosine lerdin o Bl Mirckin
June 24, 2015 ~ SBRRB Meeting Checklist

v

Member Attendance Pre Meeting Checklist

P rgfi:r'::ce From | Details | Attend | |Conference Room #436 (Confirm each month) X
Anti?ony Borgs, p NA Oahy | Farking \ Make 12 - 15 copies of rule packages for board packets /
Chair /}T v Pass /
Barbara Bennett, \ Pab\ing 721 4
ot Vi(:t}%\air \A Kauai Bk j l\]L Poll board attendance X
Kyoko Kimura \/ 7 HA Maui P;;ksizg X Prepare TAF's for Director's app »ﬁ ASAP (Linda) \/

f bt lloolio
/ I / v
Harrisy(a/moto /NA/ ? hu I\/ I§l Airline booking ASAP - Linda ; \/\/’
- o | yehs | Pu
T " ]
Director's ex officio . /
NA Oah NA
Mark Richey m _‘ % ahu X Draft Agenda to Chair p ¥
, . Post approved agenda on 1) SBRRB website, 2) State
Rabert Cundit. o ,‘/} HA Oghu >/ Calendar, 3) Lte. Governor's Office \/' ]/
Nancy Atmospera- - G 5( Send Agendas to those people who requested it - \/
Walch ﬁ V ' IMPORTANT
Ph||1|p Kasper ] mf// Maui >< Mail approved agenda to Board members, Deputy AG \/
L vl a\ "L«MR_D V‘]

Garth Yamanaka ™\
Trwe (ki b

A f B.l

i . t—"
(N IAvT ¥

g
Mail board packets June 17 apnd 18 /| i» \

Photographer - Contact David H. //) J ""ﬁ"p

Include parking permits in Board members' agenda
packets.

STAFF Post Meeting Checklist
Margaret Ahn A \/ Yes
Dori Palcovich ﬁ v Yes

A

JIPublic/fSBRRB/Meeting/Pre-Meeting/Check List.xls



9T

ST
1’4"
€1
4"
1T

1 i

§= 2 V= JXQ :
Ares-19L, 125 b ﬂwl_\i mwNwwddﬁwv [ Nv 7 brﬂn@ TR \Uﬂmd\wﬁu\Nl 17PE) ot

Lo — dgw\ QQ\\ TITY o P 1 )\:3 &J a1 a
[ECa-1¢€ \ C\ \ fw@ \Jz SN 2R EINIE
2921~ 93]S V:@Aadwi ¥ v/ =2y, Y FepATSIY myasteyy | 0
Pr-98% L5 .as‘wqh }%\,\ C4< )\@M\Mn\, =4k
D709-CS L (éTQuM @ Pm.h Umbu Y @ 3 A& S .NJ.V.NGQ r\b@,. 9
|SLy egh | A7 WY B WA |y 5i WmpaLg v Yely g_ﬁ“ q W ey | °
LL50- RS .,(o._r.;a;é@?%: NS U0 kwraimony dpg Mﬁwﬁw 3 f,ﬁ, ;zsﬁm v
Py TM D1y 7 | @D?@@Xﬁw \§ jﬁ&qua m €
150 Lv ey 8 g TS | Sy TV | Py D T@P z
WMNA-M%._M \&Q 3@339 5“:\_\:‘_ + Wwﬁs_ c&i\zs_h.qnm &\wr /\\_._J ~ T
auoyd |lew3 uoneziuesip 3L awepn

ST0Z ‘7 dun( - paeog malrdy A10je[n3ay ssauisng [[eUWS - }93YS-UI-USIS SI0JISIA




Exhibit 1



H
I

DEPARTMENT OF ACCCUNTING AND GENERAL SERVICES
STADIUM AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF HAWAIT

Proposed Amendments to Chapter 3-70
Hawaiil Administrative Rules

(Date of Adoption)

1. Section 3-70-11, Hawaii Administrative
Rules, is amended by amending subsections (a), (b),
and (c) to read as follows: '

“§3-70-11 Rental charges, payment. (a) The
authority establishes the following schedule of
charges for the use of the stadium proper for each
event or date:

(1) [Hawaii] Hawaii-based high school and lower

grade level events or activities - No rent
'shall be charged for school related events
or activities; ,

(2) University of Hawaii [imntereellegiate
regular—seasen—Ffootball] events or
activities — [€he] The stadium authority
shall have discretion to determine rent,
provided, however, that the amount shall
not exceed seven and one—half per cent of
gross ticket receipts or $10,000 per date,
whichever is greater; ' '

[+ 6Htker college events where no admission

; ’ ; ;
uhafge +5 im?eSEdr exe}adiﬂg pfe‘aE-ESSﬂ:eﬂa%}Y
dates

43 ; .

; 5 .g
professtonally promoted by any persens

. e \ ;
T Rt 4

e S T N S I Q1N _AND e LN et
[ L./J_UJ__LL. ?J.\J, AV ARy L_‘l..'J._ \.A(..Ll_l_;, [ | S T
I e EoR S P o S N N N NS P
PWJ_.\.J P 3 gL L - | U N W | e fuJ_ LW 5 iy s T



(6]

Post-season [intereellegiateand]
collegiate
[add—star] football games [spensered by any
person,—partnership—eorporatien——or

] : i gtas] — [Een]
Ten per cent of gross ticket receipts or
$10,000 per date, whichever is greater, but
not to exceed $32,000 per date; [er—sush

greateramountas—may be determined-by—the

pef éaEef EE= 3:‘£ e Ei SJ&EES are Seld! %11 fef
et er—date,
whichever—dogreatery
Ceneerts;—rallies;—conventiens] (4)
Commercial events — [£2-8868] $2,500 per
date or ten per cent of gross ticket
receipts per date, or if no tickets are
sold, $1 for each person attending the
event per date, whichever is greater;
Receptions, parties, and youth events (ages

high school and below) - [$#58] $1,000 per
datey [er—ten perveentof bticket—reesipba,




A A
[p ey

NN
o oaatgea

P N
(3 By 5 g o

oo ot o
oo To

V‘r‘f\?‘\ﬁnj
P oOHe—r

ay

the

Commercial media

L4

- $250 per hour; and

- 5500 per hour

(6)

1 media

—commercia

Non

and other events or

religious,

Charitable,

(7)

g e
(ORI O]
ay 4

18]
oo
0]
=N

Q
Hl oy
o]

93]
(O
iy
(0 |~
Tl A

0
H|l D
[ONRS]
0,

]
[} R}
O
| O
~) -
N4
U

L5}
Iy m

@]
0l
(U)o
-
Dy
|0
=
ek
=
Ol o
(I ]

$750-—per

I o
AT

3 38
=y

LM NPT o i
S o - s

heowr ~igemtbo o
cnCTT—C Vv et 5—=6

ot

All—e

(b) The authority establishes the following
schedule of charges for the use of the stadium parking

Yots

o~
L iy

i T

e
ot

T 1ot £
[ Ny ].\.(_Lm P B, Wr g A..\Jr

L PN oo
o T

T
L i
Carniwvals,

e
i

vu_LQr]

lar events -

imi

]

and s

airs,

f

] that the event

-

r

1cC

to the publ

[$1,250] $3,000 per date|

is open

o F3 g e er—Freocords

L e

= Fatal

Tman ymaqomnn
L N o iy

(2)

S e ) S ulng—a‘
2+

L€ N WP W v i W B wr )

58 AL.rl...i.I.L_LIJ.\:j

at o

I:_}LALIJ\JIJL»:J

et

i ;
b )
1LV UJ.TVT:L

9 o

L 22

1 | o e
\_r\JJLLLLLL-_L\’.J_‘LAAL, (=3 pRwy LI SR 3 e

=1

P B atraaks s P e ol e B

=
= i =y

e led ey T b
Crre—por i g— et

G S B S

13 e
L= S Lo g

[y i 1

Rt e P T

[ S5 S W e

aof 7720
T e o

o g

T i.3

wlrd e b o

.7

e f‘\'\f“ﬁ‘!’l“‘
O

Arrred e 1

AN e b

o)

=
yypss el
tJL—J.. L N & my W ey

A

1

5

WSy

F i BT P [ I,

| 2=y B & e S
1"" f‘]"\‘,

11
J I R iy I

ki\_.-,l-

TR

1LU_L_LL.((A‘Y =)

<]

B —EX T BES
X7 =

¥

f=

AL E
L= B S e

mora +th oo nNo
Mo —e=aait

Py e
TTT

it
P g

=~ |

oot o
LT ey weres

R Wtk e N
oo UCT

Ly ouow

'
OTEA Tt 9
ST S S B e 3 L

hio —and
[

5

[ v 4 o= e g

s i 'd

TIEITS
e

(=

bW VoW ML L L LN L R RSN SRS TP

e S |

1

LT IiToo o P oot o

1
[ L= B ey

g gL Y

Commercial media - $500 per hour;

IS ullL.LJ_H\./\.L

-
r

- $250 per hour
Concerts - $2,500 per date

1l media

P el 2
(SIS RS

—commercia

Non

F

ol
Rl S e

osT

Bl 2N
[ 3

Pae e

o
PO aceentinyg

b W 2 e

ESPNE Y

S

L P e g

[

Pt T
Lo

=

=~
SR o

el SN
(o33 g

o

mea A 4
i o 5

| S o e g i B i

Aty amrn s

= 3
T

per—date

oo

S

S
=
-

4
e

Pt Bt Y

£ s e
(S5

e

o

J.LL(_ALLL.LB L

4

o o e oy 3 s
gttty

L
I

radn A ety v
Wil T ETHE WS

PR o P SN
[EENS S ey & £ S

r
mapager



(4) [For Hawaii] Hawaii-based high school and
lower grade level events or activities — No
rent shall be charged for school-related
events or activities; and

(5) [Pexr—add] All other events or activities,
inciluding youth (ages high school and
below) — [£458] $1,000 per date. [er—such
—— N ewe = - : - !

(c) The use of any office, or other space or

facility on the stadium premises may be rented upon
the terms and conditions, -and at the rental rates [as
may—Ppe] determined by the authority.”

KkKk

[Eff 6/12/81; am 9/17/82; am 8/25/88; am 1/17/05; am
3/4/06; am and comp 9/18/06; am 10/7/10; am
1 (Auth: HRS §109-2) (Imp: HRS §109-2)

Pn Section 3-70-20, Hawaii Administrative
Rules, is amended by amending subsections (a) to read
as follows:

“§3-70~20 Parking rates, parking stalls. (a)
Except as otherwise provided below, the authority
establishes the following rates for the privilege of
parking at the stadium for all events:

(1) [85] $7 per event per automobile for all
events and shows except as provided in this
subsection; rate will be $8 beginning July
1, , and 89 beginning July 1, -

(2) [¢25] 530 per event per passenger bus,
limousine, or truck, other than pickups,
regardless of the number of persons carried
in such bus, limousine, or truck; provided
that the authority delegates to the manager
the power to waive such parking charges at
the manager’s discretion [fer—sehicles




- prefiter eharitable—organizations]; rate
will be $31 beginning July 1, , and
$32 beginning July 1, ;

M= S3perevenkper—attomebile for all—events
ana—shows—when—the-athletesorperfermers
aekendhigh scheel er Jeover grade—Jevelss

+431(3) [$38] $15 per event per automobile fTor
professional sports events and concerts
with admission charges, except for Hawaiian

“cultural and music events; rate will be $16
beginning July 1, -, and 817 beginning
July 1, ;

[45)>1 (4) The authority delegates to the manager the
power to waive parking charges, at the
manager’s discretion, in connection with an
event or activity where the estimated out-
of- pocket expenses for parking exceed the
estimated parking revenues; provided that
the out-of-pocket parking expenses be at
the licensee’s expense; [and

+6+] (5) The swap meet events held at the stadium
and private events held in the stadium
hospitality room shall be exempted from
this subsection[+]: and

{(6) The manager shall have the: authority to
sell bulk parking, in whole or in part, to
a licensee at a rate not less than the

published rate for the contracted event or
activity.”

* k&

[EEf 6/12/81; am 9/17/82; am 8/27/84; am 9/1/87;
am 8/12/02; comp 9/18/06; am 8/1/10; am

] (Ruth: HRS §109-2) (Imp: HRS
§109-2)

I Material, except source notes, to be
repealed is bracketed. New material is underscored.

4, Additions to update source notes to
reflect these amendments are not underscored.



Bis These amendments to chapter 3-70, Hawaii
Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after
filing with thé Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the
rules, drafted in the Ramseyer format pursuant to the
requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised
.Statutes, which were adopted on
filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor.

, and

Charles T. Toguchi, Chairman
Aloha Stadium Authority

Douglas Mutdock, Comptroligr
Department of Accounting and
General Services

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Deputy Attorney General



Exhibit 2



ADMINISTRATIVE RULES
FOR THE
KAUA‘I COUNTY HOUSING AGENCY
COUNTY OF KAUA‘I
STATE OF HAWAI‘I

THE. ADMINISTRATION OF
CHAPTER 7A, KAUA‘I COUNTY CODFE,
PERTAINING TO THE HOUSING POLICY
FOR THE COUNTY OF KAUAI

June 15,2015




TABLE OF CONTENTS

County of Kauna‘i
The Administration of Chapter 7A, Kaua‘i County Code,
Pertaining to the Housing Policy for the County of Kaua‘i

Title Page
Table of Contents

Subchapter 1- General Provisions
1.1 Title
1.2 Purpose
1.3 Definitions

Subchapter 2- Applicability
2.1 Applicability
2.2 Confirmation of Applicability
2.3 Adjustment, Reduction, or Waiver of Requirements

Subchapter 3- Residential and Resort Workforce Housing Requirements
3.1 General Requirements
3.2 Satisfaction Alternatives
3.3 Departmental Guidelines

Subchapter 4- Workforce Housing Agreement
4.1 General
4.2 Draft Housing Agreement

Subchapter 5- Government Assistance for Workforce Housing
5.1 Waiver of County Fees

5.2 Fast Track Permitting

5.3 Section 201H Exemption Projects

Adoption Section

Certification Section

il

L W

~N

o0

10
11

12
12
12

20

- 21

i



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,

Housing Agency Housing Policy
SUBCHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1 TITLE

The rules in this Chapter shall be known as “The Administration of Chapter 7A, Kaua‘i
County Code, Pertaining to the Housing Policy for the County of Kaua‘i”.

1.2 PURPOSE

The purpose of these rules is to implement the goals and objectives of Chapter 7A,
Kaua‘i County Code.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

Words defined in Chapter 7A, Kaua‘i County Code shall have the same meaning
wherever used herein. Unless otherwise apparent from the context, the following
definitions shall apply:

a. “Affordable housing” means “workforce housing™.

b. “Council” means the Kaua‘i County Council.

c. “County” means the County of Kaua‘i, a political subdivision of the State of Hawai‘i.
d. “Department” means the Kaua‘i County Housing Agency.

e. “Developer” means a land owner or authorized agent of a land owner of real property
that: (1) seeks any County approval for development or subdivision of real property;
(2) that has applied to the County for a State Land Use district boundary amendment,
a zoning district boundary amendment, or an amendment to the Visitor Destination
Area; or (3) that has previously obtained from the County a State I.and Use district
boundary amendment or zoning district boundary amendment, but has not yet
satisfied an existing housing condition, or the County has not yet executed a written
housing agreement specifying the means to satisfy all or any portion of an existing
housing condition.

f.  “Director” means the director of the Kaua‘i County Housing Agency, or the director’s
designated representative.

“Eligible Developer”, as defined in Chapter 201H-32, HRS, means any person;
partnership; cooperative, including limited equity housing cooperatives as defined in
Chapter 421H, HRS; firm; nonprofit or for-profit entity; or public agency determined
by the Department:

e

June 15,2015 Page 3



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

1. To be qualified by experience, financial responsibility, and support to
construct housing of the type described and of the magnitude encompassed by
the given project; and

ii. To have submitted plans for a housing project adequately meeting the
objective of Chapter 201 H, HRS, the maintenance of aesthetic values in the
locale of the project, and the requirements of all applicable environmental
statutes and rules; and

iii. To meet all other requirements the County deems to be just and reasonable, ‘:
and all requirements stipulated in Chapter 201H, HRS. -

h. “Fast Track Permitting” means the process adopted by the County, pursuant to
Section 7A-9.2, Kaua‘i County Code, to expedite the permit process necessary for the
development of:

i. The project site, including but not limited to, all subdivision applications, civil
construction plan permits, and other plans and permits associated with the
development of the project; but

1. Building permits shall only be expedited for the workforce housing units.

i. “HUD” means the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

j.  “HRS” means Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended.

k. “Improved land” means land that has necessary infrastructural improvements to
support a public use project or a use density of at least a single-family or a two-family
residential building per acre, in conformity with State and County zoning laws and
building permit requirements.

I. “Income-qualified buyer” means a qualified buyer whose income is within the limits
of the workforce housing income group that is targeted for the purchase of workforce
housing units intended as affordable for that workforce housing income group.

m. “Income-qualified renter” means a qualified renter whose income is within the limits
of the workforce housing income group that is targeted to rent the workforce housing
units intended as affordable for that workforce housing income group.

n. “Kaua‘i Median Household Income (KMHI)” means the median household income
for the County of Kaua‘i as determined annually by HUD.

0. “KCC”means Kaua‘i County Code, as amended.
p. “Kuleana” means those lands granted to native tenants pursuant to L. 1850, p.202

June 15, 2015 Page 4



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency : Housing Policy

entitled “An Act Confirming Certain Resolutions of the King and Privy Council,
Passed on the 21 Day of December, A.D. 1849, Granting to the Common People
Allodial Titles for Their Own Lands and House Lots, and Certain Other Privileges, as
originally enacted and as.amended.

g. “Project” means the lots or parcels and any development thereon, included and
approved in an application by a developer for zoning or building permit, subdivision
or consolidation, State Land Use district boundary amendment, zoning amendment,
or amendment into the Visitor Destination Area.

r. “Rules” means these Administrative Rules for the Administration of Chapter 7A,
Kaua‘i County Code, Pertaining to the Housing Policy for the County of Kaua‘i, as
amended.

s. “Subdivision” means improved or unimproved land or lands divided or consolidated,
or proposed to be divided into two or more lots, parcels, sites, or other divisions of
land for purposes of, whether immediate or future, sale, lease, rental, transfer of title
or interest, in any or all of such parcels, and shall include resubdivision, and when
appropriate to the context shall relate to the process and procedure of subdividing of
the land being subdivided. Easements for roadway or access purposes shall be
construed as subdivided land. The term includes a building or group of buildings,
other than a hotel, containing or divided into three or more dwelling units. Planned
unit developments and condominiums shall be considered subdivisions.

t.  “Workforce housing,” “workforce unit,” or “workforce housing unit” means a lot,
single-family dwelling unit, or multiple-family dwelling unit that may be rented or
sold at price levels that are affordable to households that earn from eighty percent
(80%) and below of the Kaua‘i Median Household Income to one hundred forty
percent (140%) of the Kaua‘i Median Household Income.

u. “Unimproved land” means land not classified as improved land.

June 15, 2015 Page 5



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

SUBCHAPTER 2

APPLICABILITY

2.1 APPLICABILITY

a. The department shall use the criteria in Section 7A-1.4 (a) through (c), KCC, to
determine the applicability of Chapter 7A, KCC, for completed subdivision
applications, zoning permit application, and building permit applications for any
new development, redevelopment, renovation; conversion to time share use; the
subdivision of land; or the construction of single-family dwelling units, two-
family dwelling units, multi-family dwellings, or hotels, whether constructed at
one time or over several years.

b. The director shall review and make the determination within thirty (30) days of
receipt of the completed subdivision application, zoning permit application, or
building permit application

¢. Pursuant to Section 7A-1.2, KCC, the purpose of Chapter 7A, KCC, is to establish
that a portion of residential and resort developments shall provide workforce housing
opportunities for Kaua‘i residents. In determining whether a project is exempt,
Chapter 7A, KCC, may not apply to a project that falls into one or more of the
following categories, as determined by the director:

i.  The project is exempt pursuant to Section 7A-10.1 through 10.4, KCC;

ii.  The relocation of kuleana lots, where no additional lots or density are created
by the resulting relocation;

iii.  The consolidation of lots, including kuleana lots, involving not more than four
(4) existing lots of record and re-subdivision where no additional lots or
density are created by the resultant properties, provided that use of property
does not change;

iv. A project by a government entity, a project pursuant to Section 201H-38,
HRS, or a project developed by a Kaua‘i community housing land trust
pursuant to Section 7A—8_.2, KCC; or

v.  An applicant applying for zoning permits that does not incorporate residential

or resort development. Should the zoning permits for the project be amended
in the future, the project may be subject to Chapter 7A, KCC.

June 15, 2015 Page 6



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

2.2 CONFIRMATION OF APPLICABILITY

a. The director shall provide electronic or written confirmation to the receiving agency
if Chapter 7A, KCC, is applicable to a project.

b. The director shall notify the receiving agency by electronic or written confirmation
when a workforce housing agreement has been fully executed for the project.

¢. Upon request from the receiving agency, the director may provide a copy of the
executed workforce housing agreement for the project.

d. The Department shall maintain records of all executed workforce housing agreements
and written confirmations of applicability, non-applicability, or exemption in
accordance with the Department’s documentation retention policy.

2.3 ADJUSTMENT, REDUCTION, OR WAIVER OF REQUIREMENTS

a. Upon receipt of the director’s written determination that a project is subject to the
requirements of Chapter 7A, KCC, and these rules, a developer may appeal to the
Department for an adjustment, reduction, or waiver of the requirements. Any appeal
of the Department’s decision must be filed on or before thirty (30) days from the date
on which the Department sent the electronic or written confirmation of the
applicability.

June 15, 2015 Page 7



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

SUBCHAPTER 3

RESIDENTIAL AND RESORT WORKFORCE HOUSING REQUIREMENTS

3.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

a. The amount or number of residential workforce housing units required by Chapter
7A, KCC, shall be in accordance with Section 7A-2.1 through 2.6, KCC.

b. The Department shall require the developer to provide the Department with a copy of
a settlement statement for all residential workforce for-sale units or lots and any
documents and information required by the Department to verify eligibility of the
buyers and sales price requirements pursuant to Section 7A-4.1 and 4.2, KCC.

¢. The Department shall require the developer to provide the Department with access to
review executed leases or rental agreements for all for-rent units and any documents
‘required to verify eligibility of the tenani(s) and rental rate requirements pursuant to
Section 7A-4.1 and 4.3, KCC.

d. The Department may request that the developer provide the following information to
verify eligibility: (i) name of the owner or lessee who has purchased the unit,
purchased the lot, or occupy the rental unit; (ii) the lessee’s family size; (iii) the
lessee’s household income.

3.2 SATISFACTION ALTERNATIVES

a. In determining whether the residential and resort workforce housing requirements of
Chapter 7A, KCC, may be satisfied by an alternative measure pursuant to Section 7A-
3.1, KCC, the director shall use, but not be limited to, the following criteria:

i. The director may determine on a case by case basis whether the alternative
measure will accomplish the objective of producing as many workforce
housing units as possible in a reasonable period of time;

ii. The director may determine on a case by case basis whether the alternative
measure will result in greater added value of workforce housing units which
may include, but not be limited to, factors such as: location, zoning
designation, or infrastructure.

iii. The alternative measure satisfy the requirements of Section 7A-2.1, KCC, by
providing for sale or for rental the required number of workforce housing
units or lots to income-qualified buyers and income-qualified renters.

June 15, 2015 Page 8



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

b. Density Restriction of Project. Subject to the approval by the director, a density

restriction of the project may be granted. Project density shall be restricted to no
more than ten (10) dwelling units and shall be recorded on the deed for the property
and shall be recorded with the Bureau of Conveyances of the State of Hawai‘i so that
the terms and conditions of the deed for the property run with the land and bind and
constitute notice to all subsequent grantees, assignees, mortgages, lienors, and any
other persons who may claim an interest in such property.

Payment of In-Lieu Fee. Subject to the approval by the director, payment of in-lieu
fees in accordance with Section 7A-3.1 (a), KCC, can be used to satisfy the
requirements of Section 7A-2.1, KCC. The total amount of the in-lieu fee due and
owing to the County, if not paid in advance, shall be secured by a lien recorded
against the project property on which the market rate units will be situated. Said lien
will be released by the County upon full payment of the in-lieu fee to the County.

Dedication of Land. Subject to approval by the County Council, improved or
unimproved land in-lieu may be dedicated to the County pursuant to Section 7A-
3.1(b), KCC, as recommended by the director.

Rental Units. Subject to the approval by the director, rental units may be substituted
in place of for sale units pursuant to Section 7A-3.1(c), KCC.

3.3 DEPARMENTAL GUIDELINES

a.

In implementing Section 7A-2.1, KCC, the Department shall use the Kaua®i Median
Household Income, as determined annually by HUD, to determine the workforce
housing income group(s). Further, the Department shall use Chapter 7A, KCC, to
determine the sale prices and rent limits for workforce units.

June 15, 2015 Page 9



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

SUBCHAPTER 4

WORKFORCE HOUSING AGREEMENT

4.1 GENERAL

A Workforce Housing Agreement shall be used to incorporate the requirements of Section 7A-
2.1, KCC, which shall be recorded on the deed for the project concurrent with final subdivision
approval, or concurrent with final zoning approval, or prior to building permit approval,
whichever occurs first.

a. The Department shall require a developer to enter into a Workforce Housing Agreement
with the Department that sets forth the detailed terms and conditions of compliance with
Chapter 7A, KCC, pursuant to Chapter 7A, KCC, including but not limited to:

i.  Sales or rental periods for the residential workforce housing units, which specify
procedures for the release of units from the workforce housing requirements
should units not be sold or rented following the expiration of the sales or rental
periods;

ii. Identification of the number, type, and location of workforce housing units;

iii. Designation of workforce housing units for specific income and/or special
housing target groups;

iv. Marketing process for the residential workforce housing units;
v. Eligibility of income-qualified households;
vi. Provision for residential workforce housing credits, as applicable;

vii.  Ifapplicable, payment of in-lieu fee or provision of in-lieu land;

viii. If applicable, incentives, pursuant to Section 7A-2.2 and 2.3, KCC, approved by
the director; and

ix. Resale restrictions, which may include buy-back provisions, shared equity, and
encumbrances.

June 15, 2015 Page 10



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

b. The Workforce Housing Agreement shall be recorded with the Bureau of Conveyances of
the State of Hawai‘i or the land court of the State as the case may be, so that the terms
and conditions of the Workforce Housing Agreement run with the land and bind and
constitute notice to all subsequent grantees, assignees, mortgagees, lienors, and any other
persons who claim an interest in such project property. The Workforce Housing
Agreement shall be enforceable by the County by appropriate action at law or suit in
equity against the developer, its successors, and assigns.

4.2 DRAFT HOUSING AGREEMENT

The Department may require the developer of a project that is subject to Chapter 7A, KCC, to
provide the Department a draft Workforce Housing Agreement for review. The director shall
approve or deny the draft Workforce Housing Agreement, or request modifications thereto.

June 15, 2015 Page 11



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

SUBCHAPTER 5

GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE FOR WORKFORCE HOUSING

5.1 WAIVER OF COUNTY FEES

a. Pursuant to Section 7A-9.1, KCC, fees associated with the permitting of the portion of
the project meeting a Workforce Housing Agreement may qualify for fee exemption.

b. The developer may apply for a County fee exemption with the Department by completing
a Fee Exemption Claims for Affordable Housing Project Form (“Form™). The director
shall certify or deny the Form within thirty (30) days of receipt. A certified Form shall
be attached to all project permits and applications submitted to the County departments to
qualify for fee exemption consideration.

5.2 FAST TRACK PERMITING

a. Pursuant to Section 7A-9.2, KCC, eligible projects may utilize Fast Track Permitting to
expedite the review and issuance of County permits necessary for the development of the
project site, including but not limited to: subdivision applications, civil construction plan
permits, and other plans and permits associated with the project or the project site.
Building permits shall only be expedited for workforce housing units. [Eff 04/15/14]
(Auth: Section 91-2, HRS, Section 7A-9.2, KCC) (Imp: Section 7A-9.2, KCC)

b. Fast Track Permitting processing does not apply to any public hearing, hearing examiner,
or County Council processes associated with any of the permits, approvals, or reviews.
Fast Track Permitting permits shall proceed through public hearings the same as any
other permit and without priority status.

5.3 SECTION 201H EXEMPTION PROJECTS

a. Pursuant to Section 7A-9.3, KCC, Chapter 201H-38, HRS, may be used by an eligible
developer to expedite requests to amend zoning; for zoning permit application,
subdivision application, and building permit application; and to consider reduced
development standards for a project that is at least fifty-one percent (51%) workforce
housing.

b. Purpose. Chapters 201H-38 and 46-15.1, HRS, authorizes the County to develop or
assist in the development of housing projects with an eligible developer, or may assist
under a government assistance program in the development of housing projects which are
exempt from any statutes, ordinances, charter provisions, and rules of any governmental

June 15, 2015 Page 12



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

agency relating to planning, zoning, construction standards for subdivisions, development
and improvement of land, and the construction of units thereon provided that:

i.  The project consists of at least fifty-one percent (51%) workforce housing units,
consistent with the intent of Chapter 201H, HRS; and

ii.  The Department has determined the developer to be an “eligible developer™, as
defined in Chapter 201H-32, HRS; and

iii.  The development of the project does not contravene any safety standards, tariffs,
rates, or fees approved by the public utilities commission for public utilities or the
County of Kaua‘i Board of Water Supply; and

iv.  The Council shall approve, approve with modification, or disapprove the project
by resolution within forty-five (45) calendar days after the Department has
submitted the preliminary plans and specification for the project, which is made a
part of the certified 201H Exemption Application Packet to the Council. If, on the
forty-sixth (46'1‘) day, a project is not disapproved, it shall be deemed approved by
the Council.

v. ~ Projects greater than 15 acres in size requiring exemptions for a State Land Use
District Boundary Amendment shall seek approval of the Land Use Commission
pursuant to Chapter 201H-38, HRS, after approval by the Council. Projects less
than 15 acres in size requiring a State Land Use District Boundary Amendment
shall follow the process pursuant to Chapter 11, KCC.

3

The State Land Use Commission shall approve, approve with modifications, or
disapprove a boundary change within forty-five (45) days after the Department
has submitted a petition to the commission as provided in Section 205-4, HRS. If,
on the forty-sixth (46™) day, the petition is not disapproved, it shall be deemed
approved by the State Land Use Commission.

c. Affordability Requirements for 201H Projects. To be given consideration by the County
for exemptions under Chapter 201H-38, HRS, a project must:

i.  Provide for economically integrated housing, by stipulation and design, where at
least fifty-one percent (51%) of the dwelling units in the project are developed as
affordable dwelling units and provided at sales prices or rental rates affordable to
households earning from eighty percent (80%) and below, to one hundred forty
percent (140%) of the KMHI, according to the household income distribution
specified in Subsection iii below;

June 15, 2015 Page 13



Kaua‘i County

Housing Agency

il.

iil.

1v.

June 15, 2015

Chapter 7A,
Housing Policy

For rental projects, units shall be affordable for a period of not less than forty (40)
years or as designated in Chapter 7A, KCC, as amended, whichever is longer; and
for ownership units, units shall be affordable for a period of not less than twenty
(20) years, and shall be subject to the buyback provisions of the County;

Unless an entire project is affordable to households at or below eighty percent
(80%) of KIMHI, the total number of workforce housing units in the proposed
project shall be distributed as follows:

a)

b)

Q)

A minimum of eleven percent (11%) of the total number of units in the
project shall be affordable to low-income households earning annual
incomes which do not exceed eighty percent (80%) KMHI, adjusted for
family size;

A maximum of fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of units shall be
affordable to moderate-income households earning annual incomes
ranging between eighty percent (80%) and one hundred percent (100%)
KMHI, adjusted for family size;

A maximum of fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of units shall be
affordable to moderate-income households earning annual incomes
ranging between one hundred percent (100%) and one hundred twenty
percent (120%) KMHI, adjusted for family size;

A maximum of ten percent (10%) of the total number of units shall be
affordable to gap group households earning annual incomes ranging
between one hundred twenty (120%) and one hundred forty percent
(140%) KMHI, adjusted for family size; and

A maximum of forty-nine percent (49%) of the total number of units may
be sold or rented at other rates determined by the developer, including
market rates.

As an alternative, distribution of workforce housing units may be based on
current housing need on Kaua‘i as projected by the most recent Hawai‘i
Housing Planning Study, or as supported by other market data and housing
demand data, as resolved with and approved by the director.

Provided that a project meets the criteria set in Subsection iii above, the project
shall have a minimum of twenty (20) affordable dwelling units. Projects

Page 14



Kaua‘i County

Chapter 7A,

Housing Agency Housing Policy

Vi.

vii.

developed solely for persons with special living needs shall not be subject to this
minimum dwelling unit requirement.

Guideline for Affordable Sales Prices. Maximum for-sale price limits shall be
resolved with the Department and not exceed current Affordable For Sale
Housing Prices most currently published by the Department at the time of
construction.

Guideline for Affordable Rental Rates. Maximum rent charged shall be resolved
with the Department and not exceed current Net Unit Rents in the Affordable
Rental Housing chart most currently published by the Department at the time of
construction.

Guideline for Workforce Unit Sizes: The number of bedrooms of the workforce
units shall be comparable to those of the market units, or based on housing need
on Kaua‘i as supported by the most current Hawai‘i Housing Planning Study, and
shall be subject to the approval of the director.

d. Process. The Department shall administer the 201H Exemption process for projects for
the County. The 201H Exemption process consists of four phases: (I) Pre-Consultation
with the Department, with State and County Departments, with Public Utilities, and with
the Public Community; (II) Submission of a Completed 201H Exemption Application

Packet;

(I1I) Determination of Eligibility by the Director; and (IV) Formal Project

Review and Processing:

i.

June 15, 2015

Phase I: Pre-Consultation with the Department, with State and County
Departments, with Public Utilities, and with the Public Community.

a) The Department shall require the developer to meet with the director to
present the project and to consult and review the project’s 201H
Exemption eligibility; and

b) The Department shall require the developer to also conduct pre-
consultation meetings with State and County departments and public
utilities to discuss the project and its proposed exemptions; and

¢) The department shall require the developer to also conduct a pre-
consultation community meeting with the public, who reside within a five
(5) mile radius of the proposed project site, to discuss the project and its
proposed exemptions.

Page 15



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

ii.  Phase II: Submission of a Completed 201H Exemption Application Packet. The
department shall require the developer to complete a 201H Exemption
Application Packet which includes, but is not limited to, a 201H Exemption
Application (“201H Application™), available from the department, and all
required exhibits and materials, including a preliminary Draft Environment
Assessment (preliminary DEA) for the project.

For the purposes of public disclosure, the Department shall require the developer
to fully detail the project’s proposed exemptions and proposed alternate standards
in the project’s preliminary DEA. The Department shall require the developer to
resolve exemption alternatives with the Department, with State and County
departments, and public utilities in the preliminary DEA before the formal
submittal of a Draft Environmental Assessment (DEA) to Office of
Environmental Quality Control (OEQC).

iii.  Phase ITI: Determination of Eligibility by the Director. The director shall review
the developer’s submitted 201H Exemption Application Packet (1) to determine
whether the project and the developer are eligible under Chapter 201H, HRS, and
(2) to identify major concerns, if any, relating to the project. The director may
request any additional information that is deemed necessary to make a decision as
to developer and project eligibility. The director will notify the developer in
writing of developer and project eligibility.

iv.  Phase IV: Formal Project Review and Processing.

a) Ifthe director has determined the developer and the project to be eligible
for the 201H Exemption process, the developer shall be deemed an
“Applicant™.

b) 201H Exemption Application Packet Review by State and County
Departments and Public Utilities.

1) The Department shall request the Applicant to provide the
Department with twenty (20) paper sets and one (1) digital file (in
a file format approved by the County Building division for
Electronic Plan Review) of the 201H Exemption Application
Packet including all required exhibits and materials, and the
project’s preliminary DEA;

June 15, 2015 Page 16



Kaua‘i County
Housing Agency

June 15, 2015

2)

3)

Chapter 7A,
Housing Policy

The Department shall coordinate distribution of the 201H
Exemption Application Packets amongst applicable State and
County departments and public utilities; and

The Department shall request the receiving State and County
departments and public utilities to review the 201H Exemption
Application Packet to ensure that the project, with the requested
exemptions, meets minimum standards of health and safety and the
project does not contravene any written safety standards, tariffs,
rates or fees approved by the public utilities commission for public
utilities or the County of Kaua‘i Board of Water Supply. The
Department shall request that written comments regarding the
201H Exemption Application Packet be provided to the
Department within thirty (30) days after its receipt.

The Department shall require the Applicant to work with the
Department, with State and County departments, and with public
utilities, to resolve and address their concerns before the formal
submittal of a Draft Environmental Assessment (DEA) to Office of
Environmental Quality Control (OEQC) for publication. The
Department shall require the Applicant or its representative to
modify, if applicable, the 201H Application and its” exhibits and
its’ materials to address the Department, State and County
departments, and public utilities concerns. The Department shall
require the Applicant to provide adequate copies of all such
modifications to the Department for distribution to all State and
County departments and public utilities. After the Department’s,
State and County departments’, and public utilities’ concerns have
been adequately addressed, these agencies shall confirm approval
to both the Department and the Applicant in writing.

¢) Public Review Process. The Department shall require the developer to

d)

hold at least one (1) public information meeting in the community where
the project site is located during the pre-consulting phase.

Environmental Review Process. Once the 201H Exemption Application
Packet has been reviewed and approved by the Department, by State and
County departments, and by public utilities, the process or Environmental
Review pursuant to the Hawai‘i Environmental Policy Act (HEPA), HAR
11-200 is to be followed. For projects requiring National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA), refer to HAR 11-200-25. The Department shall be
the approving agency for the NEPA process.

Page 17



Kaua‘i County
Housing Agency

June 15, 2015

Chapter 7A,
Housing Policy

Prior to submission of the 201H Application Packet to Council, the
Department also requires that:

1Y)

2)

A Final Environmental Assessment (FEA) and a FONSI has been
published, or a Final Environmental Tmpact Statement (FEIS) has
been accepted pursuant to Chapter 343, HRS, if significant impacts
are anticipated; :

If NEPA review is required, the final environmental document has
been accepted by the responsible federal or state agency and a
FONSI published or Record of Decision (ROD) has been filed, if
required; and

The judicial challenge period for these review processes has
expired.

e) County Council Review

1))

3)

4)

The Department shall prepare and transmit to the Council a
certified 201H Exemption Application Package consisting of, but
not limited to: a 201H Application, it’s required exhibits and
materials; a draft agreement between the County and Applicant
ensuring the project is built and operated as represented by the
Applicant; and a draft resolution to approve, approve with
modification, or disapprove the project.

The Council shall approve, approve with modification, or
disapprove the project by resolution within forty- five (45) days
after submittal of the 201H Exemption Application Package by the
Department. If on the forty-sixth (46th} day a project is not
disapproved, it shall be deemed approved by the Council.

County Council approval of the 201H Exemption Application
Package shall constitute the final plans and specifications for
zoning, building, construction, and subdivision standards for the
proposed project.

The Department shall require the Applicant, or its authorized
representative, to be present at all meetings of the Council and its
Committees and at all public hearings for the project, to make

Page 18



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

presentations and to respond to any questions or concerns
regarding the proposed project.

f) Project Development Phase

1) If State Land Use District boundary Amendment is required, the
Department shall require the Applicant to petition the Land Use
Commission pursuant to Chapter 201H-38(a)(4), HRS to obtain
approval, prior to proceeding with section 5.3 d. iv. 1) 2) of these
rules.

2) Ifthe Applicant’s 201H application is approved by Council, the
Department shall require the Applicant to complete final plans and
specifications for the proposed project and obtain necessary permit
approvals from the State and County departments and public
utilities. Final plans and specifications shall not substantially
deviate or materially change from the preliminary plans and
specifications approved by the County Council in the 201H
application. '

3) The Department shall require the Applicant to attach the approved
County Council resolution to the all permit applications being
submitted to the Department, State and County departments, and
public utilities.

June 15, 2015 Page 19



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

ADOPTION

COUNTY OF KAUA‘T

RECOMMENDED BY:

FREDERICK KAMUELA COBB-ADAMS Date
Housing Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND LEGALITY:

STEPHEN HALL Date
Deputy County Attorney

APPROVED BY:

BERNARD P. CARVALHO, JR. Date
Mayor

June 15, 2015 _ Page 20



Kaua‘i County Chapter 7A,
Housing Agency Housing Policy

CERTIFICATION

It is hereby certified that the foregoing Administrative Rules for the Administration of Chapter
7A, Kaua‘i County Code, Pertaining to the Housing Policy for the County of Kaua‘i were '
adopted on INSERT DATE, by the Kaua‘i County Housing Agency pursuant to the provisions of
the Hawai‘i Administrative Procedure Act, Chapter 91, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended,

“and that the notice of public hearing on the foregoing document was published in The Garden
Island on June 17, 2015.

Dated in Lihu‘e, Kauva‘i, Hawai‘i, this  DATE day of _ MONTH |, 2015.

KAUAI COUNTY HOUSING AGENCY

FREDERICK KAMUELA COBB-ADAMS
Housing Director

Received this day of CERTIFICATION OF COUNTY CLERK
,2015

I hereby certify that on , 2015,
I have accepted for filing from the Kaua‘i
County Housing Agency the Administrative
Rules for the Administration of Chapter 7A,
Kaua‘i County Code, Pertaining to the Housing
Policy for the County of Kaua‘i adopted by
that body on ; SULS,

JADE FOUNTAIN-TANIGAWA
County Clerk

June 15, 2015 Page 21



Exhibit 3



1-1

13
1-4

1-6

1-7

1-9
1-10
1-11

1-12
1-13
1-14
1-15
1-16
1-17
1-18

2-1

2-3

RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE LIQUOR COMMISSION
OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR CONTROL OF THE
COUNTY OF HAWATI'L, STATE OF HAWAI'L

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART L. RULES OF PRACTICE

DD IIIIEIONIS o1 veeeeeeeeee ettt e eeeetee e s e eeeeeseneesersseaansesessseemeeeeeasbea s sb et aenaae e e s see e e sbraneeenrneeenans 1
AATTBIIIRY s wormenssssmsssmsmmmmmonnsessssesmssnssssssmassmasmensasnssasssers AN SRR AR S R T TS 5
ConRtraeon OF ROIEE . ... s cmsmiein s i s s v syssssaws
LAimitation Of JUMISAICHOM «...veeeeeeeiitiivieeeesescsseeseerseseressraesseeessesenseeesaeensaseeeeneeseesnnnes

17, (575 151 o S OO 5
HHEATITEZS ..ottt et et ce et e a bbb s s b sa b 6
K, TOIIEE. .. .omnsermonnsmmem e asmmassasnssmssmmsssmr kS R G R s 6
B. Filiiig Apploations, WIS . ucmscmsimeis s mmsssmmes s sss s 6
C. Notice, Applications, Adjudications ..usssmssmmmmsmmsssammsisaisien s 6
I T S —— 6
E. SHPUIALIONS . ..c.ecoiiemimieieeicreicciiiite st 7
B, JHIGIE] REVIERD, oy seiid oo i o Aoa A e U S S R A RN 7
IR CTUEEIIER o T T R R A B DO T RO G 7
WU s vesuisossssunsmmmempommans avesessavs o smum s on s kAN AR AR TSNS 5
Petition for RENEATINg........ccoociiriieiiiiiier e 9
PUDBIIC INfOrMAtION . ¢.veueieeceriteeieieiciisi s 10
Adopticn, Atnendmeiit of Repeal oE RUles e, 11
e, POUTEIONY i o v asmoisi S s N 43 S S84 A 493 S TS S5 54 11
B. PrOCEAUIES. ...coviiiivieiiirteiireeeaeseeee e ese s e sbaessese e s s eae s e e srs s s em s nessansresnes 11

Declaratory Ruling by COMMUISSION........ccccoiiceiiiciiiiiieieieesnesesesesescessseessseseseseens 12
Appeal to the Liquor COMMUSSION ....cvevewuseersrrsssamssssssssssssssssssssssssesssassssssssssssssisssasess 13

T 1 0] 81 1L e 14
Canise Tor DISCIDIING: oo ssrmssuismavsomorsssssmsmmsisssmmmsm e o s o e 5 14
Hearings, &mending Condiione . coummmmpmoss s sssonmmmssssmssmmsassrssrsas 14
Authorized Representatives. .......ooveeeecrieiseesiiiisesisssssss s 15
PUhes APPUCHIOS .. .omneresnsanmrarssmsibs i T G aaesis sovs SO0 TS A5 15

PART II. COMMISSION, BOARD, DIRECTOR

LTI COTIITIIRRIEIIN .o B A S PSSP SR 16
Ligmor Confrol Adjudication Board . emmansmsmmamammmsrmsa s i
Directorof the Depertment of Tiguor CBOtrol o mmsamommsmmmssesmmrsmmimmmss 17



3-1

32

PART HI. LICENSES, PERMITS, FEES, HOURS

L T B T T 18
7 R 1) | O U — 18
B. Class 1. Manufacturer LICENSE ...ovviiviiiiiceiieis i e ciecieies e snaessesnasecsaneens 18
C. Class 2. Restaurant LICEISE ....coomreeeee e ceeeeeee e et eteeeeeee e e eee e eeeereeeeneeeanas 19
D. Class 3. Wholesale Dealer LICENSE ...ovuvririrriiiereerrieirenressesssneessenassseessssssenns 21
E. Class 4. Retail Dealer LICENSE ..uuiviverieririiiiissereirrrervissseseissssscsssnessssssessssssnes 22

T, IENErA]l comnmmmsmrrss s T R A S R SRy 22
2. DBLIVETY ..ottt sttt sttt st s st sa s s resbe s nrene 22
3. Gt BASKEIS ..ttt et bevereneissesssnennnes 23
B, Class 5, DiSpenser LACBNSE ... ...ooccemesicssorcrersorerssrosssthonatasasiassstnss sonssbemmessnnsar 23
' | B3z | [ S 23
2. Relating te Categary T maamsmammssmissmmnswimsmmsyessei st 24
3. Relating to Category D ..o 24
G. Class 6. CIUD LICEIISE .veeeeriririeeiireeeieie e stteeeteesseeeesnesssnessseneesssseessnesasssessssesesnes 25
H. Class 7. Beseived . oo samsanemmmiiimiai 26
. Class 8. Transient Vessel License: .vinmsimsmsnssmiimsmasssssisissadld
J. Class 9. Tour or Cruise Vessel LiCense .........cocoevveevmeecccecccciciieeeeieeeeeen. 26
K. Class 10. SPECIAL ..ccvvverueereeirrerrrererrerieeeessesiieree st essesneesasre s s messsesanssesnesseses 27
L. Class 11. Cabaret LICENSE c.uvivveiivceiiiieiierreeresisecssseesessiasssessresssssnssanessnsesenss 28
M. iClass, 12. Hotel LICONSE - o memsmnrsissmemmies s mumsasarassss s 29
N 1CTass 13, Caterer LICenSCumsmssisomsmvivisssmsimis s ivivisss svoiyisaissowie 29
L. ADPPHCALION .ottt st st s 29
2. Catering ReqUITEMENTS. .....couoviiiiiiiiieciec e s 30
O. Class 14. Brewpub LICENSE .....c.coueimuiieeiiteseeeecrceiec e 31
P. Class 15. Condominium Hotel LiCeNSe ....ccvevvvieiriiiieeniiirseeneieieesieeesae e 32
0. Class 16, Winery LIGENEE ...l 32
R. Class 18. Small Craft Producer Pub License..........covvvviiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn 34
S. Retailer PUrChases . ... iiieieciieeeeeieeeseseee s s seeesssasesseessieaessreneaeesssnnaassnnnenss 35
T, Vergel LaeBiRilE oo s i 36
U NeoConsumption in Lhlicensed ATeaS wasmms e s 36
V. EREETAIIIMNETIE .ot e sttt aese s sabs s e e s emas s e e aaaeaeenes 36
W. Resealed LIQUOT ...t 36
K. CAtBZOTIES .. v evererererseesesesesereesesseseeseseeseaseseassseaseseseasseaesesasensesassesansesensasnesans 3 1

P TINTS srsss as rs  s B G Sa s o o A S Y e R S € Y P v s 37
Ao CTCICTA]l PrOVISIOIS wovemersvmsmranss s s s s st s seiom v oed v s e 37
B. Restrictions on Permits, ACHVITIES.....cciveeiiieeieeirieeeeerieesee e e cervvnee e e e sennns 37
C. APPLCALION......coiiriitiirrrinntc e e e 37
1Y, "TACEL PETINE . ommeisinirsisss oo s O R R A s 37

LI 0 e 0 ) 0 S 5 m——.
2. Entertainment and Consumption Permit for Classes 1, 3 and 4

| 0 1 Ly = DU TSRO ORUOTRRTPRT 37
3. GAME PEIMIE coeooiiiecieee sttt e s en e e e e e essb e ee s e e e e seeerrernnneesens 38
4. SOlLEIOT PO comammersmms s o e i s i s e e 38
8. Outside Storage Permil .o spmrismmumsmmminasmssssamaemsosigmg 38

i



3-3

37

3-8

4-1
42

6. Alcolo]l PIrchise PETMIL. ..o s s g sivss s vose 39

7. Individual Enportation of Liguor Permit ..o 39

8. Minor Entertainment Permmiit ...........ccoiiriierrnreresee e snnsnes e 39

0, TTAAE SHOW c.vvieiecrieeeeeetieeeesirveeesseseeeaoteessassseeesasnsneesrsasnssansnesesreressasssseesinss 40

0708 22 vz 1= e S e T 40

V1, POt T AR ... ecsssossissionsssss ssssin T SS e onammsss s vescass someveeaurrmmscsd ST

LB e =) 0 T A o OO 40
License Fees, Permit Fees, Schedule ... 41
AL BASICTCE ..ottt st st st e s a e e n e s a e ae s n e e e r et et sbs RS e s e ann 41

B. Percentafe FEe ... .oumroresrororsssnssnsnsraranssssiiaisasmissssstsstosossidsivaisssasinins st ssinsios 43

(A 6511115111 )1 v SOOI e IS 43
License Fees: When Due; How Received...cowiimismmemmmmmissssmrerssssmsnses 43
A, Fees DUE, WHELL ..ot sttt eses et snserera s st en 43

B. Change to Higher Kind or Different Class .........c..cccocveniimnisnnansnsncnennsnnseeen 43

€. Changeto Lower Class of Kind... s 44

;. Potfeitireof Feon: WHEIL: s snassavmsssssesss s s wasso 44
Final Report, Payment of Fees Upon Transfer of LICense.....c.vcvvvviiicniccininns 44
A. Final Report and Percentage Fee by Transferor ........ooeeveerveinisnencencennene 44

B. Final Report and Percentage Fee by Transferee; When ..., 44
Gross Liquor Sales Report, Percentage Fee, Records, Payments...........cccoooiin 44
1 i —— 44

o I 71011 10 ) 111 DU —— 44

C. Percentage Fee Due; When ..o 45

D. Records and ACCOUDLS......cvivverierereeeeesieeeeeesiisessssssessesssessesreeebsiesssssmnneessns 45

B PYTEEIIES . oreor cmrnanmiesiod 6 0 S i 553 R R o OO U8 OB SOV 09 45
Direct Shipment of Wine by WIneries ... 45
THOUTS OF BUISITIESS «.eeevteemetreeieeieeiaieiieeeabessstaeeesrsessssansasaeennmeeeeanessessbbaasssass s s sannaesanans 47
AL RetAll DEALEIS .o v veeeeieeeeeeeesieeeeaeesetsssssssnsansnssnesnssessaseessmnsesasessentosssostnassasssiasans 47

B. Clubs, Dispensers, Restaurants, and Tour or Cruise Vessels..........ccoucniiee 47

O D TG, v s R T S A e T S VBB 47

D. Manufacturers and WholeSalerS.......ocveeeecerveenieirnreerrereeeessreesresimeeeeceesenes 47

E. Hotels, Condominium Hotels, and Transient Vessels........occoiinininiiinncns 47

. [TBLBIEER. .. commmssmsmmmorssmnsscesmpnpameanssnssmssmnr s R RS A Sai s sa vimaman sin vaasmo b
G SPECIAL..c.rvrcnsssnsurensscnsssiesnsssssssnsssnnssesensiossissssn sssssssssmmisrsssis st e rasasess ivave 47

H. Brewpubs, Wineries and Small Craft Pubs ... 47

PART IV. PROCEDURE FOR OBTAINING A LICENSE

BT T ST 111 U USRS —————— 48
LB TE = 1A L U —— 48
A TIOIIOS . oxcmssmonimarcrsmsensnsmamsmmesssstmsnmms e ssss s ssan s s amn i A TSR0 48
B PIIE BEB....coracmessrmmrssmansonniomeri 464 F S B s S R TR oTe 48
AN I (oo o | U RO RREEI R DRSS 48
D. Application Requilements ....uusawmsamemsssmmmsmsmsmmmmsssmssssanssensssmnss 48
E. Notice REQUITEMENTS . ..c.civciiiiiiiriircnees et 50

1t



4-3
4-4
4-5
4-6

4-7

4-8

5-1

5-2
5-3
54

5-5

5-6

F. Transfer APPHCALION ......ccveiecveuimeniiererrereetreeseise st 50

G. Tour or Cruise Vessel and Transient Vessel License Applicants ................. 51

H. Compliance With Federal, State and County Requirements...........c.o.......... 51

I Additions, Withdrawals ........cooviiiiiiiiiceeeeeee e 51

I Conversions, IMEIZEIS ..ooueirivirierice ettt seeae sttt ee e N2

K. Notice of Mailing t0 OWIETS ...........ccverermrmrnremnieseissesesiseeceses e s s 52

L. Final INSPECHION.......c.cueiiieiuiuiicceiiisiec e eenecscn e sttt ceene e s 55

M. Approval and Issuance of LICENSE ......coocverrnnirieiiiniiiiisie s seces e 54

N. IssiancenfCerfain Licenses by DIestor v e s 54

O. Publication Cost DEPOSIES .......cceviiieieieieiieeci et 54

P. PUDLC PIACE ...t O
(). TACBASEU PrOINISES iciissiinsssncssssommammsnrammmmareresssmnsasssssnsenssasassnnenssses seanssssssmmmmemes 54

B Condifions « s sammm i s ssmsssosss 54

8. MAanapeiient AGreemBnl o S s 54

T. Liquor Liability INSUFANCE .....c.cveirrreiriirisieiiice e s 55
TempPOrary LICENSE ........c..ooviviveiecieeeiieieeeeeic ettt 55
e I S T 56
205 RSP — AT horomrnrs 56
CEIGRNoNS Gl PariEiEBIPE v S S AT 56
A, Transfer of STOCKS ......coiiiiiiiiieireer e 56

B. Change of Corporate Officer Or DireCtor......cooovieierrceirrierees s 57

L2y ParinOrSHI e s sovmsvvssnoiummmesmesmos s trssiasisssers masnmn s ss A mRan SRR T AT SR ORRAEES 57

L. Dieath or Withdrmwal of Patiier s o amisiaimsimmse 57

2. Admission Of Partner .......ceccoeeiiiiiiceinecreeceve e 51

D. Admission or Withdrawal of Limited Partner.........coccoecccvviviceeeecciniveeenn, 57

E. General Notification ReqUITEMENtS ..........coceeeereerereresreriecoie e eeeeeieesee s, 57

G 1 | 58
A BRQUHCHIENIS o rummummsssomssssissssmusss oo i S T 8 5 RS 58

B. CONAItIONS ..ottt OO
Reduction or Increase in Licensed PremisSes.....cococevreriieeiiiiiiecneceeec s 59

PART V. GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO LICENSEES

EMPloyee RECOIAS.....c.cuiviiiiiiiiieeeecier ettt seee e 60
A. Registration of EMPIOYEES ......cooveveueereiieeieecetitetieeeeee et eeeeee e seeens 60
R e S S S 60
C. COMPENSATON. ......viireeeeeesm ettt s et s st es st v s eaeane 60
Person in Active Charge of Premises.....c.o.ivivecueeeoceeeeceeee e, 61
Annual Listing of Persons in Active Charge of Premises. ......cocovevvvvveeeenereeesneens 61
Conduct of Employees and Persons in Premises Licensed for
Consumption THEIEOM ...c.ouiuiiiiiieieiec ettt 62
Preparation Of DIINKS. .....cocoioreciicseseeee ettt 62
Al LOCAIIOM  cociitisiracrennreacnasnrsnssessesssssnessenesersssnsanssssessesasssssusnensons samsessansres vassssios 62
Bl OB sssmosmmmmmam oo s oo s S TAT I A Fi s o592 RSP SRR RSP 62
5ol sV el | VL U 62

iv



5-7

5-9

5-10
5-11
5-12
5-13

5-17

6-1

6-3
6-4

QUATILY OF LEQUOL 111 eereceieeeeucee ittt 63
PremiSes: CONGIIONS vurmreecsrrassrrsrramesaressessspsssonssonrsnssnserssnnsassssssasss sass isssissssnisasssess 63
. BNITHITES v eosmrrmsomansavsnsnsmrsnes ki V585 AT W ¥ ISR S ES S o S SO DO 0P 63
B. Aceessto Certaint Unlicensed Premiges .. s 63
C. RESLIOOIMS . ...coviviieireeeereitiereeeeie e e e st et sesein s s s b e sa s s s e b s nnans 63
Employee Required to-NMainfain OBAet ... mws-csssmsmsormummmsmmmrasssssssosmssmsasarssssssn 63
Possession of Liquor Laws and Other Required Documents ............cccomieieninnnicnn. 63
Temparary Clositig of Licetised PreiiiSes ... 64
Surrender of License Upon Revocation or Closing of Business, Inactive ................ 64
AQVETISEIMEINES .....veeeeueeeeseeeaese e e eeee et eueebetes e e sreneseeneeae s s e sne s s essannaseanssansnnen 64
A, AAVETTISEIMENE covvvvveeeveceiiscveeeeeeeeeeesesese e saeseseseseensssessensssseseresesensasseessness O
B EIGOE SETTABE, ...oommsmsmsmrsmsrsspmmuns s smonenind kb 5 45 455 oo ks i v A s e 0% 65
Tiads Naries: UnatithEiized USE wousomerossrimsmmessissin e misssssmimsasiisss oo 65
Sale of Tiquor Without aT-ieans. s s ssnmessssmssssmsmsss 65
TTAAE PrACHCES.....iivievceerieeeeieeaeei et siasesstsse st et et s see s s me e e scesseemeeeeas b s barssraanen 65
A, DISCOUNLS.....vevirervereerresemersisessssesssessesssessanssssssssassensessamssessssasassessasssssssessseses O
B. CiBhiity THSCOITS, oene seorsmmesesiiinis i et s e s i 65
O, Combination Papkmui. .. . commmsssutmmyionss s s s s s v 65
D. CONSUMET PrOMOMONS. .. .cveueerveriereesreeecrressescese s sssssien s st snsnenes 66
E. Stock, Rotate, PriCIIZ. ......cuccerrrerririeniiinee s sisesressrese s 66
F. Retail Licensee, SOLCIEAIONS ...ecveeerrierreesrie e ieceereeeeieenee s e ses e sasesnsnas 66
. Retail Licensee Solicitation EXEMPLIONS ... smsssssisssispsvisipsmsmonssissonion 66
Ticenizes, Buspendad or Inaotive. . cnsammmmrmansiommen s aessisosmomsss 67

PART VI. PROHIBITIONS

(ETIETAl ProNTDAIT OIS, i ssme s s e 5 od s s a0 s S S T 55 67
A, Liquor Shall Neot Be Sold or FUrDIShEM. .o mmmsmemmmsmssimmmmmsessmasass 67

B. Unlawful DiSCIAMINATION «.eeeeeeeeeivireeecassreesisvseresesreresssaessesssssssassssssssesemsneees 67

C. Disorderly Persons; Persons Under the Influence of Liquor..........cccooveeee 68

D. Minors in Licensed PremiSES . .....cocveoiiviiiiiiririesreeeeseeseresesseessesseseensessessessenes 08
LIl 2 L U ——— 68

2. Minor Patron in Retail Dealer’s Premises .....cocoovvveevvesierereesnsseeesneeeneens 68

B DI .. covsimnsssmmmsmsanssmmsrisssommassssnssssssnsrsssmsnmssi ikt Ehssas Ak AR A NS oS 68

4, Brertaitiient ane DO s mmmssim oo v essssss s v s s et vansossoss 68

o 01 1= i 1 OSSN 69

6. GHAITICS v eeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeiaeeeeesaassssaasesaaansesresnnesnasasnsessssesnssesssessesessesncsssesennes OO

7. COMEESES 1ot eereeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eetteeassbsensenseseessasssesasssesssnsersessessrneessessesaens OO

8. PR GHITRIINEE. .....consomarorrrmsossniit i S RS R i e s 69

O ProbiBHIONG . . consrivrmmmssssmessmis oS oo PR R s Tl s e 69

E. Business Practices; EXCEPHON...owuswmimsmmmisismsrommismsemmss sovarsserssssomssnssnss 69
Drive-In Retail Sales ProRIDITEA . .cooviieiiiereseereeereeesieeesiee et eeessieeeneesieeeseenseenaees 70
Practices to Promote Consumption of Liquor; Prohibited...........ccovioeeriiinn 70
IOTEBL ..o oeserresnsrmmnmmins s mensnss prpmen remmmes S D T T s sess 10
A Nolse Prhibilel cwmesammmmmam i s oaims s 70



I 0T L5011 LSRR
Zoning DiIstrictS.....oceereveerrvrerrerrnninenne reeeeenee e eereeseeneenart e eeseesaaaseene et seeneenenn
NolseLevels o cnmnmnmnnnnsrmmmnnrsnnan e ssem s
Violations, Land/Fixed PremiSes e es e sses s s s sivvvveseeee s
Violations, Vessels 1 TTANSIE covvccoiiiiiiriiieiirieiisrssiereeeiees s s sessssisssesssssans
Authority to Amend NOiSe Levels ..o
Authority to Impose CONAIIONS ......ovcvieeeerrries et seseenas

mQmmonw

PART VII. SEVERABILITY

S BTAIIIEG oore e mssarmsnsmmsnmmnsnnshanmsnbiass dmdb A4 AR AN A o s B

Vi



RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE LIQUOR COMMISSION
OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR CONTROL OF THE
COUNTY OF HAWAI‘L, STATE OF HAWAI‘L

Pursuant to and by virtue of the authority set forth in Chapter 281 and Chapter 91 of the Hawai'i
Revised Statutes, as amended, and Article VII, Chapter 3, and Section 13-7 of the Charter of the County
of Hawai‘i, the Liquor Commission of the Department of Liquor Control of the County of Hawai‘i, State
of Hawai‘i, adopts the rules and regulations of the Liquor Commission as hereafter provided.

Part 1. RULES OF PRACTICE

RULE1-1 DEFINITIONS. Words used in these rules and regulations in the singular, include the
plural, and vice versa; words of any gender include any other gender. Words defined in
Section 281-1 of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes. as amended. shall have the same meaning
wherever used herein.

“Adjudication Hearing” means a proceeding held pursuant to Section 281-91, Hawai‘i
Revised Statutes, as amended, in which it is proposed to revoke or suspend any license
issued, or assess and collect a penalty, or reprimand a licensee. The summary revocation
of any special license is not included within the scope of this term.

“Ambient Noise’”” means the totality of sounds in a given place and time, independent of
the sound contribution of the specific source being measured.

“Applicant” means a person who has filed any application for liquor license,
management agreement, permit or its like, for consideration by the Director or
Commission.

“Application” means the application or the required forms used in making the request
and any information contained therein for a liquor license, renewal or transfer thereof,
permit or the amendment of conditions placed on a license or a permit or any other
request or petition, and any other forms or documents which may be prescribed from time
to time by the Commission.

“Authorized Agent” means a person who is authorized in writing or in person by the
licensee or applicant to act for or be the representative of the licensee or applicant in

Commission or Board proceedings.

“Bartender’” means a person who prepares or mixes alcoholic drinks in accordance with
established recipes and procedures.

“Board’’ means the Liquor Control Adjudication Board of the County of Hawai‘i.



“Caterer’” means | e : e erClass 14
Brewwpub] any licensee who provides off-premises liquor service in connection with the
service of food at catered functions as provided in Section 281-31, Hawai‘i Revised

Statutes, as amended.

Iy v

“Commission” means the Liquor Commission of the County of Hawai‘i.
“County” means the County of Hawai‘i.

“dBA” means a unit or measurement of decibels at the “A” level. The “A” level is the
total level of all noise as measured with a sound level meter using the “A” weighing
network.

“dBC” means a unit or measurement of decibels at the “C” level. The “C” level is the
total level of all noise as measured with a sound level meter using the “C” weiching
network.

“Decibels” (dB) means the unit for measuring the volume of sound equal to 20 times the
logarithm to the base 10 of the ratio of the pressure of the sound measured to the
reference pressure, which is 20 micropascals (0.0002) dynes per square centimeter.

“Department” means the Department of Liquor Control of the County of Hawai‘i.

“Direct Shipment” means the transport of intoxicating liquors from a valid holder of a
manufacturer’s or wholesaler’s license within the State but not within the County of
Hawai‘i, to the holder of a valid liquor license authorized to resell such liquors in this
county. [Sueh-direet] Direct shipment is applicable to shipments on orders placed by
those holding valid solicitor’s permits; to pool buying agreements pursuant to law which
provides that liquor shipped may be retrieved by the licensee or a licensed common
carrier for delivery to the retail licensee.

“Director” means the Director of the Department of Liquor Control of the County of
Hawai‘i.

“Draught” or “Draft” beer means a product which has been packed in containers of one
gallon or more and is drawn from a tap or spigot, whether pasteurized or not, or beer
which is bottled or canned, and if not pasteurized, has been sterile filtered.

“Gratuitous or Purely Gratuitous” means costing nothing; free; not involving a return
benefit or compensation or consideration for anything.

“Host or Hostess”” means a person who is either compensated or not compensated and
allowed to sit with patrons, whether or not the individual, employee or entertainer is
consuming nonalcoholic beverages while in the company of patrons. The host or hostess
shall only be allowed to be employed or utilized under a Class 5 Dispenser,

Category [4]D, liquor license. In other classes licensed for consumption thereon, a host
or hostess shall be described as the person who greets and seats the patrons.

2



“Industry Member”” means any person engaged in business as a distiller, brewer,
rectifier, blender or other producer, or is an importer[-es], wholesaler, [includinga-Class

of suchaseney:| or retailer.

“Licensee” includes the holder of a license and all agents, servants, and employees of the
holder of a license.

“Liquor Card” means a card issued by the Department to a person in active charge of
the licensed premises, or to a person 18-20 years of age, who is deemed qualified by the
Department upon successful completion of an examination on liquor laws.

“Meeting” means the convening of the Commission or Board for which a quorum 18
required in order to deliberate and make decisions on matters over which the Commission
or Board has supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory power.

“Minibar” means an enclosed unit offering a selection of intoxicating liquors in its
original packages which is located in a hotel or condominium hotel guest room with
(a) access restricted by means of a locking device requiring the use of a key, magnetic
card or similar device, or (b) if there is no locking device installed, stocking of liquors
shall be permitted only at the specific request of the adult guest.

“New License or Original License” means a license which is issued for the first time.
The reference in liquor laws pertaining to applications for a new or original license
requires that the applicant follow application procedures pursuant to Sections 281-51 to
281-60 of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended.

““Noise”” means the presence of sound, as measured by standard testing devices, of a
volume or in quantities and for durations which endangers human health, welfare or
safety, or property, or which unreasonably interferes with the comfortable enjoyment of
life and property in the county.

“Off-Premises” means licensed premises which are authorized to sell liquors in their
original package for consumption off the premises.

“On-Premises License, Licensee, or Establishment’ means any license, licensee or
business authorized to sell liquors for consumption on the premises.

“Preliminary Hearing is used as an agenda subtitle to mean the first of two public
hearings held by the Liquor Commission on an application for a liquor license.

“Premises’’ or “Licensed Premises’” means the building and property that houses the
establishment for which a license has been or is proposed to be issued; provided that in
the case of a Class 12 Hotel license, “premises” includes the hotel premises; provided

3



turther that in the case of a Class 15 Condominium Hotel license, premises includes
apartments or units as defined in Section 514A-3 and Section 514B-3, Hawai'i Revised
Statutes, as amended, that are used to provide transient lodeing for periods of less than
thirty days under a written contract with the owner or owners of each unit in. and
common elements for access purposes as established by the declaration of condominium
property regime of the condominium hotel, and provided further that if an establishment
is in a retail shopping complex the businesses of which have formed a merchants
association, “premises” means the establishment. As used in this definition,
“establishment” means a single physical location where the selling of liquor takes place.

“Primary Liquor Service Area” means an area where the preponderance of sales is
derived from intoxicating liquors or is otherwise dominated by the presence of liquor.

“Product” includes distilled spirits, wine or malt beverages as defined in the Federal
Alcohol Administration Act.

“Property Owner” shall mean any owner and co-owner of record of real estate, lessee
and co-lessee of record, and/or any owner of record of shares in a cooperative apartment
situated within a distance of 500 feet of the proposed licensed premises.

“Public Hearing” is used as an agenda subtitle to mean the second and/or final public
hearing held by the Liquor Commission on an application for a liquor license, at which a
decision shall be made on the application.

“Resell or Authorized to Resell” means the authorization to sell liquors obtained from
valid holders of a manufacturer or wholesale dealer license to the general public which
authorization is granted to retail licensees holding a Class 2 [erClass4-through13ora
Class14] , Class 4 through 6. § through 16, or Class 18 liquor license as related to its
retail operation.

“Retail Licensee” means any licensee holding a Class 2[or Class<4-throush Class13] . 4
through 6. 8 through 13, or 15 license, and to a Class 1[-and], Class 14, Class 16 and
Class 18 license applicable only to its retail operations.

“Rule” or “Rules’” means the Rules and Regulations of the Liquor Commission which
have the force and effect of law.

“State” means the State of Hawai ‘1.

“Tour or Cruise Vessel” means any boat. tour or cruise boat which is home ported in
the county.

“Transient Vessel” means any cruise ship which temporarily docks within the county.

“Valid License” means a liquor license that has been issued in accordance with
Chapter 281 and has not been cancelled or revoked.



RULE 1-2

RULE 1-3

RULE 1-4

RULE 1-5

“Written’” or “Writing” includes printing, computer output and typewriting.

AUTHORITY. These rules governing practices and procedures before the Liquor
Commission of the County of Hawai‘i, are promulgated pursuant to Chapters 91, 92 and
281 of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and the Charter of the County of
Hawai‘i.

CONSTRUCTION OF RULES. The rules shall be liberally construed to secure the
just, speedy and inexpensive determination of every proceeding.

LIMITATION OF JURISDICTION. The jurisdiction of the Commission is limited to
those matters covered under the provisions of Chapters 91, 92, 244D, and 281 [and-244]
of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, the Charter of the County of Hawai‘i and
the Rules and Regulations of the Liquor Commission of the County of Hawai‘i.

MEETINGS. Regular meetings or rescheduled meetings of the Commission shall be
held on the first Thursday of each month [a+9:36-A-M-] in the Meeting Room of the
Department of Liquor Control, Hilo Lagoon Centre, 101 Aupuni Street, [Suite] Unit 230,
Hilo, Hawai‘i, or at the West Hawai‘i Civic Center, 74-5044 Anekeohokalole Highway,
Building B, 2nd Floor, Kailua-Kona, Hawai'i, or other public place announced in
advance; provided, however, that the date and time may be changed for the convenience
of the public if announced at a regular meeting. All meetings shall be conducted
according to Chapter 91, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and Robert’s Rules of
Order Newly Revised.

A quorum is required in order for the Commission to take any action. A quorum is
defined as the majority of the members to which the Commuission is entitled.

Meeting agendas shall include all of the items to be considered by the Commission. Said
agenda shall be on file at the office of the County Clerk or its designated notice site, as
well as at the office of the Department of Liquor Control for inspection at least [six{6}] 6
days before the meeting. Additionally, agendas for meetings held at locations other than
the office of the Department shall be posted at the meeting site on the day of the meeting.
The Commission shall not add items to the agenda, once filed, without a [ewo-thirds] 2/3
recorded vote of all members to which the Commission is entitled, provided that no item
shall be added to the agenda in the manner provided herein if the item is of substantial
and significant interest which may affect the public.

A special meeting may be called when the date, time and place are announced prior to
adjournment of a regular meeting; otherwise a special meeting can be called only upon
publication of a notice of such meeting in a newspaper of general circulation in this
County at least [twenty—four] 24 hours in advance of such meeting. If the requirement for
publication of notice cannot be met because of insufficient time, the meeting notice shall
be made by broadcasting a minimum of three announcements in the English language
over FCC licensed public radio stations in this County or television stations with local
audience. Such announcements shall be broadcast [exertyteur2-43] 24 hours in
advance of such meeting and shall be programmed to be heard between the hours of

5



RULE 1-6

7:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. Notice of such special meeting shall also be posted on the
bulletin board of the County Building in East and West Hawai ‘i.

HEARINGS. All parties of standing shall be afforded an opportunity for hearing after
reasonable notice.

A.

NOTICE. The notice shall include a statement of the date, time, location and nature
of the hearing, the legal authority under which the hearing is held, where applicable,
and the particular sections of statute or rule involved or specific description of the
application before the Commission.

FILING APPLICATIONS, WHEN. All applications for licenses and permits or
other requests requiring Commission approval shall be submitted at least 30 days
prior to the desired meeting date, together with all required documents, except as
otherwise provided. Such applications shall be processed in the order of receipt by
the Department. Failure to comply with provisions of this rule may cause a delay in
scheduling the application for a hearing or delay obtaining approval of the application
by a particular date.

NOTICE, APPLICATIONS, ADJUDICATIONS. Except as otherwise provided
by law, in any proceeding involving an application for the issuance or transfer of a
license by the Commission or the revocation or suspension of a license or other
disciplinary action by the Commission or Board, which by law is required to be
determined after an opportunity for a hearing, the following shall apply:

1. The applicant or licensee shall be notified in writing of the hearing and such
notice shall conform with Chapter 91 and Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes,
as amended, and shall be furnished to the applicant not less than 48 hours before
such hearing unless otherwise waived by the applicant or licensee in cases related
to late applications.

2. The determination shall be subject to such limitations or standards as may be
prescribed by law,

3. If the Commission or Board decides in favor of the applicant or licensee, the
applicant or licensee shall be notified of such decision promptly.

4. If the Commission or Board renders an adverse decision to any applicant or
licensee, said decision shall be in writing in the form of a Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law, and the applicant or licensee shall be served with a certified
copy of same within a reasonable time.

SEPARATE HEARINGS. Except as otherwise provided by law, applications for
liquor licenses shall be heard at [#we] 2 separate hearings, a preliminary hearing and a
public hearing, and are noted on the agenda as such. Both hearings are open to the
public.

STIPULATIONS. Except as otherwise provided by law, any of the foregoing
procedures may be modified or waived by stipulation of the parties and informal




RULE 1-7

F.

dispositions may be made of any contested case by stipulation, agreed settlement,
consent order, or default.

JUDICIAL REVIEW. Judicial review shall be as provided by law.

PROTESTS. No protest against the granting of a liquor license shall be considered by
the Commission unless such protest is filed in accordance with this rule.

A.

Oral or written protests shall be filed with the Commission at or before the
preliminary hearing and/or the public hearing.

The protest shall designate the application for which the protest is being filed.

Each person whose written protest is to be considered shall date, print name and sign
such protest. Separate signatures are required for each spouse, co-owner or co-lessee
filing a protest. Protests by owners or lessees of real estate or owners of record of
shares in a cooperative apartment shall include the tax map key(s) and unit number(s).

when applicable. on the letter or petition of protest.

The protest shall contain the name and address of each person submitting a protest.

Each person submitting a protest shall indicate whether such person is a registered
voter for the area within five hundred feet of the nearest point at which the applicant
proposes to establish or continue the business under the license applied for, or
whether such person is an owner or lessee of record of real estate, or is the owner of
record of shares in a cooperative apartment situated within a distance of [fve
hundred] 500 feet from the nearest point of the premises for which a license is asked,
or both.

A protest filed by a person who is not a property owner or is not a registered voter
within 500 feet of the proposed licensed premises shall indicate the nature of the
protestor’s interest. These protests shall not be included in the calculation of a [ferty]
40 percent protest affecting an automatic refusal pursuant to Section 281-39.5,
Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, or in the calculation of a majority protest
affecting an automatic refusal of an application pursuant to Section 281-59, Hawai‘i
Statutes, as amended.

. When a protest against an application for a liquor license is duly filed by a property

owner who owns more than one parcel of real estate within 500 feet of the proposed
licensed premises, such protest shall be applicable and counted for each parcel held
within 500 feet of the proposed premises.

. When the property owner within 500 feet of the proposed premises is held by a trust,

protests may be filed by [each] the named trustee of record.

Protests to an application may be submitted in the form of a petition provided that the
petition shall be filed in its original form and shall clearly identify the application for

7



which the protest is being filed, include a statement indicating opposition to the
application, and the reasons for the protests. The petition shall be legible and shall
include the following:

1. The printed name, signature and address of the protestor; and
Information whether the protestor is an owner or lessee of record of real estate or
owner of record of shares in a cooperative apartment within 500 feet of the
premises and/or is a registered voter within 500 feet of the premises. The
coordinator of the petition shall file an affidavit that the contents of the petition
are true and correct. If any of the contents of the petition are found to be
incomplete, untrue or incorrect, the Commission may, by its own motion, declare
that portion of the petition to be invalid and shall determine which protests shall
be void or it may declare the entire petition to be invalid.

A protest which is incomplete or not legible shall be invalid.

In any application where there are significant numbers of protests[;] or issues that
require verification, the Commission may delay decision-making on the application
pending verification of the protests|-] or issues. The Commission may, by its own
motion, close the public hearing, and in such instance, no further public testimony
including protests shall be admitted. The Commission may, by its own motion,
re-open the hearings. The Commission shall schedule a hearing date at which the
decision shall be made[:] within 90 days after the hearing or within 120 days upon
proper public notice.

Pursuant to Section 281-59, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended. an application

shall be automatically refused if:

L

For purposes of defining

The majority of owners or lessees of record of real estate, or owners of record of
shares in a cooperative apartment situated within a distance of [five-hundred]

500 feet from the nearest point of the premises for which a license is asked have
filed protests against the granting the license; or

The majority of registered voters within a distance of [five-hundred] 500 feet from
the nearest point of the premises for which a license is asked have filed protests
against the granting of the license.

5

‘a majority of owners and lessees of record of real estate

and owners of record of shares in a cooperative apartment,” each property counts only
once[-], excluding roadways. A protest submitted by the majority of the co-owners or
the majority of the co-lessees of a property shall constitute a protest by all the OWners

or lessees of record of that property. [

nroanarfir Mo o

property-may-count-each-property-

For purposes of this section, majority protests by registered voters shall be based on
the current voter registration list as of the published date of the final public hearing,



RULE 1-8

RULE 1-9

M. Pursuant to Section 281-39.5, Hawai ‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, an application
for a license which allows the sale, service and consumption of liquors on the
premises within 500 feet of a public or private elementary, intermediate or high
school or public playground utilized extensively by minors shall be antomatically
refused if:

1. [Eexty] 40 percent of owners or lessees of record of real estate, or owners of
record of shares in a cooperative apartment situated within a distance of [f+e
huadred] 500 feet from the nearest point of the premises for which a license is
asked have filed protests against the granting the license; or

2. [Ferty] 40 percent of the registered voters within a distance of [#ve-hundred] 500
feet from the nearest point of the premises for which a license is asked have filed
protests against the granting of the license.

N. The protest list shall be available to the applicant and any protestor for review. All
applicants and protestors may submit corrections, additions, and subtractions to the
master list and the protest list at the public hearings[-], provided that additions or
corrections to the voter registration list shall be certified by the clerk of the county.
The Commission shall rule on proposed corrections, additions, and subtractions and
give reasons for the ruling upon sufficient proof thereof.

VOTING. All matters shall be determined by an affirmative vote of the majority of the
membership to which the Commission is entitled. If the Commission is unable to
approve, deny or render a decision on any item and no other motions regarding the matter
are passed, the matter shall be considered to be denied.

Unless a member is disqualified or excused from voting, their silence or refusal to vote
shall be recorded as an affirmative vote for the motion on the floor.

PETITION FOR REHEARING.

A. An applicant desiring a rehearing after an application for a license, permit or other
request has been refused by the Commission, may file a petition for rehearing. Said
petition shall be filed within 15 days from the date on which the notice of refusal is
sent to said applicant and/or licensee.

B. The petition shall allege facts and grounds for consideration which are newly
discovered or mistake of facts, or any other matter of fact which may in the judgment
of the Commission, be deemed sufficient to warrant a rehearing.

C. The petition shall be in writing and submitted in [eght] 12 copies to the office of the
Department.

D. If the Commjssion decides in favor of the petitioner it shall fix a day for a public

-‘%‘“tcié—%fy—*td-@--ﬁ%&'{-ﬁ% y-publication '}rplhﬁ%l—ﬁ%@‘&&t‘h%—g‘g'—q{“ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ—*‘% ‘!-é«;—ﬂ.w%
Notice of the hearing shall Le given to the petitioner. The Commission shall

0




RULE 1-10

determine to whom and the manner in which notice shall be provided and petitioner
shall be responsible for the cost of mailing. The notice shall be mailed at least 30 days
prior to the public hearing and the petitioner shall provide an accountable mailing
form or like document verified by the United States Postal Service. The publication
of notice and notice provided to interested parties shall state the name and address of
the petitioner, a statement of the position or contention of the petitioner, and the date,
time and place of the hearing. The petitioner shall deposit a fee equal to the cost of

publication of notice and notice[-+te-etherpersons-affected by-said-petition].

If the Commission decides to refuse a petition for rehearing, it shall issue an
appropriate Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision and Order. The
Commission shall, within a reasonable time, send a certified copy thereof to the
petitioner.

A petition for rehearing by an applicant whose application has been refused pursuant
to (1) protests filed by the majority of property owners within 500 feet of the nearest
point of the premises or by the majority of registered voters within 500 feet of the
nearest point of the premises, or (2) protests filed by [ferty] 40 percent of owners or
lessees of record of real estate, or owners of record of shares in a cooperative
apartment or by [forty] 40 percent of the registered voters within a distance of [five
hundred] 500 feet from a private elementary, intermediate or high school or public
playground utilized extensively by minors, shall be restricted to facts or grounds
which are directly related to the protests filed and/or its verification thereof as
provided in Section 281-59, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended.

. Any interested person aggrieved by the decision of the Commission may file a

petition for rehearing and shall file said petition within 15 days from the date of the
decision, provided that such interested person shall have been a participant of record
in the public hearing process of the application. The petition for rehearing shall be
filed in the form and substance as contained in this rule.

PUBLIC INFORMATION. The public may obtain information as to matters within the
jurisdiction of this Commission by inquiring at:

A.

The office of the Lieutenant Governor of the State of Hawai‘i where there are on file
all rules of the Commission; or

. The office of the Clerk of the County of Hawai‘i where there are on file all rules of

the Commission; or

The office of the Department, where all rules, order, forms, permits or opinions of the
Commission are available for public inspection. Copies of documents are available to
the public at a price to be fixed by the Department or the County to cover mailing and
publication costs.

Pursuant to Chapter 92F, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, any person may
inspect public records. Such inquiries may be made in person at the Department

10



during regular business hours, or by submitting a request for information in writing to
the Department. Requests for copies of records shall be distributed in a timely
manner and upon payment of the fixed cost as provided by County ordinance.

RULE 1-11 ADOPTION, AMENDMENT OR REPEAL OF RULES.

A. PETITION. Any interested person may petition the Commission to request the
adoption, amendment or repeal of any rule of the Commission and shall file the
petition at the office of the Department. The petition shall be typewritten, submitted
in [etght] 12 copies and shall include:

1 A statement of the nature of the petitioner’s interest.
A draft of the substance of the proposed rule or amendment or a designation of
the provision sought to be repealed.

3. An explicit statement of the reasons in support of the proposed rule, amendment
or repeal. '

4. The name, address and telephone number of each petitioner.

5. The signature of the petitioner.

The petition shall be filed 30 days prior to the Commission hearing date which is held
the first Thursday of each month, except as otherwise scheduled, at the office of the
Department. Any petition which does not conform to the foregoing requirements
may be rejected. The Commission shall, within a reasonable time after the
submission of the petition, either deny the petition in writing, stating its reason for
such denial, or initiate proceedings in accordance with Chapter 91, Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes, as amended, for the adoption, amendment or repeal of the rule, as the case
may be.

B. PROCEDURES. Prior to the adoption, amendment or repeal of the Rules and
Regulations of the Liquor Commission, the Commission shall:

1. Give at least 30 days notice for a public hearing. Such notice shall include a
statement of the substance of the proposed rule, the date, time and place of the
hearing. The notice, together with the proposed rule for adoption, amendment or
repeal, shall be distributed to all licensees and to all persons who have made a
timely written request to the agency for advance notice of its rule-making
proceedings. Any interested person may request a copy of the proposed rule to be
adopted, amended or repealed. The proposed rules, in entirety or in summary
form, shall be published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in East
and West Hawai‘i.

2. Afford all interested persons the opportunity to submit data, views or arguments,
orally or in writing. The Commission may make its decision at the public hearing
or announce a date as to when it intends to make a decision. Upon the adoption,
amendment or repeal of a rule, the Commission shall, if requested to do so by an
interested person, issue a concise statement of the principal reasons for and
against its determination.

11



The Commission may amend its rules as originally presented after a public hearing.
However, if the amendments to the rules amount to substantial changes as presented
at the public hearing, then a new public hearing may be required.

A rule which has been adopted, amended or repealed, upon the approval of the Mayor
of the County, shall become effective [¢er] 10 days after the filing with the County
Clerk; provided that where there is an adoption or amendment to the liquor license fee
structure, the approval of the County Council of the County of Hawai‘i shall also be
required.

RULE 1-12 DECLARATORY RULING BY COMMISSION.

A. Any interested person may petition the Commission for a declaratory order as to the
applicability of any statute, ordinance or of any rule or order of the Commission. The
petitioner shall be assessed a fee equal to the cost of publishing the notice of public
hearing in a newspaper of general circulation.

B. The petition shall be typewritten and submitted in [eizht] 12 copies and shall contain:

1. The name, residence address, and telephone number of the petitioner.

A statement of the nature of petitioner’s interest, including reasons for the
submission of the petition.

A designation of the specific statute, ordinance, rule or order in question.
A complete statement of facts.

A statement of the position or contention of the petitioner.

A memorandum of authorities, containing a full discussion of the reasons,
including any legal authorities, in support of such position or contention.
7. The signature of the petitioner.

b

Py A g L

C. Any petition which does not conform to the foregoing requirements may be rejected.

D. The Commission may, for good cause, refuse to issue a declaratory ruling. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Commission may so refuse where:

1. The question is speculative or purely hypothetical and does not involve existing
fact or facts which can reasonably be expected to exist in the near future.

2. The petitioner’s interest is not of the type which would give the petitioner
standing to maintain an action if the petitioner were to seek judicial relief.

3. The issuance of the declaratory ruling may adversely affect the interests of the
State and/or County of Hawai ‘i, the Commission or any of their officers or
employees in any litigation which is pending or may reasonably be expected to
arise.

4. The matter is not within the jurisdiction of the Commission.

12



RULE 1-13

E. Where any question of law is involved, the Commission may refer the matter to the
Corporation Counsel. The Commission may also obtain the assistance of other
agencies, where necessary or desirable.

F. The Commission shall consider each petition submitted and, within a reasonable time
thereof, either deny the petition in writing, stating its reason for the denial, or issue a
declaratory order on the matters contained in the petition.

G. Orders disposing of petitions shall have the same status as other Commission orders.
Orders shall be applicable only to the fact situation alleged in the petition or set forth
in the order. They shall not be applicable to different fact situations or where
additional facts not considered in the order exist.

APPEAL TO THE LIQUOR COMMISSION.

A. Where a licensee is aggrieved by a decision of the Director the licensee may file an
appeal. The appeal shall be in writing and submitted in [eight] 12 copies at least 30
days prior to the first Thursday of each month and shall contain:

The name, residence and mailing address, and telephone number of the appellant;
A statement of the nature of appeal;

A designation of the specific statute, rule, order or decision in question;

A complete statement of facts;

A statement of the position or contention of the appeal;

A memorandum of authorities, containing a full discussion of the reasons,
including any legal authorities, in support of such position or contention; and,

7. The signature of the appellant.

Gy s b

B. Any appeal which does not conform to the foregoing requirements may be rejected by
the Commission.

C. The Commission may, for good cause, refuse to consider the appeal. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Commission may so refuse where:

1. The question is speculative or purely hypothetical and does not involve existing
fact or facts which can reasonably be expected to exist in the near future.

2. The issuance of a ruling may adversely affect the interests of the State and/or
County of Hawai‘i, the Commission or any of their officers or employees in any
litigation which is pending or may reasonably be expected to arise.

3. The matter is not within the jurisdiction of the Commission.

D. The Commission shall consider each appeal submitted and, within a reasonable time
thereof, set a date for hearing such appeal. Notice of the hearing shall be given to the
appellant at least [twe] 15 days before the date of the hearing. Notice of the
Commission’s decision shall be given to the licensee within [+5] 90 days of such
hearing.

13



RULE 1-14

RULE 1-15

RULE 1-16

FILING COMPLAINTS. Any aggrieved party may file a complaint with the
Commission relative to any provision of the license or a permit, provided that such
complaint shall be within the jurisdiction of the Commission in accordance with
Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and the rules. When a complaint
may result in a violation of liquor law, the complaint may be referred to the Department
for action.

The complaint shall be in writing and filed at the office of the Department and shall
indicate the name of the licensed premises, the nature of the complaint together with any
other facts for consideration by the Commission. The Commission shall conduct a
hearing in accordance with Chapter 91 of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and
disposition of such complaint shall be in accordance with the powers and jurisdiction
granted to the Commission.

CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE. Any act contrary to Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes, as amended, the Rules and Regulations of the Liquor Commission, or a Decision
and Order of the Liquor Commission or the Liquor Control Adjudication Board, whether
committed on or off the licensed premises, which is directly related to the business of the
licensed premises, shall be cause for hearing before the Commission or Adjudication
Board. Upon a proper hearing thereof, a licensee shall be subject to disciplinary action in
accordance to law.

HEARINGS, AMENDING CONDITIONS.

A. Where the Commission has placed conditions on a license or permit, the [apphicant]
licensee or interested party of record may file an application to the Commission to
amend such conditions. No application shall be accepted until [+86-days] one year
after the effective date of the Commission’s original decision.

B. The application shall be in writing and submitted in [eight] 12 copies and shall
contain:

1. The name, address and telephone/facsimile number of the licensee.
A statement of the current condition imposed by the Commission.

3. A statement of the proposed request, together with any facts or evidence in
support of such request.

4. A memorandum of authorities, containing a full discussion of the reasons,
including any legal authorities, in support of such position or contention.

5. The signature of the applicant.

C. The Commission may reject the application when there is no new evidence to support
the request or when the application does not conform to the foregoing requirements.

D. Upon acceptance of the application to amend a license or condition, the Commission

shall fix a day for a public hearing and may set forth the conditions of notice and
publication.

14



RULE 1-17

RULE 1-18

E.

When such applications may negatively affect the neighborhood or if the
neighborhood has previously filed protests or concerns, the Commission shall
determine to whom and the manner in which notice and publication shall be provided
by the applicant. The notice shall set forth the date, time and place of the hearing, a
statement of the current restrictions or conditions placed on the license, the proposed
amendment to the restriction, and the manner in which protests may be filed pursuant
to Rule 1-7.

[Seeh]When an applicant is required to provide notice to the neighborhood. the notice
shall be mailed at least 45 days prior to the public hearing. If the Commission
requires publication, notices shall be published at least once in a newspaper of general
circulation in the area where the license is located which is published in the English
language. The applicant shall file an affidavit of mailing and an Accountable Mailing
form or like document as verified by the U.S. Postal Service at least 10 days prior to
the hearing indicating that notices have been mailed in compliance with this rule.

The applicant shall deposit a fee equal to the cost of publication.

Pursuant to Section 281-59, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, the provisions for
majority protests by property owners or registered voters within 500 feet of the
premises which requires an automatic refusal of the application shall not be
applicable to this kind of application.

If the application is denied, no further application shall be considered for one year
from the date of denial.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. The Director may require the applicant or
licensee to provide written authorization for any other individual to represent the
applicant or licensee before the Commission or Board. When a representative of the
applicant/licensee appears in a proceeding before the Commission or Board, that personal
appearance shall constitute a representation that such individual is lawfully authorized
and qualified to act on behalf of the applicant/licensee. It is the responsibility of the
applicant to ensure that the authorized representative is fully aware of the proposed
operations and is able to respond to inquiries from the Commission and the public. The
inability of the representative to provide satisfactory responses shall be cause for the
Commission to continue the hearing.

FURTHER APPLICATIONS.

A.

[Pursuantto-Seeh 3 Rewvit =pded;+] If an applicant
for an original application, including a transfer application for a Class 5 or Class 11
license, has, at any time been denied or refused a license, the Commission shall not
consider another application submitted by the applicant for the same premises,
building location or site location, for one year from the date of denial or refusal[:] and
the next application shall comply with the provisions of Section 281-60. Hawai‘i
Revised Statutes, as amended.

o r o g .
" 3 (= [ 05 TS

15



RULE 2-1

For purposes of this rule, “applicant” shall mean all persons identified in the original
application, including stockholders of a corporation, partners of a general partnership,
limited liability parinership or limited partnership, or members and managers of a
limited liability company. “Building location” shall mean the structure or site of any
proposed licensed premises for which the original application was denied or refused.

B. If an application pertaining to a particular premises or building location is denied,
refused or withdrawn, the next application from any applicant for that premises or
building location shall include a report prepared by the applicant evidencing a
substantial change in the circumstances that caused the previous denial, refusal, or
withdrawal.

C. In complying to provisions of this section, an applicant for a liquor license shall
obtain from the Department copies of minutes and protests or concerns known to the
Department, from which confidential information has been removed, related to the
application which was denied or refused, and shall submit a report evidencing a
substantial change in the circumstances which caused the original denial, refusal or
withdrawal. [Said]The report and relevant documents shall be submitted in [eight] 12
copies to the Department at least 10 days prior to the preliminary hearing.

PART II. COMMISSION, BOARD, DIRECTOR

LIQUOR COMMISSION. There shall be a Liquor Commission consisting of [aine] 9
members who shall be appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council in the
manner prescribed in Section 13-4, of the County Charter, County of Hawai‘i. One
member shall be a resident of each council district.

A. The Liquor Commission shall:

1. Adopt rules and regulations having the force and effect of law for the
administration of liquor control in the county, incorporate and carry out
provisions of the liquor control laws of the State.

2. Grant, renew or refuse applications for licenses for the manufacture, importation
and sale of liquor in the county under applicable laws and regulations.

3. Have such other powers and duties as may be provided by law, not in conflict
with the provisions of Section 7-3.2 of the Charter.

4. Designate a chairperson and vice chairperson by the affirmative vote of a majority
of all members of the Commission, whose term shall be from January to
December. In the absence of the chairperson and vice chairperson, the most
senior member will preside.

5. Transact business only when a majority of the members are present at the
meeting, and who constitute a quorum.

B. Any Decision and Order of the Commission shall have the force and effect of law.
Violations of such Decision and Order shall be subject to disciplinary action.

16



RULE 2-2

RULE 2-3

C. In addition to powers provided by law, the Commission shall have the power to:

1. Conduct hearings, regulate the course and conduct of the hearing and issue
notices;

2. Administer oaths and affirmations as administered by the presiding chairperson;

3. [Fe-conselidate] Consolidate or sever proceedings; provided that those actions
shall be conducive to the ends of justice and shall not unduly delay the
proceedings or hinder, harass or prejudice any party;

4. [Tesubpeena] Subpoena or compel the attendance of witnesses and to examine
witnesses;

5. [Feseeceive] Receive evidence, and to exclude evidence which is irrelevant,
immaterial, unduly repetitious or cumulative, and accordingly, may restrict lines
of questioning or testimony, except that the Commission or Board and each
member thereof shall not be bound by the strict rules of evidence;

6. [Toremeove] Remove disruptive individuals; and

7. [Fo-rale] Rule on motions and dispose of procedural matters.

D. The Commission shall also have the power to:

1. Enact emergency rules in the event of national, State or local emergency, for the
health, safety or welfare of the public or the protection of life and property for the
duration of the emergency;

2. Prescribe by rule, the conditions of employment of all classes of licenses; and

3. [Es-set] Set conditions on licenses and permits, including hours of operation, and
to prescribe by rule, the procedure to amend such conditions.

LIQUOR CONTROL ADJUDICATION BOARD. There shall be a Liquor Control
Adjudication Board consisting of [five] 5 members who shall be appointed by the Mayor
and confirmed by the Council in the manner prescribed in Section 13-4, of the County
Charter, County of Hawai‘i. The Liquor Control Adjudication Board shall hear and
determine all complaints regarding violations of the liquor control laws of the State, or
complaints regarding violations of rules and regulations established by the Liquor
Commission and impose such fines or punishment as may be provided by law upon the
conviction thereof.

In accordance with Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and the Charter
of the County of Hawai‘i, the Liquor Control Adjudication Board is granted the authority
to hear all matters involving a violation of the liquor laws and to take appropriate action
against a licensee in accordance with Section 281-91, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as
amended, and the Charter of the County of Hawai‘i. The Board shall be authorized to
adopt its Rules of Practice and Procedures in accordance with the Charter of the County
of Hawai‘i. Any Rule or Decision and Order of the Board shall have the force and effect
of law. Violations of such Rule or Decision and Order shall be subject to disciplinary
action.

DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR CONTROL. The Director of
the Department of Liquor Control shall be appointed by the Commission and may be

17



RULE 3-1

removed by the Commission[-] in accordance with the provisions of Section 7-3.4(a) of
the Hawai‘i County Charter. The Director of the Department of Liquor Control shall:

A.

B.

Be the administrative head of the department.

Provide clerical and administrative services for and on behalf of the Commission and
the Board, including the submission of a budget for the operation of the Department.

. Investigate complaints regarding violations of the liquor control laws of the State or

complaints regarding violations of rules and regulations established by the
Commission and report such violations to the prosecuting officer of the County,
provided that the Director shall be authorized to subpoena any witnesses or records
for the purpose of an investigation where there is a cause to believe that a violation of
liquor laws has occurred.

Be authorized to enact emergency rules in the event of national, state or local
emergency, for the health, safety or welfare of the public or the protection of life and
property. Such emergency rule may be adopted without notice of hearing or
publication and shall be subject to the approval of the Mayor and shall be in effect for
the duration of the emergency.

Be authorized to designate a portion of fine monies collected for use in programs to
promote compliance to liquor laws. Such programs may include, but is not limited to
enforcement, public service announcements promoting responsible drinking and
driving, youth programs and education.

PART III. LICENSES, PERMITS, FEES, HOURS

LICENSES, CLASSES.

A.

GENERAL. It shall be unlawful for any person not having a valid license to
manufacture, import or sell any liquor. Licenses may be granted by the Liquor
Commission as provided in Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and
the Rules of the Commission. Licenses granted in this County shall permit the
licensee to conduct business only in this County, except as otherwise provided by
law.

. CLASS 1. MANUFACTURER LICENSE. A license for the manufacture of liquor

shall authorize the licensee to manufacture the liquor therein specified and to sell [the

same-at-whelesale] it in original packages to any [perser]| wholesaler who holds a

license to resell the same, and to sell draught beer[-s+}, wine or other specified liquor
manufactured or distilled on the licensee’s premises [manufactared] from [srapes-or
othes] fruits or other products grown in the State, in any quantity to any person for
private use and consumption which retail sale shall be conducted only on the

manufacturer’s licensed premises.

18



Under this license no liquor shall be consumed on the premises except as authorized
by the Commission or Director. Requests for consumption of liquor may be
submitted for special events such as a grand opening or anniversaries, which shall be
purely gratuitous to patrons, and requests for live music and entertainment at these
special events may be submitted for approval.

Requests for product tasting of the manufactured liquor on the manufacturer’s
premises may be approved by the Commission during the public hearing on the
application for a liquor license. The approval shall be valid for the term of the license
held by the licensee and shall not be transferable. Product tastings shall be restricted
to the licensed premises in an area set aside for such tastings. Tastings shall be
restricted to adult patrons provided that the licensee shall ensure that consumption
shall not be cause for intoxication.

An Application for Product Tasting shall be submitted for product tastings to be
conducted outside of the manufacturer’s licensed premises. Tastings on retail
licensed premises are prohibited except when such functions are part of a trade show,
special license or for private functions. The application and the conduct of such
tastings shall be in accordance to Rule 3-2-D-11.

Of this class there shall be the following kinds:

1. Beer;
2. Wine;
3. Alcohol;

4. Other specified liquor.

All manufacturers shall keep separate and distinct records of account wherein shall be
entered the name of the licensee, license number, place of business, the day, month
and year in which the sale [as] is made and the quantity and price of liquor sold to
each licensee. It shall be unlawful for any holder of a manufacturer’s license to
acquire or hold any interest whatsoever in the license or licensed premises of any
[retail-or-brewpublother license. This subsection shall not prevent the holder of a
manufacturer license under this chapter or under the law of another jurisdiction from
maintainine_ any interest in the license or licensed premises of a wholesale dealer
licensee under this chapter.

A manufacturer of beer or wine or other specified liquors who conducts retail sales to
persons for private use and consumption shall be required to have an authorized
person in active charge of the premises on duty pursuant to Rule 5-2.

C. CLASS 2. RESTAURANT LICENSE.

1. A license under this class shall authorize the licensee to sell liquors herein
specified for consumption on the premises, except that a restaurant licensee may
provide off premises catering which shall permit the licensee to provide liquor for
sale and consumption at the catered premises while performing food catering
functions. The catering activity shall be directly related to the licensee’s

19



operation as a restaurant[-] provided that the Director shall be authorized to
establish the perimeter and consumption area for the catered nremises for the sale
service and consumption of liquor. The licensee shall obtain a certificate of
approval from the Director for each catering function in accordance with the
pertinent provisions of Rule 3-1-N-2.

L3

A licensee who fails to meet the requirement where [thirty] 30 percent of the
establishment’s gross revenues of food and liquor is derived from food sales shall
be prohibited from catering liquor off premises until such time that said
requirement has been re-established.

A licensee under this class shall be issued a license according to the category of
establishment the licensee owns or operates. The categories of establishment
shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar: premises in which recorded music is permitted; or

B. A premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided
and/or facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided
in the subcategories listed herein:
1. A premises in which recorded music and live entertainment are
~ provided;
2. A premises in which recorded music, live entertainment and dancing

are provided.

If a licensee under Class 2 desires to change the category of establishment the
licensee owns or operates, the licensee shall apply for a new license applicable to
the category of the licensee’s establishment.

For each category of Class 2 licenses there shall be the following kinds:
1. General (includes all liquors except alcohol);
2. Beer and wine;
3. Beer.

Notwithstanding Section 281-57. Hawai‘i Revised Statutes. as amended. the

Commission may approve at one public hearing and without notice the change to
a Class 2 Restaurant License by a Class 5 Dispenser License who meets the
requirements of a Class 2 license.

Whenever a licensee is authorized to provide dancing by patrons, each area where
dancing will be provided shall contain no less than 100 square feet and shall not
obstruct the normal flow of traffic.

20



; ol . . oo : e 15 .y
available tosellthewhelesaler s br fdranshtbeer| A license for the sale of
liguors at wholesale shall authorize the licensee to import and sell only to licensees or
to others who are by law authorized to resell the liquor specified by the license but are
not by law required to hold a license provided that a Class 3 licensee may sell
samples of liguor back to the manufacturer.

Under [thelieense] a Class 3 license no liquor shall be consumed on the premises
except as authorized by the Commission or Director. Requests for consumption of
liquor may be submitted for product tastings or special events such as a grand
opening or anniversaries which shall be purely gratuitous to patrons, and that requests
for live music and entertainment at these special events may be submitted for
“approval.

Of this class there shall be the following kinds:
1. General (includes all liquors except alcohol);
2. Beer and wine;

3. Alcohol.

If any wholesale dealer solicits or takes any orders in any county other than that
where the dealer’s place of business is located, the orders may be filled only by
shipment direct from the county in which the wholesale dealer has the dealer’s
license. Nothing [herein]in this subsection shall prevent a wholesaler from selling
liquors to post exchanges, ships service stores, [army-ernavy-officers’| clubs, or like
organizations located on [aspry-ersewy|military reservations, or to any vessel other
than vessels performing a regular water transportation service between any two or
more ports in the State, or to aviation companies who operate an aerial transportation
enterprise [as-a-ceommon-carrier,under|subject to Chapter 269, Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes, as amended, and engaged in regular flight passenger services between any
two or more airports in the State for use on aircraft, or aviation companies engaged in
transpacific flight operations for use on aircraft outside the jurisdiction of the State.

All wholesale dealers and solicitors shall keep separate and distinct records of
account wherein shall be entered the name of the licensee, license number, place of
business, the day, month and year in which the sale was made and the quantity and
price of liquor sold to each licensee.

It shall be unlawful for any holder of a wholesale dealer license to acquire or hold any
interest whatsoever in the license or licensed premises of a retail or brewpub licensee.

21



E. CLASS 4. RETAIL DEALER LICENSE.

1. GENERAL. A license to sell liquors at retail or to Class 10 [licenses:]licensees,
shall authorize the licensee to sell the liquors therein specified in their original
packages. Sales shall be conducted only on the licensed premises except as
otherwise provided herein. Licensees may advertise products and prices via
computer or electronic means.

Under [the-teense]a Class 4, no liquor shall be consumed on the premises except
as authorized by the Commission or Director for product tastings or for special
events such as a grand opening or anniversaries, which shall be purely gratuitous
to patrons, and that requests for live music and entertainment at these special
events may also be submitted for approval.

As authorized by the Commission or Director, a retailer may charee for product
tasting to help offset costs.

Of this class there shall be the following kinds:
I. General (includes all liquors except alcohol);
2. Beer and wine;
3. Alcohol.

Alcohol may be sold for non-beverage purposes by a retail alcohol licensee. The
sale of alcohol shall be made only to a person holding an alcohol purchase permit
approved by the Commission. The licensee shall maintain permanent records of

the sale, including the name of the permittee, the date and quantity of alcohol
sold.

The retail dealer may have radios, television and any other system providing
recorded music on the premises without a permit issued by the Department,
provided that the license shall be subject to compliance to Rule 6-4, relating to
noise, as provided herein.

2. DELIVERY. A licensee who desires to provide delivery service of liquor shall
be required to submit a written request to the Commission for consideration. Any
approvals by the Commission shall be valid for the term of the license held by the
licensee and shall not be transferable. The Commission reserves the right to deny,
approve and condition any approval of delivery service, and to withdraw such
approval upon proper notice and hearing when the licensee fails to comply with
the provisions of this rule. Delivery service shall be subject to the following
conditions:

A. A customer or authorized agent, [twenty-ese] 21 years or older, shall place
liquor orders directly to the licensed premises and deliveries shall be restricted
to patrons within this County upon a bona fide order thereof, provided that
payment shall be made at the licensee’s place of business. The buyer shall file
a written statement of authorization with the names of persons 21 vears or

22



older who are authorized to order or receive liquors. The exchange of monies
at other than the licensed premises is prohibited.

B. The licensee shall be required to ensure that the buyer and authorized agent is
of legal age, and shall maintain a customer file with a copy of the
identification card which shall clearly identify the patron’s name, birth date,
signature, and address. Deliveries shall be within the legal hours of sale.

C. The order and delivery form shall be legible and contain the customer’s name
and address of delivery. Upon delivery, the licensee shall cause the buyer or
authorized agent to sign the delivery form. Such records shall be kept for
[twe+2] 2 years.

D. Delivery shall be made only to the person ordering or the authorized agent,
provided that no licensee shall deliver liquors when it is apparent that the
liquors may be consumed by minors.

3. GIFT BASKETS. The licensee shall be permitted to sell gift baskets containing
liquor and non-liquor products provided that the cost of the gift basket must
reflect the cost of each item contained therein. Such sales shall be considered
sales of intoxicating liquors unless the product contains separate liquor and
non-liquor codes.

F. CLASS 5. DISPENSER LICENSE.

1. GENERAL. A license under this class shall authorize the licensee to sell liquors
herein specified for consumption on the premises. No liguor may be allowed to
be carried off the licensed premises except as otherwise provided in Rule 3-1-W.
A licensee under this class shall be issued a license according to the category of
establishment the licensee owns or operates. The categories of establishments
shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar; a premises in which recorded music is [previded:]
permitted: '

[€] B. A premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is
[provided] permitted and facilities for dancing by the patrons may be
permitted as provided by Commission rules in the subcategories as listed
herein:

1. A premises in which recorded music and live entertainment is
[provided] permitted;

2. A premises in which recorded music, live entertainment and
dancing is [previdedser] permiited.

23



. A premises in which a person performs or entertains in attire restricted to
use by entertainers pursuant to Commission rules: or

D. A premises in which employees or entertainers are compensated to sit with
patrons whether or not the employees or entertainers are consuming
nonalcoholic beverages while in the company of such patrons pursuant to
Commission rules. If a licensee under Class 5 desires to change the
category or subcategory of establishment the licensee owns or operates,
the licensee shall apply for a new license applicable to the category of the
licensee’s establishment.

For each category of Class 5 licenses there shall be the following kinds:
[. General (includes all liquors except alcohol);
2. Beer and wine;:
3. Beer.

Whenever a licensee is authorized to provide dancing by patrons, each area where
dancing will be provided shall contain no less than 100 square feet and shall not
obstruct-the normal flow of traffic.

RELATING TO CATEGORY [B:]C. An applicant for or a licensee holding a
Class 5 Dispenser liquor license shall obtain a Category [2]C designation when
the applicant or licensee proposes to offer entertainment in attire restricted by
Commission rules or proposes entertainment which is sexually suggestive.

“Attire restricted by Commission rules” shall mean beach attire, such as bikinis or
speedos, which covers the female breast, and buttocks and genitals of the
performers.

A licensee holding a Class 5, Category [2;]C, license shall not permit a person to
perform or entertain in a licensed premises while such person is unclothed or is in
attire which exposes any portion of the pubic hair, anus, cleft of the buttocks,
genitals, or the areola of the female breast. No attire shall be removed during the
performance. Said entertainers shall not be permitted to remain on the licensed
premises before, between and after such performances while in such attire.

Performers shall be 18 years of age or older. The licensee shall obtain a Minor
Entertainment Permit for performers 18-20 years of age, in accordance to

Rule 3-2-D-8-a. Performers are prohibited from commingling with patrons
during the performance and no tipping of money or other gifts on the performer’s
person or attire is permitted. The licensee shall provide barriers sufficient to
obstruct the view of anyone outside the premises whenever any entertainer is
performing therein. A licensee of this category shall post a copy of this rule and
shall ensure that all performers are familiar with this rule.

RELATING TO CATEGORY D. A licensee holding a Class 5, Category [45]
D. license permits designated employees, hereinafter referred to as “hostesses,” to
sit, dance or entertain with patrons. Hostesses shall be required to register at the

24



office of the Department prior to such employment. To register, a Category [4] D
licensee shall submit a letter of employment indicating the name, address, birth
date and date of employment of the hostess. The hostess shall be required to
produce a valid identification card with picture. A registered hostess shall be
issued a photo identification card which shall be valid for a period of two years
from the date of issue and the fee for such identification card shall be assessed in
accordance to the cost of materials. A hostess shall be required to register at the
office of the Department for each Category [4] D premises it is employed at.

The licensee shall maintain daily time sheets of all hostesses on duty and shall
include records of compensation. Hostesses are permitted to solicit only
nonalcoholic beverages as a gift from or at the expense of the patron. A
Category [4] D licensee shall:

a. Post prices of alcoholic and nonalcoholic beverages which shall be visible
to all patrons, and

b. Cause all liquor and nonliquor sales to be recorded and readily identified
by a code.

G. CLASS 6. CLUB LICENSE.

1.

A club license shall be general only (but excluding alcohol) and shall authorize
the licensee to sell liquors to members of the club and to guests of the club
enjoying the privileges of membership, for consumption only on the premises
kept and operated by the club.

For purposes of a Class 6 Club license, membership is as defined in the bylaws of
the organization or by reciprocal agreement and includes members of the same
club under a state, national or international charter.

A club member shall also be authorized to keep in the member’s private locker on
the premises a reasonable quantity of liquor, if owned by the member, for the
member’s own personal use and not to be sold, and which may be consumed only
by the member on the premises|:], provided that if private lockers are not
available this privilege shall be prohibited.

The club may host teen events pursuant to Rule 3-2-D-12, whether or not the
teens are members.

A licensee under this class shall be issued a license according to the category of
establishment the licensee owns or operates. The categories of establishment
shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar; a premises in which recorded music is permitted; or

B. A premise in which recorded music or live entertainment is [provided]
permitted and/or facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as
provided in the subcategories listed herein:

25



1. A premise in which recorded music and live entertainment are
[provided:| permitted;
2. A premise in which recorded music, live entertainment and dancing

are [proevided:] permitted.

2. Each licensed club shall keep a complete list of the members which shall be
convenient for inspection on the licensed premises. A guest of a member or a
bona fide guest enjoying the privileges of membership shall register to gain entry
into the premises. Such registration shall include the name of the guest, date, and
name of host and shall be produced whenever required by the Commission and/or

by its investigator. [Hadernocheamstaneesshatbsaid-suestbe-permitted to
purchaseany liqueronthe premises:] A club licensee shall be authorized to host

charitable functions that are open to the general public only pursuant to
Commission authorization. Club records shall be kept for at least [three] 3 years.

RESERVED.

I. CLASS 8. TRANSIENT VESSEL LICENSE. A general license may be granted to
the owner of any vessel [which-deesnotfall-within-Class7] for the sale of liquor
(other than alcohol) on board the vessel while en route within the jurisdictional limits
of the State and in any port of the State. Such sales shall be made only for
consumption by passengers and their guests on board such vessel[-] during hours
established by the operator/licensee. The application for the license may be made by
any agent representing the owner.

J. CLASS 9. TOUR OR CRUISE VESSEL LICENSE.

1. A general license may be granted to the owner of any tour or cruise vessel for the
sale of liquor (other than alcohol) on board the vessel while in the waters of the
State; provided such sales are made only for consumption by passengers on board
while the vessel is in operation outside the port or dock of this County, or while
the vessel is in port for a period not to exceed [sixty] 60 minutes prior to and after
the sail, within the legal hours of sale for this class of license. [Hthevesselhasa
kome portinthe-Statethe] The license shall be issuable in the county [wherein]
where the home port of the vessel is situated, otherwise in the City and County of
Honolulu. If on any vessel for which no license has been obtained under Chapter
281, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, any liquor is sold or served within

26



[theee] 3 miles of the shore of any island of the State, the same shall constitute a
violation of said chapter.

2. A licensee under this class shall be issued a license according to the category of
establishment the licensee owns or operates. The categories of establishment
shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar: premises in which recorded music is permitted; or

B. A premises in which recorded music or live entertainment is [previded]
permitted and/or facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as
provided in the subcategories listed herein:
1. A premises in which recorded music and live entertainment are

[previded;] permitted;
2. A premises in which recorded music, live entertainment and dancing

are [provided:] permitted.

K. CLASS 10. SPECIAL. A special license may be granted for the sale of liquor for

consumption on the premises for a period not to exceed one day or for a period not fo
exceed [three] 3 days and the event shall be open [ferpublieuse:] to the public. The
issuance of special licenses shall be restricted to not-for-profit organizations, to
political parties and/or political candidates[-seelingpublic-office]. Of this class there
shall be the following kinds:

1. General[] (includes all liauor except alcohol):

2. Beer and wine;

3. Beet '

An orgamzatlon shall be requ1red to obtam a Spec1a1 license whenever [Fh%»%eﬂﬁ-}—d%
‘J@G"’t@ﬂ—] any ticket sale, entry fee, request for donation or any other type of payment

necessary for entry or participation in the function shall-constitute-arequirementto
obtatn-a-speeiatlieense- is required to consume liquor.

Any registered educational or charitable nonprofit organization may sell [wires]
liquor in their original package for off-premises consumption provided that such sales
shall be by auction only and shall not exceed [%hi—%t] 5 cases of wme or 3 cases of

dlStl[led spirits, or 12 cases of beer per event

Applications shall be on a form prescribed by the Commission and shall include:

(1) a rental agreement or like document granting possession and control of the
premises to the applicant; (2) tax clearance certificates; (3) a written statement signed
by the owner or representative of the property consenting to the sale and consumption
of liguor and acknowledging that such function will be subject to the liquor laws and
to inspection by investigators; and (4) a sketch of the premises designating the area
for the sale and consumption of liquors and ingress and egress for the premises. The
Commission at its discretion may require that security personnel be provided.

27



Applicants for special licenses not to exceed one day will not be assessed fees for
their first [few#] 4 applications in a license year, provided that fees in accordance with
Rule 3-3 shall be assessed for any application thereafter.

Applicants for special licenses not to exceed [theee] 3 days shall be subject to fees in
accordance with Rule 3-3. A special licensee shall be required to have a person in
active charge of the premises who shall be responsible to ensure that the license is
being exercised in accordance with liquor laws provided that such person shall not be
subject to an examination pursuant to Rule 5-2.

The Director may approve and issue special licenses subject to subsequent ratification
by the Commission.

A premises licensed for consumption of liquor thereon may permit the use of a
designated area of its premises to a qualified applicant for a special license with prior
approval of the Director or the Commission. The licensee shall submit a written
statement granting permission to the applicant for a special license and shall designate
the area, date and time of the event. The special licensee and the licensee of the
licensed premises may both be held accountable for any violations of the liquor laws.

A final report of gross liquor sales shall be submitted within 30 days of the expiration
of the special license on a form prescribed by the Liquor Commission. Failure to file
a report may result in refusal of subsequent applications for liquor licenses.

. CLASS 11. CABARET LICENSE. A cabaret license shall be general only (but
excluding alcohol) and shall authorize the sale of liquors for consumption on the
premises. This license shall be issued only for premises where food is served,
facilities for dancing by the patrons are provided, and live or amplified recorded
music or professional entertainment, is [prohibited.] provided. Professional
entertainment by a person who performs or entertains unclothed is prohibited. Attire
for professional entertainment shall be restricted to beach attire, such as bikinis or
speedos, which shall cover the female breast, the buttocks and genitals of the
performer. Entertainment which is sexually suggestive, striptease entertainment, or
the like, [are] is prohibited.

Performers shall be 18 years or older. Performers between the ages of 18 and 20
years of age shall obtain a minor entertainment permit pursuant to Rule 3-2-D-8.
Performers are prohibited from commingling with patrons during the performance
and tips of money or other gifts on the performer’s person or attire shall be
prohibited.

Meals prepared in suitable kitchen facilities connected therewith, containing the
necessary equipment and supplies for cooking an assortment of foods, shall be
available to patrons while the premises is open for business. The premises shall have
a minimum of 100 square feet suitable for dancing. Each area where dancing by
patrons will be provided shall contain no less than 100 square feet which shall not
obstruct the normal flow of traffic.

28



M. CLASS 12. HOTEL LICENSE. A hotel license shall be general only, excluding
alcohol, and shall authorize the sale of liquor for consumption on the premises. The
licensee shall be authorized to provide entertainment and dancing on the hotel
premises, provided that in such area where dancing will be provided the floor area set
aside for dancing shall contain no less than 100 square feet and shall not obstruct the
flow of traffic. A hotel licensee may provide off-premises catering of food and liquor
which shall permit the licensee to provide liquor for sale and consumption off the
premises while performing food catering functions. The catering activity shall be
directly related to the licensee’s operation as a hotel. The licensee shall obtain a
certificate of approval from the Director for each catering function in accordance with
the pertinent provisions of Rule 3-1-N-2.

A holder of a hotel license shall provide and maintain no less than 40 rooms for
sleeping accommodations which shall be offered for compensation to transient or
permanent guests-ard-a-dininsereom-and suitable-datehenw :

Procedures such as room service, self-service (no-host), minibars or the like in guest
rooms, and service at private parties in areas which are on the property of and
contiguous to the hotel are permitted.

Licensees shall be restricted from selling liquors in its original packages except via
room service and in minibars installed in hotel guest rooms. Said service shall be
initiated at the request of the adult guest. Minibar and room service sales shall be
restricted to registered guests of the hotel of legal drinking age and consumption of
liquor shall be restricted to the hotel guest room.

N. CLASS 13. CATERER LICENSE.

1. APPLICATION A general license may be granted to any [Elass =
see| applicant who serves
food as part of thelr operauon for the sale and consumption of liquor, excluding
alcohol, while performing food catering functions on the catered premises. The
licensee must possess a bone fide and certified kitchen offering a full service
menu. Additionally, at least [airty] 30 percent of the establishment’s gross
revenue must derive from the sale of foods.

An application for a caterer’s license shall be submitted for [eensideration]
approval by the Commission. The application shall be considered at one hearing
and shall not be subject to the requirements of [Seetion281-

58-1Sections 281-57 to 60, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes[-], as amended. Fees for the
caterer’s license shall be in accordance with Rule 3-3. '

29



2. CATERING REQUIREMENTS.

A. All licensees who are authorized to provide catering of food and liquor shall
comply with this section and shall report sales of liquors, including sales of
catering functions, on the gross sales report pursuant to Rule 3-6.

B. An application for a catering permit [for-theservice-and/orsale-of liquoroff
the-licensee’s-premises] shall be permitted only when the catering contract

indicates that the licensee is providing food, including a selection of entrees
and establishes that [thirty] 30 percent or more of the food to be served is
provided by the licensee, as determined by the total cost of the food contract[-]
for the event.

The licensee shall submit an Application for a Catering Permit for approval by
the Director at least [sevesr] 7 days prior to the event. The licensee shall state
the date, time, and location of the proposed event, include a copy of the
executed catering contract and a written statement signed by the owner or
representative of the property that such function will be subject to the liquor
laws and to inspection by investigators, and designate a person in active
charge of the premises who shall be on duty at each function pursuant to

Rule 5-2. Catered functions for which the owner of the property is being
compensated for the use of the property and to which patrons are being
assessed a fee or payment of monies for food or liquor, shall be limited to
properly zoned districts. The approved catering permit shall be conspicuously
posted at the liquor service area. The licensee shall immediately notify the
Department of any cancellation of a catered event.

C. A licensee authorized to dispense liquor for consumption thereon shall not
permit the catering of liquor on said premises by any other licensee authorized
to provide catering, except as approved by the Director during emergencies.

D. The premises of a catered event shall be considered a licensed premises and is
subject to inspection and compliance to all liquor laws and to adjudications.
Complaints of operations contrary to the liquor laws, or which adversely
affect the neighborhood, including noise complaints, may be cause for the
Commission or Director to impose conditions or restrictions on any proposed
catering event at the same premises or may be cause to deny the application
for catering permit.

E. The privilege of catering is to permit legitimate catered functions and is not
intended to be utilized to circumvent the liquor laws by allowing a licensee to
operate its liquor license outside of its licensed premises. Any use of property
for catered events by a licensee which appears to be an extension of the
licensee’s premises is prohibited, and applications for use of said premises
may be denied by the Director.

30



F. Where a licensee is contracted to provide entertainment, the entertainment
shall be restricted to recorded and live music[-+ta-aceerek R
heense-issved-to-thelicensee].

0. CLASS 14. BREWPUB LICENSE. A Brewpub licensee:

13 (=3

[2:]1. May sell malt beverages manufactured on the licensee’s premises for
consumption on the premises;

[3-]2. May sell malt beverages manufactured by the licensee in brewery-sealed
packages to Class 3 Wholesale Dealer licensees[;-ane] pursuant to conditions
imposed by the County by ordinance or rules: and

[4-]13. May sell intoxicating liquor purchased from valid holders of [Class—+
Manufaetureror] Class 3 Wholesale Dealer licenses in the State to consumers for
consumption on the licensee’s premises provided that the premises is owned and
operated by the licensee.

4. May. subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages
manufactured on the licensee’s premises to consumers in brewery-sealed kegs and
srowlers for off-premises consumption; provided that for purposes of this
paragraph, “growler” means a glass or metal container, not to exceed one
half-eallon, which shall be securely sealed.

5. May. subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages
manufactured on the licensee’s premises in recyclable containers provided by the
licensee or by the consumer which do not exceed one gallon per container and are
securely sealed on the licensee’s premises to consumers for off-premises

consumption;

6. Shall comply with all resulations pertaining to Class 4 Retail Dealer licensees
when eneaging in the retail sale of malt beverages:

7. May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages
manufactured on the licensee’s premises in brewery-sealed containers directly to
Class 2 Restaurant licensees, Class 3 Wholesale Dealer licensees. Class 4 Retail
Dealer licensees, Class 5 Dispenser licensees., Class 6 Club licensees, Class 8
Transient Vessel licensees, Class 9 Tour or Cruise Vessel licensees, Class 10
Special licensees. Class 11 Cabaret licensees, Class 12 Hotel licensees, Class 13
Caterer licensees. Class 14 Brewpub licensees, Class 15 Condominium Hotel
licensees, Class 16 Winery, Class 18 Small Craft Producer Pub licensees, and
consumers pursuant to conditions imposed by county regulations governing
Class 1 Manufacturer licensees and Class 3 Wholesale Dealer licensees: and

31



8. May conduct the activities under paragraphs (1) to (7) at a location other than the
licensee’s premises: provided that:

A. The manufacturing takes place in Hawai‘i; and
B. The other location is properly licensed under the same ownership.

[5-]9. The categories of establishments shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar: a premises in which recorded music is [previded:]
permitted; or
B. A premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is [previded]
permitted and facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted, as
provided in the subcategories listed herein:
1. A premises in which recorded music and live entertainment are
provided; or
2. A premises in which recorded music, live entertainment and dancing
are provided.

Whenever a licensee is authorized to provide dancing, each area where
dancing is provided shall contain no less than 100 square feet and shall not
obstruct the normal flow of traffic.

[6-]10. Shall be subject to assessment of a percentage fee on retail sales of liquor,
pursuant to Rule 3-3.

P. CLASS 15. CONDOMINIUM HOTEL LICENSE. A license to sell liquorin a
condominium hotel shall authorize the licensee to provide entertainment and dancing
on the condominium hotel premises and to sell all liguor (except alcohol) for
consumption on the premises: provided that a condominium hotel licensee, with
Commission approval, may provide off-premises catering: provided further that the
catering activity is directly related to the licensee's operation as a condominium hotel.

Procedures such as room service, self-service no-host minibars or similar service in
apartments, and service at private parties in areas that are the property of and
contiguous to the condominjum hotel are permitted with Commission approval.

A condominium hotel licensee shall not sell liquor in the manner authorized by a
Class 4 Retail Dealer license.

Anvy licensee who would otherwise meet the criteria for the condominium hotel
license class but holds a different class of license mav be required to apply for a
condominium hotel license.

. CLASS 16. WINERY LICENSE. A winery licensee:

1. Shall manufacture not more than [2.000 barrels of wine on the licensee's premises
during the license vear:

32



May sell wine manufactured on the licensee's premises for consumption on the

premises;

May sell wine manufactured by the licensee in winery-sealed packages to Class 3

Wholesale Dealer licensees pursuant to conditions imposed bv the County by
ordinance or rule;

May. subiject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell wine

manufactured on the licensee's premises in winery-sealed kegs and magnums (o
consumers for off-premises consumption: provided that for purposes of this
paragraph, "magnum" means a glass container not to exceed one half-gallon.
which may be securely sealed;

May. subiject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell wine

manufactured on the licensee's premises in recyclable containers provided by the
licensee or by the consumer which do not exceed one gallon per container and are
securely sealed on the licensee's premises to consumers for off-premises
consumption:

Shall comply with all rules pertaining to Class 4 Retail Dealer licensees when

encaging in the retail sale of wine: and

May sell wine manufactured on the licensee's premises in winery-sealed

containers directly to Class 2 Restaurant licensees, Class 3 Wholesale Dealer
licensees, Class 4 Retail Dealer licensees, Class 5 Dispenser licensees, Class
Club licensees, Class 8 Transient Vessel licensees, Class 9 Tour or Cruise Vessel
licensees, Class 10 Special licensees, Class 11 Cabaret licensees, Class 12 Hotel
licensees, Class 13 Caterer licensees, Class 14 Brewpub licensees, Class 15
Condominium Hotel licensees, Class 16 Winery, and Class 18 Small Craft
Producer Pub licensees pursuant to conditions imposed by County Planning and
Public Works Departments and rules governing Class 3 Wholesale Dealer
licensees.

May sell intoxicating liguor purchased from valid holders of Class 1

Manufacturers or Class 3 Wholesale Dealers licenses in the State to consumers for
consumption on the licensee’s premises provided that the premises is owned and
operated by the licensee.

The catecories of establishments shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar: a premises in which recorded music is permitted; or
B. A premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is permitted and
facilities for dancine by the patrons may be permitted, as provided in the
subcategories listed herein:
1. A premises in which recorded music and live entertainment are
permitted; or
A premises in which recorded music, live entertainment and dancing
are permitted.

o

33



Whenever a licensee is authorized to provide dancine. each area where dancing is
permitted shall contain no less than 100 square feet and shall not obstruct the
normal flow of traffic.

10. Shall be subject to assessment of a percentage fee on retail sales of liquor,
pursuant to Rule 3-3.

R. CLASS 18. SMALL CRAFT PRODUCER PUB LICENSE. A small craft
producer pub licensee:

1. Shall manufacture not more than:

(A) Sixty thousand barrels of malt beverages:

(B) Twenty thousand barrels of wine; or

(C) Seven thousand five hundred barrels of alcohol on the licensee's premises
during the license year:

provided that for purposes of this paragraph. “barrel” means a container not
exceeding thirty one gallons or wine gallons of liguor;

2. May sell malt beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured on the licensee’s
premises for consumption on the premises;

3. May sell malt beverages, wine, or alcohol manufactured by the licensee in
producer-sealed packages to class 3 wholesale dealer licensees pursuani to
conditions imposed by the county by ordinance or rule;

4, May sell intoxicating liguor purchased from a class 3 wholesale dealer licensee to
consumers for consumption on the licensee’s premises. The catesories of
establishments shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar; or

B. Premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is provided.
Facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted as provided by
commission rules;

5. May, subject to federal labeling and boitling requirements, sell malt beverages
manufactured on the licensee’s premises to consumers in producer-sealed kees
and growlers for off-premises consumption; provided that for purposes of this
paragraph, “erowler” means a glass or metal container. not to exceed one
half-eallon. which shall be securely sealed:

6. May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements. sell malt beverages
wine, or alcohel manufactured on the licensee’s premises in recvelable containers
provided bv the licensee or by the consumer which do not exceed:

34



(A) One gallon per container for malt beverages and wine; and
(B) One liter for alcohol: and

are securely sealed on the licensee’s premises to consumers for off-premises
consumption,

7. Shall comply with all regulations pertaining to class 4 retail dealer licensees when
eneaging in the retail sale of malt beverages, wine, and alcohol;

8. May, subject to federal labeling and bottling requirements, sell malt beverages.
wine, and alcohol manufactured on the licensee’s premises in producer-sealed
containers directly to class 2 restaurant licensees, class 3 wholesale dealer
licensees, class 4 retail dealer licensees, class 5 dispenser licensees, class 6 club
licensees. class 8 transient vessel licensees, class 9 tour or cruise vessel licensees,
class 10 special licensees, class 11 cabaret licensees. class 12 hotel licensees.
class 13 caterer licensees, class 14 brewpub licensees, class 15 condominium
hotel licensees, class 18 small craft producer pub licensees. and consumers
pursuant to conditions imposed by county regulations governing class 1
manufacturer licensees and class 3 wholesale dealer licensees; and

9. May conduct the activities under paragraphs (1) to (8) at one location other than
the licensee’s premises; provided that:

(A)  The manufacturing takes place in Hawai'i: and
(B) The other location is properly licensed under the same ownership.

10. The catecories of establishments shall be as follows:

A. A standard bar: a premises in which recorded music is permitted: or
B. A premises in which live entertainment or recorded music is permitted and
facilities for dancing by the patrons may be permitted, as provided in the
subcategcories listed herein:
1. A premises in which recorded music and live entertainment are permitted;
or
2. A premises in which recorded music, live entertainment and dancing are

permitted.

Whenever a licensee 1s authorized to provide dancing. each area where
dancing is permitted shall contain no less than 100 square feet and shall
not obstruct the normal flow of traffic.

11. Shall be subiject to assessment of a percentage fee on retail sales of liquor,
pursuant to Rule 3-3.

[B:]S. RETAILER PURCHASES. It shall be unlawful for any retail licensee, except a
Class 10 licensee, to purchase, acquire or sell liquor from any person other than a
wholesale dealer or manufacturer licensed pursuant to this chapter, and shall not

35




permit any person to bring their own liquors onto the premises_or remove liquors
from the premises, except as authorized in accordance to these rules.

[@:] T. VESSEL LICENSING. Sections 281-57 to 281-61, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes,
as amended, shall not apply to Classes [#]8 through 10 and 13.

[R<] U. NO CONSUMPTION IN UNLICENSED AREAS. [Theconsumption-of
hauorisprohibited] An on-premises licensee shall prohibit consumption of liquors on
premises connected therewith and in non-designated liquor consumption areas of the
premises of the on-premises licensee except as otherwise requested and approved by
the Director.

[S:] V. ENTERTAINMENT. Karaoke and entertainment provided by a disc jockey
shall be defined as live entertainment. Licensees who provided karaoke prior to
September 25, 1998 shall be permitted to retain the privilege of providing karaoke
until such time that the license is transferred, including 100% stock transfers. If there
are noise complaints from the surrounding neighborhood, this privilege may be
revoked upon hearings held by the Commission. The licensee may then file an
application for a change of category as provided herein.

All forms of music and entertainment are prohibited on a premises licensed for
consumption thereon except where and when specifically permitted by the class and
category/subcategory of entertainment of the liquor license held.

Impromptu entertainment [by-adut-patrons] and dancing which is unpaid and
unscheduled, is permitted[-] for reasonable periods of time.

Entertainment shall not be offensive to common propriety and shall not cause undue
noise or disturbance to the neighborhood.

Entertainment by persons partially or fully unclothed or entertainment where articles
of clothing are removed during a performance is prohibited. The placement of
articles of value or money on the entertainer’s person or attire is prohibited.

Any performance on the premises which is sexually suggestive, including lap
dancing, which may be construed to be obscene, lewd or offensive to common
propriety, and which may create a greater propensity for misconduct on the premises,
shall be prohibited.

[Tm] W. RFSEALED LI()UOR [A—GL&S&J—R@%LM&HFGI&%—@G}H}?—@H%%—PLGBJB&F%F

: - A _panon may remove
from anv class licensed f01 on-premise consumption thereon any portion of wine, liguor
or beer that was purchased on or brought onto the premises of the licensee engagced in
meal service for consumption with a meal, provided that it is recorked or resealed in its
original container.

36



[L5] X. CATEGORIES. Licensees affected by the numeric and alphabetic changes to
the categories and subcategories shall be recategorized in accordance to these
amendments upon renewal of its liquor license.

RULE 3-2 PERMITS.

A. GENERAL PROVISIONS. Permits may be granted by the Commission or Director
as provided in this section. Applications for permits shall be requested and approved
prior to the conduct of the activity requested. The Commission shall from time to
time prescribe the kinds, terms and provisions of permits. The Commission shall
have the sole discretion to impose, amend or withdraw conditions to a permit and/or
to suspend or cancel a permit upon proper notice of hearing to the licensee and to any
aggrieved party, when applicable. The Director shall have authority to approve
applications for permits meeting the requirements for such applications, and such
approvals shall be subject to the subsequent ratification by the Commission.

B. RESTRICTIONS ON PERMITS, ACTIVITIES. The Commission shall have the
discretion to impose conditions or restrictions or deny any activity, game, or contest
offered within or by a licensed premises for the purpose of preventing activity within
the licensed premises of adjacent areas, such as stages, entertainment areas, lanais and
parking areas, which is potentially injurious to the health, safety and welfare of the
public, or is offensive to common propriety.

C. APPLICATION. Permit applications shall be submitted on forms prescribed by the
Commission and may be obtained at the office of the Department[-] or the
Department’s website.

D. TYPES OF PERMITS. Permits shall be issued by the Commission or Director, and
shall be required for the following and posted at all times:

1. ALTERATION PERMIT. An alteration permit is required for any proposed
change to the licensed premises and shall be applicable to interior and exterior
renovations requiring a building permit. The applicant shall route the application
for an alteration permit to the County Department of Public Works for its written
determination on whether a building permit is required. The applicant shall
submit the Application for Alteration Permit to the Department together with a
sketch of the premises which shall clearly denote the proposed alteration and a
copy of the building permit, when required. Prior to ufilization of the altered area,
the licensee shall obtain a final inspection by the Department. If a building permit
is not required, the Department shall conduct an endorsement of the sketch for
record only.

2. ENTERTAINMENT AND CONSUMPTION PERMIT FOR CLASSES 1, 3
AND 4 LICENSEES. An application for an entertainment and consumption
permit may be submitted for approval by a Class 1, Class 3 and Class 4 licensee
to provide live music and entertainment for special events, including but not

o7




limited to grand openings and store anniversaries, provided that entertainment
shall be between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. and shall be subject to the
provisions of and in accordance with Rule 6-4.

GAME PERMIT. Any game or game device which simulates or resembles any
game commonly associated with gambling or which may create a greater

propensity for gambling is prohibited except as [etherwise-provided-herein:]

permitted by the Commission.

An application for a game permit shall be required for any event at which games
or game devices which simulate or resemble any game commonly associated with
gambling will be used.

A permit may be granted to allow for the use of these games or game devices for
a period not to exceed one day for events not open to the general public. No fees
to participate shall be charged. Gambling for money or items of value or the use
of game devices in violation of Sections 712-1220 and 712-1231, Hawai‘i
Revised Statutes, as amended, is prohibited.

. SOLICITOR PERMIT. Pursuant to Section 281-39 of the Hawai‘i Revised

Statutes, as amended, any person desiring to act as the authorized solicitor of a
manufacturer or [whele] wholesale dealer licensed in any other county is required
to have a solicitor’s permit to act as a solicitor in this County, provided that no
solicitor’s permit shall be granted to a common carrier. No solicitor shall be
permitted to have, own or control any liquor for sale or delivery. The solicitor
shall be required to provide its business address which shall be subject to
inspection. The solicitor shall be authorized to:

a. Take orders of intoxicating liquors, which orders shall be filled by the
wholesaler by direct shipment.

b. Upon Commission approval, possess liquors to conduct samplings and the
Commission shall determine the quantity of inventory a solicitor may
pOSSESS.

c. Conduct sampling to liquor buyers representing the retail licensee which
shall be out of public view.

d. Assist a retail licensee who conducts a product tasting in the presentation
of the product(s) provided that in no case shall the solicitor assume duties
normally conducted by an employee of the retail licensee.

e. Stock, rotate, setup liquor displays and [elean] clear shelf space of its own
product.

. OUTSIDE STORAGE PERMIT. A permit for storage of liquor outside of the
licensed premises is required. The application shall include the name of the
licensee, the street address and tax map key of location of outside storage area, a
lease agreement, if applicable, and a floor plan drawn to scale. The permit shall
be approved by the Liquor Commission, and such approval shall be valid for the
term of the license held by the licensee and shall not be transferable. The licensee

38



shall keep records within the warehouse of all liquors received and removed from
the warehouse. Liguors removed from the warehouse shall be delivered directly
to the licensed premises of the licensee. The conduct of business from the outside
storage area is prohibited. Where a storage area 1s utilized by more than one
business, the licensee shall install permanent partitions to separate the inventory.

. ALCOHOL PURCHASE PERMIT. Any person desiring to purchase alcohol,
as defined in Section 281-1 of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, shall
file an application for a permit to purchase alcohol which shall include the
quantity and nature of use of the alcohol. The permit shall be valid for one year
from the date of issuance or upon purchase of the total quantity of alcohol
approved on the permit, whichever occurs first. The permit shall be renewable
upon submittal of an application to the Commission.

The applicant shall file personal history statements of all owners and a sketch of
the premises to include designation of the alcohol storage area. The premises
shall be subject to inspection during the term of the permit. The Department may,
at any time, require the permittee to submit verification of invoices indicating
alcohol purchases. When the permittee has purchased the total quantity of alcohol
approved by the Commission, the permittee shall submit copies of invoices, or the
like, verifying the quantity purchased, and the permit shall be deemed null and
void.

. INDIVIDUAL IMPORTATION OF LIQUOR PERMIT. Any unlicensed
adult person desiring a permit to allow the importation of liquor from outside the
State pursuant to [Chapter] Section 281-33.1, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as
amended, shall file an application which shall include an inventory of the liquor to
be imported|-] and the fee prescribed in Rule 3-3.

This section shall not apply to residents of the State who participate in
[reciproeat] direct shipments of wine pursuant to State law.

PERM

T

VYEARS OF AGE. MINOR ENTERT

~ T IR D ¥ O

AINMENT PERMIT.

A TANRAT

BN
i

a. An on-premises licensee shall submit an application for any person less than
21 years of age for a permit to allow said person to work as an entertainer
within said licensed premises, whether compensated or not, prior to the
performance. The licensee shall submit the dates and times of performances,
name and birth date of participating minors and name and address of the
person primarily responsible for said minors on a form as prescribed by the
Commission. The licensee shall comply with all of the requirements of the
Child Labor Laws of the State of Hawai ‘1.

38



9.

10.

11

12.

b. Entertainers who are less than 21 years of age shall be prohibited from
commingling with patrons of the licensed premises.

TRADE SHOW. A permit is required in accordance with provisions of

Section 281-32.5 of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, to authorize the
display and consumption of liquors at a trade exhibition site on a not-for-sale
basis. The application shall include the name and address of the applicant, the
date and location of the trade show and an inventory list of liquors to be displayed
and sampled and shall indicate the value of the liquors. The dispensing of liquors
for consumption may be permitted between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and

11:00 P.M. on any day of the week. Within 30 days after the close of the trade
show, the permittee shall provide proof of the disposition of open or unused
liquors to the Commission, provided that the sale of said liquors is prohibited.

PRIVATE HOST. A private host permit is required to allow a private host to
provide liquor and entertainment as authorized by the licensee of the licensed
premises. The licensee shall submit the name of the host, date and time of the
event, type of function and shall designate whether the host is to provide
entertainment and/or liquor. The licensee shall remain subject to compliance with
all liquor laws and rules and regulations of the Commission. Unused portions of
liguors shall be removed from the premises by the private host.

. PRODUCT TASTING. A permit is required for the tasting of wine, beer and

spirits subject to the following conditions: (1) liquor shal-be-sampled-inits
etiginal-form; may be mixed to show its versatility; (2) each serving shall be no

more than one ounce per customer for distilled spirits, no more than five ounces
per customer for wine, and no more than 12 ounces per customer for beer; butnot
in-eembination: (3) no minors shall be allowed to consume liquor; and (4) tasting
shall be conducted only on the licensee’s premises. Tastings shall be in a
designated area only and the permit shall be conspicuously posted for public
view. All tasting shall be conducted at the expense of the licensee.

Industry members may assist a retail licensee who conducts a product tasting
provided that in no case shall they assume duties normally conducted by an
employee of the retail licensee.

As authorized by the Commission or Director, a retailer may charee for product
tasting to help offset costs.

TEEN EVENT. A permit is required to allow a licensee licensed for
consumption thereon to host teen events. An application for a teen event permit is
required for each event and shall be submitted to the Director on a form
prescribed by the Department of Liquor Control, at least [sever+73] 7 days prior
to the event. Teen events shall be defined as events for minors from the age of
13-20 that are sponsored by the licensees or are events open to the public. The
issuance of the permit shall be conditional upon the following:

40



a. The sale, service and consumption of liquors shall be prohibited and all
intoxicating liquors shall be removed from service areas or locked in storage.
b. The hours of operation shall not exceed 12:00 o’clock midnight, except that
the Director shall be authorized to extend such hours for school-related events.
c. The licensee shall be responsible for complying with all liquor and curfew

laws.
[q GE :_{: ot - ses o o R Tt o : 5y "C o Ifr ??3]3}“9"56
bethe Diroeter|

A permit may be denied or revoked upon the past or existing noncompliance by the
licensee of any of the conditions listed above or for violation of the liquor laws. In the
event of a denial or revocation of a permit or any provisions of the permit by the Director,
the licensee may appeal the decision to the Liquor Commission.

A licensee may apply for a teen event permit which will occupy only a portion of the
premises, provided that said area shall have its own separate entrance whereby ingress or
egress by minors shall not be through the liquor consumption area of the premises|[-] and
there will be no commingling of minors and adults.

RULE 3-3 LICENSE FEES, PERMIT FEES, SCHEDULE. All licensees shall pay an annual fee
which shall be the basic fee as defined in Rule 3-3-A, plus the percentage fee as defined
in Rule 3-3-B.
A. BASIC FEE. The basic fee for the licenses of each of the several classes and kinds
shall be as set forth herein and shall be due as provided in Rule 3-4.
CLASS KIND FEE
1. Manufacturers (a) BT ..ot $400.00
(inchuding rectifiers) (b) WD ot 400.00
(c) BB ... i iias smvmsss sovmsornsssai 200.00
(d) Other RgBOTS e sssvmiss ssvossmmames 640.00
D Restaurant (a) General.....ooveieii 600.00
(b) Beerand Wine.....ooooeviinenennnnn, 300.00
(c) BB isnn cnmsnr snanvan s e s fa il sm 150.00
3, Wholesale (a) General.......coooovveiiiiiiiiiieienen. 1,200.00
(b) Beerand Wine........ooooivvvviniinnnnn 420.00
(c) 24 (2010 o) I e 32.00
4, Retail (a) General.......ooviiiiiiiiiiii 560.00
(b) Beerand Wine........ooviieiiiiiieann 260.00
(©) Alcohol.....oooeviieiiii 16.00

41



5. Dispenser (a) General.......coooooviiiiiiiiiii, 600.00
(b) Beerand Wine................cooven.n. 300.00
(c) Beer ..o 150.00
6. 0 1 o 320.00
7. Fresseltrrerrreeeree————————— e LG
Reserved
8. Transichtvessel licensat-per day Per POt i s s s v 25.00
9 Tour Or CriiSe VESSEl. .. nr ittt ittt 210.00
10. Special licenses (a) L T —— 15.00
(b) Beerand Wine.................covvuinen. 20.00
(©) General..........oovviiiiiiiiiiiie 35.00
Il. CTRBaEBt oo s sonmmus srsoms s s a o o e S S R S S i 750.00
12. HoOtel .o 1,200.00
13. ) N . [126:00] 600.00
14. L 511 TS, S ———. 1,000.00
15. Condominium ROTEL. .. o.vie ettt e et e ee e eeeaeaenn, 1.200.00
16. L o T e — 1,000.00
17. Small craft producer PUb. .. e 1.000.00
{13:]18. Solicitors and representative permits
(a) Rleaiil. s snsprors 5.00
(b) Beerand Wine..........coooiveniion.. 120.00
(c) General.......ooovvviiiiiiiiiia 180.00
)10,  Tempemary s covems s s e ssvenss S e e o s e S S RS 50.00
H7]20.  Importation PErTt. .. ..o.en et e e 2.50
HE&12L,  Tradeshow permit. usesee sosmesommmarons sass i vasins e e s 25.00
H9:122. Trade name change........ooevvieiiiniiieiaie i e eenass 25.00
26-]23 Duplicate license, permit, ID cardsS..........ccooiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieannnn, 2.00
24, Dineel Wi Bhipineis PO ... soscores s sesssmmams i egons s 48.00 annual




96.00 biennial

B. PERCENTAGE FEE. Licensees [i##] holding Classes 2,4, 5, 6,9, 11, 12 [ard].13,
14, 15. 16. and 18 liquor licenses shall be subject to the basic fee plus a percentage
fee on retail sales which shall not exceed [ere ent(1%+] 1%. The Final Gross
Liquor Sales of each licensee multiplied by the percentage shall constitute the
percentage fee. The percentage to be applied to the Final Gross Liquor Sales of each
licensee for each current fiscal year shall be based upon the following formula:

EE — (BEF + C)= Percentage Not to Exceed 1%
TFGS

EE = Estimated Expenditures (current fiscal year)
BF = Basic Fee (current fiscal year)
C = Carryover (excess fees from prior fiscal year)
TFGS = Total Final Gross Sales (prior license year)

C. COMPUTATION. Licensees in the above-mentioned classes shall file with the
Director on a form prescribed by the Commission a report showing gross sales of
liquor and any other pertinent record or records requested therein. The form shall be
furnished by the Director and shall be completed and filed no later than July 31 after
the date of expiration of such licenses, and at such other times or intervals as the
Director may require. After a tally of the total gross sales of all licensees, the
percentage fee due and payable shall be assessed each licensee. Notice of Percentage
Fee Due shall be [sratled] provided to each licensee and shall be paid within 30 days
from the date of such notice or as otherwise provided by the Director.

RULE 3-4  LICENSE FEES; WHEN DUE; HOW RECEIVED.

A. FEES DUE, WHEN. The basic fee as prescribed by Rule 3-3-A for any license or
permit issued hereunder shall be due and payable in advance of or on June 30 of each
year. The fee for a license or permit issued July 1 shall be for a full year.

Full payment of a prorated license fee is due and payable at the time the license is
issued and the fee paid shall be reckoned proportionally from the first day of the
month on which the license or permit is issued to the expiration date.

Additional vessel, special and temporary license fees shall be paid in full at the time
of filing the application.

The fee for a solicitor or representative’s alcohol permit[;] or a direct shipper’s permit
regardless of when the same is issued shall be the full amount of the basic annual fee.

B. CHANGE TO HIGHER KIND OR DIFFERENT CLASS. A holder of a license
who applies for a higher kind of license within the class of the existing liquor license
or a higher class of license on the same premises shall be credited with the unused
portion of the current basic license fee in computing the fee for the new license.

43



RULE 3-5

RULE 3-6

CHANGE TO LOWER CLASS OR KIND. A licensee who desires to lower the
class or kind of license, pursuant to Sections 281-31 and 281-52 of the Hawai ‘i
Revised Statutes, as amended, or terminate a category of license shall file written
notice to the Commission for its approval and state the effective date of the change.

FORFEITURE OF FEES; WHEN. Upon termination of business by a licensee and
upon revocation, cancellation, or change to lower class or kind of license, all fees
paid for the remaining unexpired term shall be forfeited.

FINAL REPORT, PAYMENT OF FEES UPON TRANSFER OF LICENSE.

A.

FINAL REPORT AND PERCENTAGE FEE BY TRANSFEROR. Prior to the
transfer of a license, the transferor shall file a Final Report of Gross Liquor Sales
together with payment of percentage fees due. The transferor shall be notified of the
percentage fee and the transfer shall not be complete until the percentage fee is paid.

FINAL REPORT AND PERCENTAGE FEE BY TRANSFEREE; WHEN. If
the transferor fails to submit a Final Report of Gross Liquor Sales and/or fails to pay
the percentage fees upon transfer of such a license, the transferee shall be responsible
for any percentage fee based on the total gross liquor sales for the entire term for
which the license was exercised by the transferor[:] before the license can transfer,

GROSS LIQUOR SALES REPORT, PERCENTAGE FEE, RECORDSJ:],
PAYMENTS.

A. FILING. Licensees holding Classes 1, 2,4, 5, 6,9, 11, 12, [and]13, 14, 15, 16 and

18 licenses shall file, on a form provided by the Department, a report showing the
true and accurate gross sales of liquor for the license year. Reports shall be
completed and filed with the Department as follows:

1. On or before January 31, an Initial Gross Sales Report for the report period
July 1 to December 31.

2. On or before July 31, a Final Gross Sales Report for the license year.

3. Within 30 days of the closing of business or cancellation or revocation of the
license, a Final Gross Sales Report.

4. At such other time as the Commission or Director may direct.

For purposes of this rule, reports postmarked or e-mailed on the due date shall be
acceptable. Where the due date falls on a holiday or weekend, the report shall be
delivered to the office of the Department on the first working day thereafter.

ADJUSTMENTS. In order to establish the percentage fee due and payable for the
license year, all adjustments to the Final Report of Gross Liquor Sales shall be

44



RULE 3-7

completed by September 30 of the license year. No adjustments shall be accepted
thereafter.

PERCENTAGE FEE DUE; WHEN. The percentage fee based on gross sales of
liquor shall be due and payable in full or in two equal payments with the first
payment being due or postmarked no later than November 15 and the final payment
being due or postmarked no later than January 15 of each license year. Alternative
pavment plans may be worked out with the Director.

In case of revocation or cancellation of such license, the percentage fee chargeable

against such license shall become due and payable within 30 days from the date of the
Notice of Percentage Fee Due.

Any licensee who fails to pay its percentage fee on the due date shall be issued a
notice of violation for every day payment has not been made and be subject to
penalties as stated in Section 281-91, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes[-]. as amended.

RECORDS AND ACCOUNTS. All licensees shall keep, within the State of
Hawai‘i, a set of books or records which shows all income, purchases and expenses of
the liquor licensed business for a period of [exs] 2 years. These books and records,
including but not limited to daily sales records, employee time sheets, and invoices,
shall be made available for inspection and/or auditing by the Department as indicated
on the Notice of Inspection and Audit by the Director.

PAYMENTS. Any payment returned to the department for insufficient funds shall

be cause for the licensee to immediately cease the sale and service of liguor. Failure
to cease the sale and service of liquor shall be cause for a penalty for each day that
liguors are sold.

DIRECT SHIPMENT OF WINE BY WINERIES.

A. Any manufacturer of wine who desires to ship wines to residents of the County of

B.

Hawai‘i shall obtain a Direct Wine Shipper Permit from the Department[-ef-Ligues

Contrel-County-of Hawai't]. The permit may be granted by the Director to any
person holding:

1. A General Excise Tax license from the State of Hawai ‘i, Department of Taxation;
and

2. Either:

a. A Class 1 license to manufacture wine under Section 281-31, Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes; as amended, or
b. A license to manufacture wine issued by another state.

The term of the permit shall be for one calendar year. The applicant for a permit shall
submit:

45



. An application form;

Copy of the State of Hawai‘i, Department of Taxation, General Excise Tax
license;

Copy of the Class 1 license to manufacture wine under Section 281-31, Hawai‘i
Revised Statutes, as amended. or license to manufacture wine issued by another
state; and

Payment of an annual permit fee of $48.00 provided that the annual permit fee for
a manufacturer of wine licensed under Section 281-31, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes,
as amended, shall be inclusive and part of its annual license fee. [Forpurposesof

No permit shall be issued unless the applicant has met the foregoing requirements.

The direct wine shippers may select a 2 calendar vear permit following the same

requirements as set forth above with submittal of a $96.00 biennual fee.

[€]D. The holder of a Direct Wine Shipper Permit may sell and annually ship to any

person [twenty-ene] 21 years of age or older in this County no more than [six-aine-
Liter| 6 9-liter cases of wine per household for personal use only and not for resale and
shall:

1.

5.

Ship wine directly to the person only in containers that are conspicuously labeled
with the words containing or similar to:

“CONTAINS ALCOHOL: SIGNATURE OF PERSON AGE

21 YEARS OR OLDER REQUIRED FOR DELIVERY.”

Require that the carrier of the shipment obtain the signature of any person
[twenty-one] 21 years of age or older before delivering the shipment.

Report no later than January 31 of each year to the [Heguer] Department the total
amount of wine shipped to persons in this County during the preceding calendar
year;

Pay all applicable general excise and gallonage taxes. For gallonage tax purposes,
all wine sold under a Direct Wine Shipper Permit shall be deemed to be wine sold
in the State; and,

Be subject to audit by the [Hguer] Department.

[B:]E. The holder of a license to manufacture wine issued by another state shall annually
renew a Direct Wine Shipper Permit by providing the [Heuer] Department with a
renewal application, a copy of the current license to manufacture wine, and payment
of the annual fee.

46



RULE 3-8

[E:]F. The sale and shipment of wine directly to a person in this state by a person that
does not possess a valid Direct Wine Shipper Permit is prohibited. Knowingly
violating this law is a misdemeanor.

HOURS OF BUSINESS. There shall be no sale, service or consumption of liquér on or
within any licensed premises before or after the hours of business established by the
Commission. On a premises licensed for consumption thereon, no patron shall remain on
the premises after the legal closing hour of the licensed premises, provided that this shall
not apply to open areas of a hotel premises and hotel guest rooms or to premises which
operate beyond the legal closing hours offering [restenrant][ood service who may be
permitted to offer recorded music, provided that any noise which disturbs the
neighborhood shall be cause to prohibit recorded music after the legal closing hours.
Entertainment and activities authorized under conditions of the license or permits held by
the licensee shall be conducted within the legal hours of business, except as otherwise
authorized by the Commission.

A. RETAIL DEALERS. The licensed premises of retail dealers may be open for the
sale of liquor between 6:00 A.M. and 11:00 P.M. on any day of the week.

B. CLUBS, DISPENSERS, RESTAURANTS, [TRANSIENT VESSELS;] AND
TOUR OR CRUISE VESSELS. The licensed prermses of clubs dlspenser vessels,
transient vessels, and tour or cruise vessels, may be open for the sale or service of
liquor between 6:00 A.M. of any day of the week and 2:00 A.M. the following day.

C. CABARETS. The licensed premises of cabarets may be open for the sale or service
of liquor between 8:00 A.M. of any day of the week and 4:00 A.M. of the following
day.

D. MANUFACTURERS AND WHOLESALERS. The licensed premises of
manufacturers and wholesalers may be open for the sale or delivery of liquor between
6:00 A.M. to 9:00 P.M. on any day of the week.

E. HOTELS[:], CONDOMINIUM HOTELS, AND TRANSIENT VESSELS. The
licensed premises of hotels . condominium hotels, and transient vessels may be open
for the sale and service of liquor between 6:00 A.M. of any day of the week and 4:00
A.M. of the following day.

F. CATERERS. A licensee authorized to provide catering may provide the sale and
service of liquor between 8:00 A.M. to 12:00 midnight of any day of the week.

G. SPECIAL. The licensed premises of a special license may be open for the sale and
service of liquor between 8:00 A.M. to 12:00 midnight.

H. BREWPUBS[:] WINERIES AND SMALL CRAKT PUBS. The licensed premisés
of a brewpub, winery. and small craft pub license may be open for the manufacture,
sale and service of liquor from 6:00 A.M. to 2:00 A M. of the following day.

47



PART IV. PROCEDURE FOR OBTAINING A LICENSE

RULE 4-1 LICENSE REQUIRED. No person shall sell intoxicating liquor unless said person is a
valid holder of a liquor license approved by the Commission. Conduct of the business
shall be restricted to the licensed premises except as otherwise authorized by the
Commission or the Director. Procedures for filing an application for a liquor license or
permit(s) and application form(s) are on file and may be obtained at the office of the
Department or on the Department’s website by the applicant or its authorized
representative. Applications and required forms shall be signed by the applicant.

RULE 4-2  LICENSE APPLICATION.

A. FORMS. [Allappheations] Applications for licenses[-and-aH], notices of public
hearing [seat-Jand affidavits filed by applicants in connection with such applications
shall be on respective forms prescribed therefore from time to time by the
Commission[-]and in compliance with requirements of Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes, as amended.

B. FILING FEE. The filing fee to be paid with an application for license shall be
$50.00[-] for an original license, transfer of license, change of class, change to a
higher kind, change of category or sub-category, change of location or an increase in
premises requiring notice to property owners. The filing fee shall be applied to
payment of the fee required by Rule 3-3 when the license is granted and shall become
a realization of the Department when the license is denied or the application is
withdrawn. Any payment returned to the department for insufficient funds shall be
cause for the licensee to immediately cease the sale and service of liguor. Failure to
cease the sale and service of liquor shall be cause for a penalty for each day that
liquors are sold.

C. LICENSE YEAR. The license year shall be from July 1 to June 30. Every license
or permit whenever issued shall expire with the close of June 30 next succeeding its
issue[=], except where provided for elsewhere.

D. APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS. An applicant for a new license or a transfer
of a license other than a special or temporary license shall file as part of the
application:




1. An executed application.

I~

. A filing fee of §50.

3. A tax clearance certificate from the State Department of Taxation or Hawai ‘i
Compliance Express.

4, A tax clearance certificate from the Internal Revenue Service or Hawai‘i
Compliance Express.

5. Notarized personal history forms of applicants. whether an individual. or members
of a partnership. uniform limited partnership, limited liability partnership. limited
liability company, or unincorporated association. and, if a corporate applicant, its
officers and directors, and all persons holding 25% or more of stock, which shall
include a statement of criminal history.

If a partnership. uniform limited partnership, limited liability partnership,
limited liability company or a corporation, copies of all registration documents
" filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs, State of Hawaii
including, but not limited to, renewal registrations, current annual reports,
certificates or other proof of good standing, names of all stockholders and
percentage of stock held by each stockholder.

6. Proof of liquor liability insurance in an amount not less than one million dollars for
a class 2. 4 (except convenience marts), 5. 6, 11,1213, 14, 15, 16, and 18 liquor
license. which shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a license.

7. Document showing ownership of the premises or a lease or rental agreement
granting exclusive possession and control of the place of business of at least one-
year duration, unless special conditions prevail, with option to renew if applicable;
together with applicable legal documents to include, but is not limited to, purchase
agreements, management agreements, merger documents or the like.

49



8. A floor plan drawn to scale which shall show the detailed description of the
proposed premises and a plot plan showing the location of the building on the
property and ingress and egress to the premises.

9. An applicant for a transient vessel license shall file an application together with tax
clearances from the Internal Revenue Service and the State Department of
Taxation or Hawai‘i Compliance Express for the agent or owner of said vessel.

Applications shall be filed for each vessel, and may be filed annually during the
month of June. Licenses issued shall be valid for the upcoming fiscal year. Tax
clearances of the agent or owner shall be applicable to all applications for transient
vessel licenses that are filed by the agent or owner during that fiscal year. Annual
applications shall include a list of dates, ports of call and an annual payment of fees
per port of call.

Applications for transient vessel licenses may be filed per port of call, including
additional ports of call by a licensee who files annually, pursuant to this section.

When inclement weather forces a vessel to shift its port of call to the Island of
Hawai‘i, and the vessel has a valid transient vessel license issued by another
jurisdiction within the State of Hawai‘i, said license shall be valid in the County of
Hawai‘i[;] without requirement for an application or fee. provided that notification of
such change of port shall be sent to the Department.

. [APBITIONAL] NOTICE REQUIREMENTS. [A#]| Except for an application for
aclass 8, 9, 10 orl3 llquor llceme an apphcant fo1 a new license, [otherthana

ahs s n-apphicant-for]
or a transfer of a Class 5 or Class 11 license, or any application requiring notice to
property owners, shall be subject to notice requirements pursuant to [Seetien28+5+
and] Sections 281-57 through 281-60, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and
shall also file as part of the application:

1 A tax map drawn to scale with two circles showing all property owners and
lessees of record within 500 feet and 100 feet, respectively, of the proposed
premises; and

2. A list of property owners and lessees of record of the properties within 500 feet
and 100 feet of the proposed premises.

. TRANSFER APPLICATION. An [apphieation] applicant for a transfer of license
shall [indieate] , in addition to the requirements of Subsection D, submit a copy of the
purchase agreement or similar document which shall indicate the price to be paid [te]
for the purchase of the licensed premises and mventcny, and written request for a
temporary license, if so desn'ed [ 3 :

50



Except as otherwise approved by the Commission, if the licensee takes in any partner
or associate, or transfers to any other person, or permits the conduct of any business
by any other person, either openly or under any undisclosed agreement, in part or in
whole of any portion of the business conducted on the licensed premises, the same
shall be deemed to be a transfer of the license which requires Commission approval.

When an application for a transfer of license is denied, withdrawn, cancelled, or for
any cause whereby the transferee discontinues and vacates its business, the
Commission may approve the reinstatement of the license to the transferor upon
request by the transferor, [peadine—verifieation-of]and submittal of a lease or like
document indicating possession and control of the licensed premises[-5y-the
transferor], tax clearances from the state Department of Taxation and Internal
Revenue Service or Hawai‘i Compliance Express, and where applicable, proof of
liquor liability, otherwise the license shall be cancelled.

No license shall be transferred while an investigation is ongoing which may result in
an adjudication hearing or while an adjudication hearing is pending and there are
outstanding assessments or penalties for liquor law violations unless both the
transferor and transferee provide written consent to assume responsibility for actions
as may be ordered by the Board. An application for a license which has been
approved but which license has not been issued shall not be transferable.

. TOUR OR CRUISE VESSEL AND TRANSIENT VESSEL LICENSE

APPLICANTS. An Applicant for a tour or cruise vessel license or a transient vessel
license shall include as part of the application:

1. Copies of the commercial and mooring permits issued by the State Department of
Transportation, Harbors Division, where applicable.

2. Copy of the Certificate of Inspection as issued by the U.S. Coast Guard.

. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE AND COUNTY
REQUIREMENTS. All applicants and licensees shall comply with all applicable
Federal, State, and County requirements or laws applicable to the business, whether
in existence at the time of issuance of such license or as adopted or changed from
time to time.

utﬁw»—@afdj—h’ all-netbe-considered-a-transh

nolicant ¢l )]]{ Fﬂw‘v#r
i_/u\.uu ST SHottedr

51

=
l do aomte to tho (¢
et HSHoRE




A licensee shall submit a notice of withdrawal of a member[-priorto-the-withdrawal
or-the-admissien:|, partner, or stockholder holding 25% or more stock within 30 days

of the withdrawal.

A licensee shall submit a notice of admission of a new member, pariner or
stockholder for Commission approval prior to the admission[-ef+he-member]. The
notice shall include a personal history statement of the new member|-]. partner or
stockholder.

CONVERSIONS, MERGERS. The conversion of an entity into any other form of

entity or the mereer of any entity with anv other entity shall not be deemed a transfer
of the license; provided that prior to the date of the conversion or merger, the licensee
shall apply for and secure the approval of the commission for such action, at one
hearing, without the requirement for publication of notice,

Entity shall mean a corporation, partnership. limited partnership, limited liability
partnership or limited liability company.

The licensee shall submit a completed Notice of Conversion or Merger form, together
with copies of all documents required to be tiled with the Department of Commerce
and Consumer Affairs, State of Hawaii.

[J-]K. NOTICE OF MAILING TO PROPERTY OWNERS.

FApphicants] Except for an application for a class 8. 9, 10, or 13 liquor license
applicants for a new license, transfer of a Class 5 or Class 11 license, change of
location, change of category or subcategory, or a change in class [ard]and/or
higher kind, or an increase in premises requiring notice, shall be required to notify
property owners and lessees of record of real estate or owners of record of shares
in a cooperative apartment, and, where applicable, notice to the condominium
manager, within 500 feet of the premises pursuant to Section 281-57, Hawai‘i
Revised Statutes, as amended.

Applicants shall file the current list and addresses of one hundred percent of the
property owners and lessees of record of real estate or owners of record of shares
in a cooperative apartment and a map indicating the 100-foot and 500-foot radius,
as filed with the County of Hawai‘i Real Property Tax Office which shall include
identification of all public and private highways and rights of ways. The radius
shall be measured from the perimeter of the proposed premises which is under the
exclusive control and possession of the applicant, excluding common areas which
are shared by other businesses.




2. Upon approval of the preliminary hearing, the applicant shall mail notices to
[theeefourths| 3/4 of the property owners within 100 feet and [twe—thirds] 2/3 of
the property owners and lessees of record of real estate or owners of record of
shares in a cooperative apartment, and, where applicable, notice to the
condominium manager, within 500 feet, no later than [fertyfive] 45 days prior to
the final public hearing on the application. Mailing of notices shall be verified by
a certificate of mailing.

Upon completion of the mailing, the applicant shall submit the following
documents to the Department no later than [seven] 7 business days from the date
of mailing (a) a list of [alist-efene-hurdred-percent] 100% of the property owners
and a list which indicates to whom notices were mailed; (b) an affidavit of
mailing; and (c) a copy of the certificate of mailing[-] as verified by the United
States Postal Service.

Procedures, forms and formatting of documents shall be in accordance with
Department requirements which are on file at the office of the Department.

3. If the list of property owners and lessees of record of real estate or owners of
record of shares in a cooperative apartment is found to be invalid at any time prior
to or at the final public hearing, or the applicant has failed to meet one or more of
the requirements set forth in Section 281-57, Hawaii Revised Statutes, as
amended, the Commission may suspend or continue the application and require
the applicant to resubmit an accurate list of property owners and lessees of record
of real estate or owners of record of shares in a cooperative apartment and to
remail notices to property owners[;] and lessees of record of real estate or owners
of record of shares in a cooperative apartment and will be cause for republication
of notice and assessment of publication fee.

4. When protests are filed by persons who are not listed as a property owner or
lessees of record of real estate or owners of record of shares in a cooperative
apartment but who indicate they are property owners, the protestor shall provide
proof of such ownership.

[K:]L. FINAL INSPECTION. A final inspection of the premises shall be applicable to
the issuance of a new or transferred license, or use of an area that has been increased
or altered, or as otherwise required by Commission or Director.

A final inspection may be waived in circumstances that indicates, but is not limited to
changes in ownership entities including, conversions, mergers, a change from an
individual to a partnership, corporation or a limited liability company; or from a
partnership to a corporation or limited liability company; or from a corporation to a
limited liability company or like changes; or a new application which holds a
temporary license for a premises; or to a transfer application. In every case where an
inspection is waived, the Department shall ensure that no alterations have occurred
which may compromise the safety of patrons. A final inspection shall include
inspection clearances from Federal, State and County agencies having jurisdiction

53




over the business, including, but not limited to, the State Department of Health and
the County’s Planning, Public Works and Fire Departments. No liquor license shall
be issued until inspection clearances have been received from appropriate County and
State agencies and the Department, except as otherwise provided herein.

[E=]M. APPROVAL AND ISSUANCE OF LICENSE. The approval of [the]an

application for the liquor license shall be valid for one year [thereatter]from the date
of approval within which time the applicant shall cause the license to be issued. A
request for extension may be submitted for good cause for an additional 6 months[-],
provided that the applicant may request an additional 6-month extension upon proof
that the project is actively under construction and/or is seekine compliance to another
agency’s regulations. Thereafter, the approval of the application [shall may be
cancelled and the applicant [shalt] may be required to apply for a new license.

[M:IN. ISSUANCE OF CERTAIN LICENSES BY DIRECTOR. The Director may

approve and issue special licenses, tour or cruise vessel and transient vessel licenses
with subsequent ratification by the Commission.

[N:]O. PUBLICATION COST DEPOSITS. [A-depesitto-coverpayment]The

applicant shall be responsible for the payment of the cost of publishing the notice of

public hearing[-must-accompany-all-applicationsforalicense]. Failure to pay or

payments returned for insufficient funds shall be cause to delay issuance of the
permanent license.

[&:]P. PUBLIC PLACE. A license may be granted only for those public places as

defined by Section 281-1, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, except as otherwise
provided.

[B-]Q. LICENSED PREMISES. The area designated on the floor plans, when

approved by the Commission, shall be known as the licensed premises. No change of
or to the premises shall be permitted except when authorized by the Commission
pursuant to Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes|-], as amended. The conduct of
business or an offer of services, whether or not such service includes liquor, by the
licensee or any person which is located off or adjacent to a licensed premises, and is
performed for the direct or indirect financial benefit to the licensee, is prohibited.

[@-]R. CONDITIONS. The Commission reserves the right to impose conditions to the

liquor license or permits.

[R:]S. MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT. A licensee shall apply for and secure the

approval of the Commission for any management agreement prior to the agreement
taking effect. The licensee shall submit an executed agreement which shall indicate
that the licensee is in possession and control of the business, and shall be ultimately
responsible for the fiscal and operational requirements of the business. A
management company shall not [isvent] invest or deposit any monies into the
licensee’s business. The Commission reserves the right to deny an agreement which
is contrary to this section.

54



RULE 4-3

. LIOUOR LIABILITY INSURANCE. Restaurants, retail dealers, dispensers, clubs,

cabarets, hotels, caterers, brewpubs. condominium hotels, wineries. and small craft
producer pubs licensed under class 2. class 4, class 3, class 6, class 11, class 12. class
13, class 14, class 15, class 16, and class 18 shall maintain at all times liquor liability
insurance coverage in an amount of $1.000.000: provided that convenience minimarts
holding a class 4 license shall not be required to maintain liquor liability insurance
coverage in that amount.

TEMPORARY LICENSE. A temporary license of any class and kind may be granted
under the following conditions:

A. The premises shall have been operated under the license of the same class and kind

and category issued by the Commission at least one year immediately prior to the date
of filing of this application for a temporary license, except as otherwise [previded-by
law=]approved by the Commission.

The applicant for a temporary license shall have filed with the Commission an
application for the license of the same class and [l&nrd] category then in effect.

Upon denial or withdrawal of an application, the temporary license fee shall become a
realization of the Department.

The term of a temporary license shall be for a period of 120 days and may be renewed
at the discretion of the Commission for not more than one additional term of [siety]
120 days and upon payment of an additional fee of $50.00. When a temporary

license has expired and no permanent license has been issued, the sale and service of
liquor shall cease until the permanent license is issued provided that the permanent
license must be issued no later than 24 months from the date of the approval of the
application at the public hearing; and in the case of a transfer application, the license
shall be renewed by the holder of the temporary license.

A temporary license shall authorize the applicant for a license to assume control of
the licensed premises upon Cormmssmn approval at the preliminary hearing,
provided that [+ arise;| the Director is authorized to
approve an application for a temporary license if the applicant has complied with the
requirements for the filing of a license, including the filing of a preliminary report of

gross liquor sales by the transferor. Such approval shall be subject to the subsequent
ratification by the Commission.

A temporary license shall authorize the licensee to purchase liquor only by payment
in currency or certified check for the liquor before or at the time of delivery of the
liquor to the licensee.

For purposes of this section, payment by currency or certified check may be waived
when (1) a licensee transfers ownership to another entity held in whole or in majority
part by that licensee; or (2) when a partnership adds another partner if the partnership

s e



RULE 4-4

RULE 4-5

RULE 4-6

entity remains the same; or (3) when an existing licensee purchases or establishes
another licensed premises. In each case, the licensee must be in good standing with
the industry member and the industry member shall have the discretion to grant or
refuse such waiver of payment.

G. The license of the same class and [kird] category then in effect for the premises shall
be surrendered in such manner and at such time as the Commission shall direct.

H. A temporary license may be issued to an applicant for an original license only upon
the following circumstances:

1. A liquor license of the same class, kind and category must have previously been
in operation for at least one year prior to the original application.

2. The application for the original and/or temporary licenses must be filed within 45
days of the cancellation or nonrenewal of the previous license.

3. The applicant must apply for the same class, kind, category and subcategory of
license as was previously issued to the premises.

Where a temporary license is issued and the application for an original license is
denied or withdrawn, the temporary license shall be responsible for filing a final gross
sales report together with percentage fee due for the duration that the temporary
license was in effect.

RESERVED.

RESERVED.

CORPORATIONS AND PARTNERSHIPS.
A. TRANSFER OF STOCKS.

1. In the event of a change of ownership of any outstanding capital stock of a
corporate licensee which would result in the transferee thereof becoming the
owner of [#wentyfive] 25 percent or more of the outstanding capital stock, the
corporate licensee shall, prior to the date of such transfer, apply for and secure the
approval of the transfer from the Commission in writing. A stock purchase offer
or similar document shall be submitted; provided, however, that the requirements
shall be waived if the stock transfer is between approved family members, or to a
trust established in the member’s name, or between existing approved
stockholders. If the Commission finds that the proposed transferee is an unfit or
improper person to hold a license in the person’s own right pursuant to
Section 281-45, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, it shall not approve the
proposed transfer. If any transfer is made without the prior approval of the
Commission, the Commission may in its discretion revoke or suspend the license
until it determines that the transferee is a fit and proper person, and if the

56



Commission finds that the transferee is not a fit and proper person, until a
retransfer or new transfer of the capital stock is made to a fit and proper person.

2. TIn the event of any change of ownership of outstanding capital stock less than
[tweenty-Hwe] 25 percent a corporate licensee shall provide notice of such change
to the department within [sixty] 60 days of such change.

B. CHANGE OF CORPORATE OFFICER OR DIRECTOR. A corporate licensee
shall, within [thizty] 60 days from the date of election of any officer or director, notify
the Commission in writing of the election and shall submit a personal history form for
each new officer or director which shall include a statement of criminal history. If the
Commission finds the officer or director an unfit or improper person to hold a license
in his own right pursuant to Section 281-45, Hawai ‘1 Revised Statutes, as amended, it
may in its discretion revoke the license or suspend the license until the unfit or
improper officer or director is removed or replaced by a fit and proper person.

C. PARTNERSHIP.

1. DEATH OR WITHDRAWAL OF PARTNER. Where a license is held by a
partnership, the Commission may transfer the license upon the death or
withdrawal of a member of the partnership to any remaining partner or partners
without publication of notice and without public hearing.

2. ADMISSION OF PARTNER. Where a license is held by a partnership, the
admission of a partner (a) shall not constitute a transfer of the license if the
partnership entity remains the same, provided that the partner to be admitted shall
meet the qualifications pursuant to Section 281-45, Hawai ‘i Revised Statutes, as
amended, and be subject to Commission approval, or (b) if the partnership entity
changes, the licensee shall be subject to an application for a transfer of a license
pursuant to Sections 281-51 to 281-60, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended.

D. ADMISSION OR WITHDRAWAL OF LIMITED PARTNER. Where a license
is held by limited partnership, the admission or withdrawal of a limited partner with a
25% share or greater shall not be deemed a transfer of the license held by the
partnership, but the licensee shall, prior to such admission or withdrawal, so notify
the Commission in writing, stating the name of the partner or partners who have
withdrawn and the name, age, place of residence of the partner or partners who have
been admitted. If the Commission finds a limited partner to be an unfit or improper
person to hold a license in his own right pursuant to Section 281-45, Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes, as amended, it may revoke or suspend the license of the partnership until the
unfit or improper partner is removed or replaced.

E. GENERAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS. For any admission of a partner
or partners in a limited partnership, change in ownership of any outstanding capital
stock of a corporate licensee which would result in the transferee becoming the owner

of [twenty-five-pereent] 25% or more of such stock, or the election of any officer or
director, the licensee shall, along with the notification required in this rule, provide

57



the Commission with the name, age, place of residence, and personal history of such
partner, transferee, officer or director on a form designated for such purpose by the
Commission.

RULE 4-7 RENEWAL.

A. REQUIREMENTS. Application for renewal of the liquor license and annual
permits, except temporary or special licenses, shall be submitted after June 1 and by
June 30, of each year and the licensee shall file as part of the renewal application:

L.

2.

The minimum license fee as prescribed in Rule 3-3.

Tax clearance certificates from the Internal Revenue Service and the State
Department of Taxation[-] or Hawai‘i Compliance Express or copy of an executed
installment aereement with the Internal Revenue Service or the State Department
of Taxation for the pavment of delinguent taxes in installments and, where
applicable, notice that the applicant for the license renewal of a license is
complying with the installment plan agreement. Notice of failure to comply with
the installment plan aereement, whether received at renewal or at any time, shall
be cause to deny the renewal or to place the license on an inactive status wherein
liguors shall not be sold or served pending notice of compliance to the installment
plan asreement from the appropriate tax office.

If a private corporation, a list of stockholders and percentage of stock held by
each stockholder.

Requests for renewal of entertainment and/or game device permits, if applicable.

Report of gross revenues of licensees to retain Class 2 restaurant licenses shall
cover [three} 3 completed general excise tax quarters pursuant to Rule 3-1-C. In
the event the license has been issued less than [six] 6 months prior to the filing of
the renewal application, the report shall cover the effective period of the
restaurant license to May 31 of the license year.

Liguor liability insurance coverage in an amount of $1,000,000 as set forth in

Rule 4-2-T.

B. CONDITIONS.

L

If on June 30 the applicant has met all of the above-stated requirements except for
the submission of the tax clearance certificates, the applicant shall have up to and
including July 31 of the year for which the applicant seeks renewal of the license
in which to present said tax clearance certificates. Such applicant shall not be
permitted to sell liquor until such time as the license is renewed. Failure to file
tax clearances by July 31 shall make the application for renewal of the liquor
license null and void|[:]; however, if licensing fees are paid, the licensee may be
placed on inactive status for a period not to exceed the license vear. The renewal

58




RULE 4-8

of permits shall be concurrent with the status of the application for renewal of the
liquor license.

2. The Director may approve and issue renewals of licenses and permits subject to
the subsequent ratification by the Commission.

3. Where a temporary license is in effect during the license renewal period, the
application for renewal shall be filed by the transferor.

REDUCTION OR INCREASE IN LICENSED PREMISES. No licensee shall
increase, reduce or change the area of the premises without Commission approval.

Applicants for an increase or change in premises shall submit an application, which form
may be obtained from the office of the Department[;] or the Department’s website,
together with a description and sketch of the premises, a description of the intended use
and a copy of the lease or like document. The Commission may approve the application
for an increase in licensed premises, at its discretion, pursuant to Sections 281-51 to 60 or
Section 281-62, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended.

A licensee desiring a reduction in the area of his premises shall [fHe-a-w+
the-Pepartment] submit an application, which form may be obtained from the ofhu, of
the Department, or the Department’s website, describing the area to be reduced, together
with a sketch showing the area to be reduced. The Director shall approve the request
subject to the subsequent ratification of the reduction by the Commission.

An application for a temporary increase in premises for the sale, service and consumption
of liquors shall be filed with the Department and approved by the Commission or
Director, subject to the ratification by the Commission. Each application shall be for a
one day increase only. Applications shall be limited to no more than [feur] 6 applications
per license year and shall be filed no later than [#we] 2 weeks prior to the event.

The application shall be on a form prescribed by the Department and shall include a
sketch of the proposed area which shall be connected to or adjacent to the licensed
premises and consent to the temporary increase by the landlord or its authorized agent.

The Commission or Director may set conditions to its approval, including, but not limited
to the consumption area, hours of operation, proposed activities and entertainment (which
shall be in accordance to the class, kind and category of license held), and the hiring of
security personnel. The hours of operation shall not exceed 12:00 a.m.

The Commission or Director may deny an application for temporary increase when
violations of law have occurred at previously approved applications for temporary
increases or when the Department’s staff, Police Department or complaints from the
public indicate that the site or proposed activities may be potentially injurious to the
health, safety and welfare of the public.

59



Part V. GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO LICENSEES
RULES-1 EMPLOYEE RECORDS

A. REGISTRATION OF EMPLOYEES. A Class 5, Category [4] D, licensee who is
authorized to sell and serve liquor for consumption on the premises shall not employ
any persor, including entertainers, who shall be compensated to sit and entertain
patrons in that section of the licensed premises where liquor is sold, served or
consumed unless that person first presents to the licensee a valid certificate of
registration with the Department prior to employment. Persons who apply to the
Department for registration shall apply in person and present (1) positive
identification in the form of a passport, driver’s license or other laminated
government identification with photograph; (2) Social Security number; (3) alien
registration document if not a U.S. citizen; and (4) any other information that the
Department deems pertinent.

The Department may for good and sufficient reason refuse to register an applicant for
employment in a premises licensed for consumption thereon or suspend or terminate
the registration of an employee. Each person registered will be photographed and
issued [a-tarminated] an identification card which shall be valid for a period of [f+e] 5
years. Identification cards will be retained by each employee and n0t surrendered to
or held by thelr employers [

A licensee who employs a person who is duly registered with the Department for
employment in another premises licensed for Class 5, Category [4;] D, must notify
the Department in writing of the employment of that person prior to the start of
employment. This notice of employment shall be on a form prescribed by the
Commission and shall include the employee’s present address, the nature of work on
the licensed premises, the date employment shall commence and such other
information as the Commission may deem pertlnent to the registration of the
employee.

B. RECORDS. A licensee shall maintain records of all persons employed to sell or
serve liquors including records of employees or entertainers who are compensated to
sit with patrons under a Class 5, Category [4;] D, license. Employee records shall
include, but are not limited to name, birth date, current address, social security
number, and U.S. residence status. A licensee shall maintain and post a daily
schedule of employees on duty. All records shall be readily available for inspection.
Employers shall be responsible to verify that all such employees are [eichteen] 18
years or older.

C. COMPENSATION. No Class 5, Category [45] D. licensee shall employ a host or
hostess to sit and entertain patrons whose earnings are based on commissions,
percentages or similar methods of payment unless such compensation is authorized
by the Commission. A host or hostess shall be considered an employee of the
premises and subject to compliance of these rules. The licensee shall be required to

60



RULE 5-2

RULE 5-3

maintain compensation records for each host or hostess, including a record of sales of
alcoholic and nonalcoholic beverages for each employee upon which such
compensation is based.

PERSON IN ACTIVE CHARGE OF PREMISES. Each licensee shall have a person
in active charge of the premises who shall provide proper supervision in the exercise of
the liquor license in accordance with the liquor laws. A person duly approved to serve as
a person in active charge of the premises shall be on duty at all times while the premises
are open for business, even during hours in which liquor service is not offered. No sales
of liquor should take place where no person in active charge is on duty and in the
licensed premises, except in Class 1. 3, [#] and 8 licensed premises.

To become eligible for approval as a person in active charge of the premises, the licensee
or the licensee’s authorized representative shall in writing appoint the applicant, who
shall not be less than 21 years of age, as a person to be in active charge of the premises.
The applicant shall take an examination on all applicable laws, rules and regulations of
the Commission and pertinent information relating to liquor and shall be registered on a
form prescribed by the Commission. Upon successful completion of the examination, the
applicant shall be issued a liquor card which shall be valid for a period of [f+e] 5 years
from the date of issue, and shall be renewable by reexamination every [f+e] 5 years

A liquor card which is valid and issued by another county liquor jurisdiction in the State
shall be honored in this County, subject to verification and renewal upon its expiration.

The Commission may revoke or suspend the exercise of a liquor card for just cause upon
proper notice and hearing thereof to the person holding the liquor card. If a suspension is
ordered, the person shall not be authorized to be the person in active charge of the
premises and shall be required to retake the examination on liquor laws prior to
reinstatement of the liquor card. Nothing herein shall prevent such person from
participating in the sale, service or consumption of intoxicating liquors. For purposes of
this section, just cause may include but is not limited to (1) the failure to provide proper
supervision and compliance to liquor laws as adjudicated by the Board, and (2) drinking
on duty.

ANNUAL LISTING OF [EMPLOYEES-WITH OR-CARDS:] PERSONS IN
ACTIVE CHARGE OF PREMISES Annually, w1th1n the anniversary month of the
issuance of its license, each licensee licensed to sell or serve liquor shall submit to the
Department the name of every person then employed on the licensed premises who has
been appointed and approved as a person in active charge of the premises. Any person
previously approved by the department whose name does not appear on the list shall be
considered terminated. The licensee shall be required to submit a new letter of
appointment to reinstate said person as an approved person in active charge of the
premises. The department shall issue a listing of approved persons in active charge of the
premises which shall be posted within the licensed premises readily available for
inspection. The listing may be amended from time to time.

61



RULE 5-4 CONDUCT OF EMPLOYEES AND PERSONS IN PREMISES LICENSED FOR
CONSUMPTION THEREON.

A. Licensees shall be held strictly accountable for the conduct of all employees and other
persons on the licensed premises. For the purpose of this rule, any person who
performs a service usually or normally done, on or within the licensed premises,
whether under contract or commission, registered or not registered, compensated or
not compensated, is considered to be an employee on duty and shall be subject to this
rule. An entertainer shall be deemed to be an employee of the licensee during the
time the entertainer is performing or on the platform or stage or in any other area set
aside for the performance. This definition does not apply to vendors, tradesmen,
maintenance people and the like, who in the normal course of their duties service
licensed premises.

B. Employees on duty, including persons who are authorized to sit or dance or otherwise
entertain customers in a Class 5, Category [4;] D, liquor license, shall not consume
liquor, provided that wine stewards, [#wentyenre] 21 years or older, in the normal
course of duty, shall be permitted to taste liquors to determine quality of product. No
employee in any licensed premises shall sit or dance with or otherwise entertain
patrons except as provided by law.

C. No licensee shall encourage or permit any person on the licensed premises to touch,
caress or fondle the breasts, buttocks, anus or genitals or to permit behavior that is
offensive to common propriety.

D. No person shall be allowed to wear or use any device or covering, exposed to view,
which simulates the breast, genitals, anus, pubic hair or any portion thereof.

RULE 5-5 PREPARATION OF DRINKS.

A. LOCATION. The preparation of all drinks in a premises licensed for consumption
thereon shall be conducted at a service bar in such a manner as will permit any
interested customer to view the bartender’s operation.

With the prior approval of the Commission, a hotel or restaurant which maintains one
or more service bars on the premises may install a service bar within the kitchen
premises to accommodate patrons in the dining room.

B. QUANTITY. Any drink whether a straight drink or a drink consisting of one kind of
liquor and mixer or water which is served or sold shall contain not less than one fluid
ounce or its equivalent of liquor, unless otherwise requested by the patron for less
than one fluid ounce of liquor.

RULE 5-6 STACKING OF LIQUOR. The stacking of liquor for consumption by patrons is
prohibited. “Stacking” is defined as having more than two standard servings of drinks
before a customer at any one time. A standard serving means a drink containing distilled
spirits in a container not to exceed [ter] 10 ounces, or [five] 5 ounces of wine or [twelve]

62



RULE 5-7

RULE 5-8

RULE 5-9

RULE 5-10

24 ounces of beer; provided that a serving in excess of these amounts shall be limited to
one per customer. A pitcher; or container not to exceed [66] 100 ounces, [may] shall be
served to [twe] 2 or more persons[-] and no person shall be permitted to consume directly
from the pitcher or container.

At last call, pitcher service or any drink exceeding a single standard serving shall be
prohibited.

QUALITY OF LIQUOR. Liquors sold in the County shall be of pure quality. Draught
beer sold or served shall be freshly drawn. The selling and serving of stale or slop beer is
prohibited. Draught beer shall not be sold unless upon the faucet, spigot, or outlet
wherefrom the beer is drawn there is attached a clear and legible notice, placard or
marker which shall in the English language indicate and declare the name or brand
adopted by the manufacturer of the draught beer.

PREMISES; CONDITIONS.

A. ENTRANCES. Street entrance or entrances to any premises licensed to sell or serve
liquor for consumption thereon shall be kept unlocked while open for business.
Entrances to booths shall not be enclosed in any manner, and all parts of the premises

must be well and properly lighted so as to permit visibility for at least [ter] 10 feet to
anyone with normal vision.

B. ACCESS TO CERTAIN UNLICENSED PREMISES. No premises licensed to
sell liquor for consumption thereon shall be connected with and directly accessible to
any unlicensed premises without Commission approval.

C. RESTROOMS. There must be installed within a licensed premises upon which
liquor is consumed, separate and adequate restroom facilities for males and females
which shall be kept in a sanitary condition at all times. The Commission may
approve the use of restroom facilities adjacent to the licensed premises, with the
approval of the State Department of Health.

EMPLOYEE REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN ORDER. The Commission may in its
discretion require that an employee be on duty to maintain order during such times that it
deems necessary.

POSSESSION OF LIQUOR LAWS:AND OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS:

A. Every licensee shall have a copy of the Rules and Regulations of the Commission and
Chapter 281, Hawai ‘1l Revised Statutes, as amended, available at all times on the
licensed premises. Licensees and employees who participate in the sale and service
of intoxicating liquors shall be presumed to know the Rules and Regulations of the
Commission and Chapter 281, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes|-]. as amended.

|

Every licensee shall post signs regarding (1) illegal sales of alcohol to minors; (2) any
signs as required by the Commission: and (3) any other signs required by law,

63




RULE 5-11

RULE 5-12

RULE 5-13

TEMPORARY CLOSING OF LICENSED PREMISES.

A. No licensee shall temporarily close a licensed premises for [f+e] 5 or more
consecutive days without first notifying the Department in writing of the intention to
do so, the approximate period that such premises shall be so closed and the reason, if
any, for such action.

B. Temporary closing of licensed premises may be ordered by the Commission or the
Director at the request of the Police Department and/or in any emergency as deemed
necessary for the protection of life and property for a period not to exceed 48 hours.

SURRENDER OF LICENSE UPON REVOCATION OR CLOSING OF
BUSINESS, INACTIVE. The holder of a license must immediately surrender the
license to the Department upon revocation thereof, or within [f+e] 5 days after closing
the business if it be otherwise discontinued in accordance with the procedures established
by the Department.

A liquor license may be placed on inactive status which will cause the temporary
cessation of the sale, service and/or consumption of intoxicating liquors and shall only be
applicable if the licensee retains possession and control of the premises, or if the licensee
loses possession of the premises and immediately files an application for a change of
location.

The licensee shall submit a written request to the Commission, and upon Commission
approval, shall surrender its license to the Department for safekeeping and be subject to
closing procedures. An inactive license may be renewed only if the licensee maintains
possession and control of the premises.

The licensee shall notify the Department of the reactivation of such license and may be
subject to final inspection pursuant to Rule [4-23] 4-2-L.

ADVERTISEMENTS.

A. ADVERTISEMENT. Liquor advertisements, posters and signs are permitted in or
about the licensed premises provided that licensees shall not, directly or indirectly,
permit misleading or deceptive advertising or advertising that is lewd or obscene or,
promotions or advertising which promotes the excessive consumption of liquors.
Signs shall conform with the sign ordinances of the County of Hawai’i. The
Commission reserves the right to approve or deny any advertisement or advertisement
scheme in relation to liquors.

It shall be unlawful for any person acting as agent or representative of a nonresident
principal or for any licensee directly or indirectly, or through any subsidiary or
affiliate, to give any premium or free goods of liquor or other merchandise in
connection with the sale of any liquor or to give any premium or free goods of liquor

64



1= =t

in connection with the sale of other merchandise. [TheCemmissionreservestherig

to r}ppren% o de ‘:ql-.

I

B. LIQUOR STORAGE. Storerooms or other areas used for the storage of liquor in
retail premises shall receive the prior approval of the Director. During prohibited
hours of sale, unless the liquor stock is kept under lock, a sign shall be conspicuously
posted at each liquor sales area to give notice of the permitted hours of sale and
consumption at the licensed premises.

RULE 5-14 TRADE NAMES; UNAUTHORIZED USE. A new or transferred license shall have a
trade name which shall be registered with the Department prior to its use. Whenever a
licensee changes an existing trade name, the licensee shall register the new trade name
with the Department and pay a fee of $25.00 to the Department prior to its use by the
licensee. The use of any trade name which is identical to or so similar as to be confused
with another trade name registered with the Department is prohibited.

RULE 5-15 SALE OF LIQUOR WITHOUT A LICENSE.

A. Pursuant to Section 281-97, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, in cases where a
license is revoked, cancelled or not renewed, the licensee may sell intoxicating
liquors then in their possession upon written approval and conditions.set by the
Commission, unless under this Chapter the same<re Seized or forfeited. '

On the day of closing, the licensee shall conduct an inventory of liquors and indicate
its value and submit a copy to the Department. Liquor shall be stored until such time
as approval from the Commission is granted. The sale of liquors shall be limited to
products in their original package and shall be sold only on the specific date(s)
authorized by the Director. Such liquors may be sold to a retail licensee.

B. In an application for a transfer of liquor license, the transferor may sell its liquor
inventory to the transferee, upon written application and approval from and upon the
conditions set by the Commission. A purchase agreement for the liquors shall be
submitted to the Department and shall include the inventory, its value, and the
purchase price of the inventory.

RULE 5-16 TRADE PRACTICES.

A. DISCOUNTS. Retail licenses shall be permitted to offer coupons or discounts on
liquor or merchandise in connection with the sale of liquor or merchandise.

B. QUANTITY DISCOUNTS. Industry members shall apply quantity discounts to a
retail licensee only on a single order/purchase.

C. COMBINATION PACKAGES. Industry members may package and distribute
liquors in combination with other nonalcoholic items. For purposes of this section,
combination packages sold by the industry member shall reflect cost of the liquor and
the fair market value of all nonalcoholic items.

65



An industry member may assemble specialty packages specific to a retailer to include
nonalcoholic items furnished by the retailer in which case the industry member shall
maintain a record of items furnished by the retailer, assess normal assembly charges
and the cost of the nonalcoholic items shall not be included in the invoice of that
combination package. The retailer shall be responsible to ensure that all cost of items
in the combination package [area] are reflected in the sales price to customers.

. CONSUMER PROMOTIONS.

1. Industry members may furnish consumer coupons which are redeemable at a
retail establishment. An industry member may not reimburse a retailer for more
than the face value of all coupons redeemed, plus a usual and customary handling
fee for the redemption of coupons. Payments for the redemption of coupons shall
be made directly to the retail licensee to reduce the cost of sales. The coupons
shall not specify a particular retailer or group of retailers where such coupons can
be redeemed.

2. Direct offerings via contest prizes, premium offers, refunds, and the like may be
offered by industry members or retail licensees directly to consumers. The direct
offering shall be to persons 21 years or older and shall not require proof of
purchase of a liquor product in order to participate in the offering. The industry
member shall provide sufficient entry forms and the retailer shall ensure that entry
forms are available or that instructions to obtain additional entry forms are
conspicuously posted.

For purposes of this section, items of nominal value not to exceed $10.00 may be
included in in-pack promotions. Offers in which entry forms are contained in-
pack shall be permitted only when entry forms or instructions to obtain additional
forms are available on premises.

. STOCK, ROTATE, PRICING. Industry members, including solicitors authorized
to conduct business in this County, may stock, rotate, and affix prices to products
they sell and provide shelf plans or schematics. Industry members shall not (1) alter
or disturb products of other industry members, and (2) rearrange or reset all or part of
a store or liquor department.

. RETAIL LICENSEE SOLICITATIONS. No retail licensee shall solicit or accept,
either directly or indirectly, a premium or free goods of any nature, from an industry
member, except as otherwise authorized by law.

. RETAIL LICENSEE SOLICITATION EXEMPTIONS. No retail licensee shall
solicit the performance of services except as authorized by State or County liquor
laws, and the rules, regulations and decisions of the [Burean-ofAdecohol Tobacecoand
Eirearms| Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau of the United States Treasury
Department.

66



RULE 5-17

LICENSES. SUSPENDED OR INACTIVE. A liguor licensee whose license has been

RULE 6-1

suspended shall post for the duration of the suspension in an area visible to the general

public a notice of the suspension and the dates of the suspended term. During the

suspension the licensee shall be prohibited from selling, serving or furnishing liquors to

patrons. The licensee shall be subject to compliance to liguor laws. The licensee may

allow patrons to bring in their own liquors for consumption upon application and
approval of a private host permit and the licensee shall be permitted to assess a corkage

5+

PART VI. PROHIBITIONS

GENERAL PROHIBITIONS.

A. LIQUOR SHALL NOT BE SOLD OR FURNISHED. At no time under any

circumstances shall any licensee or its employee permit the possession, consumption,
sale or furnishing of any liquor to:

L

2.

3.

4,

Any minor;
Any person at the time under the influence of liquor;
Any person known to the licensee to be addicted to the excessive use of liquor;

Any person for consumption in any vehicle which is licensed to travel on public
highways; and

Any person 21 years and older when there is reasonable cause to believe that such
person is permitting any minor to consume or use any liquor.

B. UNLAWFUL DISCRIMINATION.

L.

3

No licensee whose premises are open for business to the general public shall
refuse, withhold from, or deny to any person, the full and equal enjoyment of any
of the licensee’s accommodations, advantages, facilities, goods, privileges, or
services on the basis of that person’s race, religion, sex, or ancestry.

For purposes of this rule, any licensee that caters, sells, extends, offers, or
otherwise makes available to the general public its accommodations, advantages,

facilities, goods, privileges, or services, for a fee or charge shall be deemed to be
open for business to the general public.

This rule shall not apply to clubs which are not in fact open to the general public

except to the extent that the accommodations, advantages, facilities, goods,
privileges, or services of the club are made available to the general public.

67



4, Nothing in this rule shall be construed or interpreted to prohibit a licensee from

the right to deny service to any person for failure to conform to the usual and
regular requirements, standards, and regulations for the licensed premises so long
as said denial, requirements, standards, and regulations are uniformly applied to
all persons without regard to race, religion, sex or ancestry.

C. DISORDERLY PERSONS; PERSONS UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF
LIQUOR. No licensee shall:

L

Knowingly permit any person under the influence of liquor or disorderly person to
be or remain on the licensed premises.

Fail [immediately] to timely prevent or suppress any violent, quarrelsome,
disorderly, lewd or unlawful conduct of any person on the premises.

D. MINORS IN LICENSED PREMISES. A minor’s employment, entry and
participation in activities in a licensed premises, shall be in accordance with
Rule 3-2-D-12, Teen Event Permit, and as follows:

1. MINOR EMPLOYEES. Minor employees, ages 18 to [245] 20. may be

permitted to sell liquors under proper supervision provided by a person with a
liquor card. Minor employees, ages 20 and under, may be in possession of liquors
in a licensed premises when the minor is employed by the licensee and whose
duties include the handling of liquors such as warehousing, stocking, pricing,
bagging, or bussing.

MINOR PATRON IN RETAIL DEALER’S PREMISES. A minor patron in a
retail dealer’s establishment may assist the adult family member or a physically
challenged person in the transport of such liquors in a shopping cart or to a
vehicle.

DINING. A minor shall be permitted to enter all classes of licenses for the
purpose of dining only when the area is deemed the primary food service area
where the preponderance of sales is derived from food. Upon completion of
dining, said minor(s) shall leave the premises.

The holder of a Class 5, Category [2-e#4] C or D designation, or a Class 11
licensee shall not be permitted to conduct entertainment and/or hostess activities
during dining hours.

Minors shall be prohibited from entering a premises when food service is
complementary to the bar operation, as evidenced by a pupu and/or light menu or
the like.

ENTERTAINMENT AND DANCING. Minors, when accompanied by a parent
or adult 21 years or older, shall be permitted to enter into classes of licenses
authorized to have live entertainment or dancing only during times when live

68



entertainment or dancing is offered[-] except a premises holding a Class 5
Category C and/or D designation. Minors 16 years of age or older shall be
permitted to dance. The parent or adult shall be responsible for the minor during
the entire stay provided that the licensee may exercise its right to remove the
minor(s) if there is cause to believe that said adult is not responsible for the
minor(s)[-] and if no action is taken to remove the minors. the licensee shall be
held in violation of this rule.

5. CONCERTS. Minors are permitted to attend concerts except that if liquor
service is provided, the licensee shall cause all adults desiring liquor service to be
clearly identified.

7] 6. GAMES. In a premises licensed for consumption thereon, a minor shall be
prohibited from playing any game or game devices in an area designated a
primary liquor service area of the premises. Minors may be permitted to play
games in a retail dealer’s licensed premises.

[8:] 7._CONTESTS. A minor shall be prohibited from entering or participating in
contests or tournaments or the like, except that a minor may participate in golf,
bowling, or tennis tournaments.

An on premises licensee shall obtain approval from the Director or Commission
for any other games or contests to which minors may be asked to participate.

[9.] 8. PRIVATE GATHERINGS. A premises which hosts a private gathering to
which the public does not have access may permit minor guests of all ages to
participate in games, dance, song and entertainment.

[16:] 9. PROHIBITIONS.

a. No minor shall be permitted to be in the area designated as the primary liquor
service area, commonly known as the bar or lounge area.
b. No minor, at any time, shall be permitted to sit at any bar or counter.

. BUSINESS PRACTICES; EXCEPTION. Except as specifically allowed herein,
peddling in any sense is strictly prohibited. Before removing liquor from licensed
premises for delivery to a customer under a manufacturer’s or wholesale or retail
dealer’s license, the licensee must have received a bona fide and specific order
therefore. Provided, however, duly licensed wholesale dealers may, without a bona
fide and specific order therefore, remove beer from the licensed premises to delivery
vehicles for the purpose of selling said beer directly to persons who may lawfully sell
liquors at retail in their original packages or dispense liquor for consumption on the
premises. A licensee of any premises licensed to sell liquor for consumption on the
premises or any employee of such premises shall not be permitted to solicit business

69



RULE 6-2

RULE 6-3

RULE 6-4

from any other licensed premises or from any person directly outside of the premises
connected therewith. No licensee shall employ any person for the purpose of selling
or serving liquor to patrons whose sole source of earnings is based on payments for
such service on the basis of any commission, percentage or similar methods of
payment. Additionally, the Commission reserves the right to review and approve any
plan or arrangements involving any commission, percentage or similar methods of
payment.

DRIVE-IN RETAIL SALES PROHIBITED. Customers making purchases at retail
premises must enter the licensed premises for the purpose of making purchases of liquor.
The drive-in method whereby the customer orders from a motor vehicle and the licensee
delivers liquor to the vehicle is prohibited. Nothing in this rule shall be construed to
prohibit assistance to any person who is physically unable to walk, lift and/or carry
purchases of liquor because of a disability.

PRACTICES TO PROMOTE CONSUMPTION OF LIQUOR; PROHIBITED. No
person licensed to sell liquor for consumption on the premises shall:

[B-] A. Encourage or permit, on the licensed premises, any game or contest which
involves the consumption of liquor or the awarding of liquor as a prize.

NOISE.

A. NOISE PROHIBITED. No licensee within the County, including licensed vessels
operating within [three] 3 miles of shore of the County, shall make, cause the making
of, or continue to make, suffer, or permit any reproducible noise or noise from
patrons from the licensed premises or any adjacent premises under the licensee’s
control which results in a complaint from residents in the vicinity and exceeds the
maximum permissible sound levels as set forth in this section.

B. DEFINITIONS:
“MPSL.” shall mean the maximum permissible sound level.

“Ambient noise” means the totality of sounds of a given place and time, not including
the specific source being measured. The ambient noise level may be estimated from
the sound levels measured during nonoperation of the noise source or by sound levels
measured at one or more points near the point of measurement where the noise source
is inaudible. '

C. ZONING DISTRICTS. Classification of zoning districts are:

“Class A” which include all areas equivalent to County lands zoned conservation,
residential or similar.

70



“Class B” which include all areas equivalent to County lands zoned apartment,
business, commercial, hotel, resort or similar.

“Class C” shall include all areas equivalent to County lands zoned agriculture,
industrial or similar.

For any area not zoned or interim zoned, the comparable State Land Use
classification shall apply.

D. NOISE LEVELS. Maximum permissible sound levels in dBA shall be:

ZONING DISTRICT DAYTIME NIGHTTIME
7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.
CLASS A 55 45
CLASS B 60 ' 50
CLASS C 70 70

E. VIOLATIONS, LAND/FIXED PREMISES. There shall be a violation of this
section if the noise levels exceed the allowable MPSL for a combined total of [ter] 10
percent or more of any [fwerty-minute] 20-minute period and which measurement
shall be at or within the property lines of the complainant.

For purposes of this section, where mixed zoning districts or uses exist, the lowest
MPSL shall apply. As an example, where residential use is permitted in a
commercial district, the noise level for residential use shall apply.

Measurements shall normally not be used for enforcement unless the noise level at a
point of measurement is more than 3 decibels greater than the ambient or background
noise level.

F. VIOLATIONS, VESSELS IN TRANSIT. Vessels in transit shall be exempt from
zoning and MPSL standards as provided in this section. Any reproducible noise or
noise emanating from patrons on board or disembarking the vessel which is audible
and disturbing to the neighborhood shall be a violation.

G. AUTHORITY TO AMEND NOISE LEVELS. The Liquor Commission shall be
authorized to set a lower MPSL for a license upon findings that the location of the
licensed premises and the unusual nature of the existing or proposed uses surrounding
the premises are such that a standard MPSL are insufficient to permit reasonable
conduct of the existing or proposed uses including, but not limited to, hospitals,
nursing homes or health care facilities, and that without such lower MPSL, the license
application or renewal will more likely than not be denied.

71



Where such action is proposed by the Commission, notice of hearing shall be
provided to the licensee or the applicant for the license pursuant to Chapter 91,
Hawai‘i Revised Statutes, as amended, and such notice shall be published at least
once in a paper of general circulation in the district in which the establishment is
located.

H. AUTHORITY TO IMPOSE CONDITIONS. The Commission may impose
conditions to provide corrective measures on the licensee, including soundproofing,
and on any permits related to the license, the Commission may pursue action pursuant
to Section 281-61, Hawai ‘1 Revised Statutes[-], as amended.

PART VII. SEVERABILITY

RULE 7 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of these Rules and Regulations or the
application thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the Rules
and Regulations which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application,
and to this end, the provisions of these Rules and Regulations are declared to be

severable.
Dated: Hilo, Hawai’i,
LIQUOR COMMISSION OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR CONTROL,
COUNTY OF HAWATI'L, STATE OF HAWATI'I
By:
Its Chairperson
Notice of Public Hearing:

Hawai’i Tribune-Herald:
West Hawai’i Today:

Date and Place of Public Hearing:

APPROVED:

MAYOR, County of Hawai’i
Date:

72



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Deputy Corporation Counsel
Date:

I hereby certify that the foregoing amendments and revisions to the Rules and Regulations of the
Liguor Commission of the County of Hawai’i was received and filed in my office this day of

County Clerk

3



	SBRRBAgendaJune242015Exhibit1
	SBRRBAgendaJune242015Exhibit2
	SBRRBAgendaJun242015Exhibit3
	SBRRBAgendaJune242015Exhibit3PartII
	SBRRBAgendaJun242015Exhibit3PartIII
	SBRRBAgendaJun242015Final.pdf
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	        David Y. Ige
	           Governor
	      Luis P. Salaveria

	       DBEDT Director
	        Members
	      Anthony Borge

	             Oahu
	            Kauai




